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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K
(Mark One)
M ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Transition Period From to
Commission File Number 001-13357
Royal Gold, Inc.
(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Chaetr)
Delaware 84-0835164
(State or Other Jurisdiction (I.LR.S. Employer
of Incorporation or Organization) Identification No.)
1660 Wynkoop Street, Suite 1000
Denver, Colorado 80202
(Address of Principal Executive Offices (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area cod€303) 573-1660

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act:
Common Stock, $0.01 par value
(title of class)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢e Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a viglbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405c0b#turities Act. YeRl No O
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Exchange Act. Y&S No M

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Secti® or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (orsiech shorter period that the registrant was redquodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastf@s. Yesd NoO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquidlers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is aontained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledgalefinitive proxy or information statements incorgted by reference in Part 1l of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10{K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, noa-accelerated filer. See definition of
“accelerated filer and large accelerated filerRinle 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
(Check one): Large accelerated fiér Accelerated fileEl Non-accelerated fildd

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exge Act). Yesd No M

Aggregate market value of the voting stock heldhbyg-affiliates of the registrant, based upon tlsidlg sale price of Royal Gold on
December 31, 2006, as reported on the NASDAQ GISb#ct Market was $724.7 million. As of August 2807, there were 28,663,756
shares of the registrant’'s common stock, $0.0vake, issued and outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Proxy Statement for the 2007 Aniie¢ting of Stockholders scheduled to be held oweltber 7, 2007, and to be filed
within 120 days after June 30, 2007, are incorgaréty reference into Part Ill, Items 10, 11, 12ah8 14 of this Annual Report (



Form 10-K.




INDEX

PART I.

ITEM 1. Busines:

ITEM 1A. Risk Factor

ITEM 2. Propertie:

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedinc

ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Secuktylders

PART II.

ITEM 5. Market for Registra’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters aaddsPurchases of Equity Securit
ITEM 6. Selected Financial Da

ITEM 7. Managemer s Discussion and Analysis of Consolidated FinanCmidition and Results of Operatic

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosurebdut Market Rist

ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary |

ITEM 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accoustan Accounting and Financial Disclosi

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedur

ITEM 9B. Other Informatior

PART III.

ITEM 10. Directors and Executive Officers of thegrdrant

ITEM 11. Executive Compensatic

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficiab@ers and Management and Related Stockholder Mi
ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transastand Director Independen

ITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servi

PART IV.
ITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Sched
SIGNATURES

EXHIBIT INDEX
Royal Gold and Its Subsidiari
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking
Certification of President and CEO Required by ®ec302
Certification of CFO Required by Section 3
Written Statement of the President and CEO Purgoa®éction 90t
Written Statement of the CFO Pursuant to Sectidh

PAGE

14
38
38

39
41
42
56

96
96
97

98
98
98
98
98




Table of Contents

This document (including information incorporategréin by reference) contains “forward-looking statents” within the meaning of

Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and &e&1E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, minigolve a degree of risk and
uncertainty due to various factors affecting Rdgald, Inc. and its subsidiaries. For a discussidrsame of these factors, see the discussion
in Item 1A, Risk Factors, of this report.

PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General

Royal Gold, Inc. (“Royal Gold”, the “Company”, “wg"us”, or “our”), together with its subsidiarias,engaged in the business of acquiring
and managing precious metals royalties. Royaltiepassive (non-operating) interests in miningquty that provide the right to revenue or
production from the project after deducting spedifcosts, if any.

We seek to acquire existing royalties or to finapogects that are in production or near produciinexchange for royalty interests. We also
fund exploration on properties thought to contaiecpus metals and seek to obtain royalties aneratarried ownership interests in such
properties through the subsequent transfer of tipgranterests to other mining companies. Substiintall of our revenues are and will be
expected to be derived from royalty interests. Wadt conduct mining operations at this time. Dgriihe 2007 fiscal year, we focused on the
management of our existing royalty interests, tguasition of royalty interests through asset aoporate transactions, and the creation of
royalty interests through financing and strategigleration alliances.

As discussed in further detail throughout this repgome of our significant developments duringdisyear 2007 were as follows:
(1) Our royalty revenues increased to $48.4 milliormpared with $28.4 million during fiscal year 20!

(2) We completed the purchase of a 2.0% nettenreturn (“NSR”) royalty interest on the Pefasoproject located in the State of
Zacatecas, Mexico, and under development by adiabgiof Goldcorp Inc.*“Goldcory”);

(3) We, through a newly-formed, wholly-ownedil€an subsidiary, Royal Gold Chile Limitada (“RGQLtompleted the purchase of
two royalty interests on the Pascua-Lama projdeagtua-Lama”) located in Chile and under developimg@a subsidiary of Barrick
Gold Corporation*“Barrick”);

(4) We completed the purchase of a slidingesbi®R royalty and certain unpatented mining claamshe Gold Hill deposit located in
Nye County, Nevada, and operated by Kinross Golg@mation “Kinross”);

(5) We entered into a definitive merger agreement Bilktle Mountain Gold Exploration Corf“Battle Mountair");

(6) We sold 4,400,064 shares of our commorkstoan underwritten public offering, at a price%#9.25 per share, resulting in net
proceeds to us of approximately $121.9 million;

(7) We declared an increase in our calendar giealend to $0.26 per basic share, which is raiguarterly installments throughout
calendar 2007. This represents an 18% increasearedhvith the dividend paid during calendar yed&2
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Our Producing Royalty Interests

Our principal royalty interests are shown in thikofeing table. Please see Item 2, Properties, isfrigport for further discussion on our

producing royalty interests.

Royalty
Mine Location Operatot (Gold unless otherwise state
Pipeline Mining Complex Lander County, NV Barrick GSR1: 0.40%-5.0% sliding- scale gross

Robinson

SJ Claims Goldstrike

Troy

Leeville Mining Complex
(Leeville North and Leeville South)

Bald Mountain

Mulatos

Martha

White Pine, NV

Eureka County, N\

Lincoln County, MT

Eureka County, NV

White Pine County, N\

Sonora, Mexico

Santa Cruz Province,
Argentina

Quadra Mining Ltd.
(“Quadri”)

Barrick

Revett Minerals, Inc.
(“Revet”)

Newmont Mining
Corporation
(“Newmon”)

Barrick

Alamos Gold, Inc.
(“Alamos”)

Coeur d’Alene Mines
Corporation (“Coeur
d Alene”)

smelter return“GSF”)
GSR2: 0.72¢-9.0% slidin¢- scale GSR
GSR3: 0.71% GS
NVR @:  0.39% net value royalt“NVR”")

3.0% net smelter return (“NSR”) (copper,
gold, silver, molybdenun

0.9% NSR

7.0% GSR (silver and copper)

1.8% NSR

1.75%-3.5% slidin¢-scale NSF

0.30%-1.5% sliding-scale NSR

2.0% NSR (silver)

M The NVR1 royalty is a 1.25% NVR royalty. The Caang owns 31.6% of the 1.25% NVR (or 0.39%), while consolidated minority
interest owns the remaining portion of the 1.25%R\
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Our Development Stage Royalty Interests

We also own the following royalty interests that aurrently in development stage and are not yptaduction. Please see Item 2, Properties,
of this report for further discussion on our depei®nt stage royalty interests.

Royalty
Mine Location Operatot (Gold unless otherwise state
Taparko® Burkina Faso High River Gold Mines 15% GSR (TB-GSR1) and a 4.3% GSR
Ltd. (“High River") (TB-GSR2) (or a slidin-scale)
Pefiasquita® Zacatecas, Mexic Goldcorp 2.0% NSR
Pascu-Lama() Atacama, Chile Barrick 0.16%-1.08% slidin-scale NSF
Gold Hill Nye County, NV Kinross 1.0%-2.0% slidin¢-scale NSF

@ In July 2007, High River announced initial goldguction at Taparko and that they expect to predapproximately 35,000 ounces of
gold during the remainder of calendar 20

(@  See ltem 7, Management's Discussion and Anabfs@onsolidated Financial Condition and Result©perations, for further
discussion on this royalty acquisitic
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Our Exploration Stage Royalty Interests

In addition, we own royalty interests in the follog exploration stage projects. None of these emfilin stage projects contains proven and
probable reserves as of December 31, 2006. Pleadéesn 2, Properties, of this report for furthiscdssion on our exploration stage royalty
interests.

Property Location Royalty Controlled By
Santa Cruz Provinc Argentina 2.0% NSR Hidefield Gold PLC “Hidefield")
Long Valley California 1.0% NSR Vista Gold Corporation“Vista Golc")
Kettukuusikka Finland 2.0% NSR Taranis Resources, In¢“Taranis”)
Rock Creel Montana 1.0% NSR Revett
Mule Canyor Nevada 5.0% NSR Newmont
Buckhorn South 16.5% Net Cortez JV
Profits Interest

Nevada (“NPI")
Ferris/Cooks Cree Nevada 1.5% NVR Cortez JV
Horse Mountair Nevada 0.2% NVR Cortez JV
Simon Creel Nevada 1.0% NSR Barrick
Rye Nevada 0.5% NSR Barrick
BSC Nevada 2.5% NSR Nevada Pacific Gold“Nevada Pacifi”)
ICBM Nevada 0.75% NSF BH Minerals
Long Peal Nevada 0.75% NSF BH Minerals
Dixie Flats Nevada 0.75% NSF BH Minerals
Svetloye Russia 1.0% NSR Fortress Minerals Corporatio“Fortres”)

Our Operational Information
Financial Results

Our financial results are closely tied to the poégold and other metals and production from ayaity properties. During the 2007 fiscal
yeatr, the price of gold averaged $638 per ouncepeoed with an average price of $527 per ounceh®R006 fiscal year. As a result
increased gold prices and increased revenues fierRbobinson and Mulatos mines and increased priaduat the Leeville Mining Complex
and Troy mine, our royalty revenues increased &4#illion during fiscal 2007 compared with $2&Mllion during fiscal 2006.

During our fiscal 2007, we derived most of our rawe from royalties from the Pipeline Mining Compléxfiscal 2007, we generated royalty
revenues of $21.5 million from the Pipeline Mini@gmplex, representing 44% of our total revenues)pared to $16.8 million, or 59% of
our total revenues in fiscal 2006.

Our financial results are discussed in Part Imlfg, Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Cadat#d Financial Condition and Results
of Operation, and within our audited consolidatiedricial statements as discussed in Part Il, lteRirtancial Statements and Supplementary
Data.

Competition

The mining industry in general and the royalty segtrin particular are intensely competitive. We pete with other royalty companies, i
operators and financial buyers in efforts to aageixisting royalties and with the lenders and itwessproviding debt and equity financing in
connection with
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providing financing of mineral projects in our eff®to create new royalties. Many of our compegitorthe lending and mining business are
larger than we are and have greater access t@attyn we have. Key competitive factors in theatyacquisition and financing business
include price, structure and access to capital.

Regulation

Like all mining operations in the United Stateg tperators of the mines that are subject to oralties must comply with environmental
laws and regulations promulgated by federal, statklocal governments including, but not limitedttee National Environmental Policy Act;
the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatd Liability Act; the Clean Air Act; the Cleaiater Act; the Hazardous
Materials Transportation Act; and the Toxic Subsé&nControl Act. Mines located on public landssrkject to comprehensive regulation by
either the United States Bureau of Land Manageita@magency of the United States Department ofriteribr) or the United States Forest
Service (an agency of the United States Departwfefgriculture). The mines also are subject to tagons of the United States
Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”), the Unit8thtes Mine Safety and Health Administration andlar state and local agencies.
Operators of mines that are subject to our royaltieother countries are obligated to comply withiksr laws and regulations in those
jurisdictions. Although we are not responsible asyalty owner for ensuring compliance with thesgulations, failure by the operators of
mines on which we have royalties to comply withlaggble laws, regulations and permits can resuibjnnctive action, damages and civil
and criminal penalties on the operators which coethilice production from the mines and thereby redle royalties we receive and
negatively affect our financial condition.

Corporate Information

We were incorporated under the laws of the Staf@eddware on January 5, 1981. Our executive offizedocated at 1660 Wynkoop Street,
Suite 1000, Denver, Colorado 80202, (303) 573-1660.

Available Information

Royal Gold maintains an internet website at wwwatggld.com. Royal Gold makes available, free ofrghathrough the Investor Relations
section of the web site, its Annual Reports on F&0¥K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Repon Form &, and all amendmen
to those reports, as soon as reasonably practiaftblesuch material is electronically filed witketSecurities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC"). Our SEC filings are available from the SEGternet site at www.sec.gov, which containsorép proxy and information statements
and other information regarding issuers that figcgonically. These reports, proxy statementsathdr information may also be inspected
and copied at the public reference facilities naiiveed by the SEC at 100 F Street, N.E., Room 188&hington, D.C. 20549. Please call the
SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information oa tiperation of the public reference facilities. Rloold’s charters of key committees of
its Board of Directors and its Code of Businessdimt and Ethics are also available on the Companmgissite. Any of the foregoing
information is available in print to any stockhalaeno requests it by contacting Royal Gold’s IneesRelations Department at 303-5Z860

5




Table of Contents

Company Personnel

On August 15, 2007, we had 15 employees locat&kmver, Colorado. Our employees are not subjeatlaior contract or a collective
bargaining agreement. We consider our employeé&ontato be good.

Consulting services, relating primarily to geologitd geophysical interpretations and also relatrguch metallurgical, engineering, and
other technical matters as may be deemed usefakinperation of our business, are primarily predithy independent contractors.

6
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

An investment in our Common Stock involves a higjne of risk. You should carefully consider tisksidescribed below before making
investment decision. Our business, financial camdljitresults of operations and cash flows couldrtagerially adversely affected by any of
these risks. The market or trading price of ounsiies could decline due to any of these risksaaddition, please see our note about forward-
looking statements included in Part I, Iltem 7, Mga@ent’'s Discussion and Analysis of Consolidatedii¢ial Condition and Results of
Operations, of this Annual Report on Form 10-Ked3e note that additional risks not presently kntmvas or that we currently deem
immaterial may also impair our business and openagi

Risks Related to Our Business

Our revenues are largely dependent on a singlesprop

In fiscal year 2007, approximately 44% of our revemwere derived from royalties from the Pipelin@ily Complex, compared to
approximately 59% being derived from the Pipelinimilly Complex in fiscal year 2006. We expect tleatanue from our royalties on the
Pipeline Mining Complex will continue to be a sificént, though less dominant, contributor to owereue in future periods. The Pipeline
Mining Complex will continue to be material to awsults of operations.

We own passive interests in mining properties amldifficult or impossible for us to ensure projes are operated in our best interest.

All of our current revenue is derived from royadtien properties operated by third parties. Thedradd a royalty interest typically has no
executive authority regarding development or openadf a mineral property. Therefore, we are natantrol of basic decisions regarding
development or operation of any of the propertiewtich we hold a royalty interest, and we havetiohor no legal rights to influence those
decisions.

Our strategy of having others operate propertiaghith we retain a royalty or other passive intepegs us generally at risk to the decisions
of others regarding all basic operating matterduiing permitting, feasibility analysis, mine dgsiand operation, processing, plant and
equipment matters, and temporary or permanent sggpeof operations, among others. These decisi@ysbe motivated by the best
interests of the operator rather than to maximig&lties. Although we attempt to secure contraatiggits that will permit us to protect our
interests, there can be no assurance that sudls viglhalways be available or sufficient, or thmatr efforts will be successful in achieving
timely or favorable results or in affecting the ogg@ns of the properties in which we have royaitgrests in ways that would be beneficial to
our stockholders.

Volatility in gold and other metal prices may hareadverse impact on the value of our royalty agexr and reduce our royalty revenues.

The profitability of our royalty interests and eamtion properties is directly related to the magkéce of gold and, to a lesser degree, other
metals. The market price of each metal can fluetsggnificantly and is affected by numerous factmrgond the control of any mining
company. These factors include supply and demamiimentals, expectations with respect to the fat#lation, the relative strength of the
U.S dollar and other currencies, interest ratek] gales and loans by central banks, forward datenetal producers, global or regional
political, economic or banking crises, and a nundfesther factors. If the market price of goldysil or copper should drop, our royalty
revenues would also drop. Our
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sliding-scale GSR1 royalty amplifies this. When tfudd price falls below the steps in the slidingdscGSR1 royalty, we receive a lower
royalty rate on production. In addition, if the dpsilver or copper price drops dramatically, welntinot be able to recover our investment in
royalty interests or properties. The selection ofyalty investment or of a property for exploratior development, the determination to
construct a mine and place it into production, Hreddedication of funds necessary to achieve sugboges are decisions that must be made
long before the first revenues from production Wwél received. Price fluctuations between the tima¢ $uch decisions are made and the
commencement of production can have a materialradwedfect on the economics of a mine, and canimdita or have a material adverse
impact on the value of royalty interests.

The volatility in gold prices is illustrated by tf@lowing table, which sets forth, for the periddslicated (calendar year), the high and low
prices in U.S. dollars per ounce of gold, basetherLondon P.M. fix.

Gold Price Per Ounce ($)

Year High Low
1998 $31z $27:5
1999 32¢ 258
2000 312 263
2001 29¢ 25€
2002 34¢ 27¢
2003 41¢€ 32C
2004 454 37E
2005 537 411
2006 725 52t
2007 (through August 15, 200 691 60¢

The volatility in silver prices is illustrated blye following table which sets forth, for the pesdddicated (calendar year), the high and low
prices in U.S. dollars per ounce of silver, basedhe London P.M. fix.

Silver Price Per Ounce ($)

Year High Low
1998 $ 7.81 $ 4.6¢
1999 5.7¢ 4.8¢
2000 5.4t 4.57
2001 4.82 4.07
2002 5.1C 4.24
2003 5.97 4.37
2004 8.2¢ 5.5C
2005 9.2¢ 6.3¢
2006 14.9¢ 8.8:
2007 (through August 15, 200 14.5¢ 12.21
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The volatility in copper prices is illustrated tyetfollowing table, which sets forth, for the p@sandicated (calendar year), the high and low
prices in U.S. dollars per pound of copper, basethe London Metal Exchange cash settlement pocedpper Grade A.

Copper Price Per Pound ($)

Year High Low
1998 $0.82 $0.67
1999 0.8C 0.6:
2000 0.8¢ 0.7¢€
2001 0.81 0.62
2002 0.7% 0.67
2003 1.0C 0.7z
2004 1.4z 1.1C
2005 2.0¢ 1.44
2006 3.65 2.1¢
2007 (through August 15, 200 3.7z 2.37

We depend on the services of our President and Ekexutive Officer, our Executive Chairman andestkey employees.

We believe that our success depends on the codtsrrgice of our key executive management persofuetently, Tony Jensen is serving
as President and Chief Executive Officer and Syablempsey is serving as our Executive Chairman.Jénsen has extensive experience in
mining operations. Mr. Dempsey’s knowledge of #gal and commercial aspects of royalties and hensive contacts within the mining
industry give us an important competitive advantagss of the services of Mr. Jensen, Mr. Dempsegtioer key employees could
jeopardize our ability to maintain our competitp@sition in the industry. We currently do not h&eg person life insurance for any of ¢
officers or directors.

Our revenues are subject to operational risks@fhtiming industry.

Although we are not required to pay operating ¢asis financial results are subject to all of tkedérds and risks normally associated with
developing and operating mining properties, botfttie properties where we have strategic explanalbances or indirectly for properties
operated by others where we hold royalty inter&3tese risks include:

. insufficient ore reserve:

. fluctuations in production costs by the operatorthird parties that may make mining of ore umegic or impact the amount of
reserves

. declines in the price of gold and other met
. significant environmental and other regulatory niesons;

. labor disputes
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. geological problems

. pit walls or tailings dam failure:

. natural catastrophes such as floods or earthquake

. the risk of injury to persons, property or the eamiment.

Operating cost increases can have a negative eifeitte value of and income from our royalty inséseand may cause an operator to curtail,
delay or close operations at a mine site.

Estimates of reserves and mineralization by theaipes of mines in which we have royalty interests subject to significant revision.

There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimaroven and probable reserves and mineralizatizluding many factors beyond our
control or that of the operators of mineral projsrin which we have a royalty interest. Resertienades on our royalty interests are prepi
by the operators of the mining properties. We dopaoticipate in the preparation or verificationsoich reports and have not independently
assessed or verified the accuracy of such infoonafihe estimation of reserves and of other miietbn is a subjective process and the
accuracy of any such estimates is a function ofjthadity of available data, engineering and gedalinterpretation, and judgment. Result
drilling, metallurgical testing and production, athe evaluation of mine plans subsequent to the afsény estimate, may cause revision of
such estimates. The volume and grade of resereesaeed and rates of production may be less thacigated. Assumptions about gold and
other precious metal prices are subject to gree¢mi@inty and such prices have fluctuated widelhapast. Declines in the market price of
gold or other precious metals also may render vesesr mineralization containing relatively loweades of ore uneconomic to exploit.
Changes in operating and capital costs and otl&griaincluding short-term operating factors, sastihe need for sequential development of
ore bodies and the processing of new or differemtgoades, may materially and adversely affectrvese

Estimates of production by the operators of mineshich we have royalty interests are subject &nde.

Production estimates are prepared by the operatdh® mining properties. There are numerous uatgnes inherent in estimating
anticipated production attributable to our royaitierests, including many factors beyond our cdrdrdhat of the operators of mineral
properties in which we have royalty interests. Vdendt participate in the preparation or verificataf production estimates and have not
independently assessed or verified the accurasydf information. The estimation of anticipateddurction is a subjective process and the
accuracy of any such estimates is a function ofjthadity of available data, reliability of produmti history, variability in grade encountered,
mechanical or other problems encountered and eagitgeand geological interpretation and operatdgjuent. Rates of production may be
less than anticipated. Results of drilling, metajical testing and production, and the evaluatibmime plans subsequent to the date of any
estimate may cause actual production to vary naigfrom such estimates.

10
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We may be unable to successfully acquire additiomlty interests.

Our future success depends upon our ability toieeqayalty interests at appropriate valuations|uding through corporate acquisitions, to
replace depleting reserves and to diversify oualtgyportfolio. We anticipate that most of our raues will be derived from royalty interests
that we acquire or finance, rather than throughHaation and development of properties. There aandassurance that we will be able to
identify and complete the acquisition of such royaiterests, or businesses that own desired npyakrests, at reasonable prices or on
favorable terms. In addition, we face competitionHe acquisition of royalty interests. If we arable to successfully acquire additional
royalties, the reserves on properties currentlyeoed by our royalties will decline as existing ress are mined. Furthermore, we may
experience negative reactions from the financiaketsa, our collaborative partners and employeegifire unable to successfully complete
acquisitions of royalty interests or businessesdhan desired royalty interests. Each of theseofaatnay adversely affect the trading price of
our Common Stock or financial results and operation

Acquired royalty interests may not produce antit@gaoyalty revenues.

The royalty interests we acquire may not produeesttticipated royalty revenues. The success ofayalty acquisitions is based on our
ability to make accurate assumptions regarding&heation and timing and amount of royalty paymepésticularly acquisitions of royalties
on development stage properties. If the operates awt bring the property into production and ofeeitaaccordance with feasibility studies,
acquired royalty interests may not yield royaltyeeues or sufficient royalty revenues to be prbféaThe Taparko project in Burkina Faso
and the Pefasquito project in Mexico representargest development stage royalty acquisitionsate.dn addition, our Pascua-Lama
acquisition in Chile is in a pre-production stagbe failure of these projects to produce anticipatgyalty revenues may materially and
adversely affect our financial condition, result®perations and cash flows.

Anticipated federal legislation could decreaseroyalty revenues.

In recent years, the United States Congress hasdssad a number of proposed major revisions ofxeeral Mining Law, which governs
the creation and possession of mining claims aladee activities on federal public lands in the tddiStates. It is possible that another bill
may be introduced in the Congress and it is passhtat a new law could be enacted. If a new mifamgis enacted, it might impose a royalty
upon production of minerals from federal lands amght contain new requirements for mined land neelfion, and similar environmental
control and reclamation measures. It remains unébeahat extent new legislation may affect exigtmining claims or operations, but it
could raise the cost of mining operations, perhmpterially affecting operators and our royalty mawve.

The effect of any revision of the General MiningaLan our royalty interests in the United Statesncaiibe determined conclusively until st
revision, if any, is enacted. The majority of ounitdd States royalty interests are on public laifdsroyalty, assessment, production tax, or
other levy imposed on and measured by productichasged to the operator at the Pipeline Mining @lex, the amount of that charge wo
be deducted from gross proceeds for calculatiamuoilGSR1, GSR2 and GSR3 royalties, which would cedhwr royalty revenues from these
royalties.

11
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The mining industry is subject to significant emvimental risks.

Mining is subject to potential risks and liabilgiassociated with pollution of the environment treldisposal of waste products occurring
result of mineral exploration and production. Laavsl regulations in the United States and abro&ehded to ensure the protection of the
environment, are constantly changing and geneaafijbecoming more restrictive and costly. Insuragagnst environmental risks (including
potential liability for pollution or other hazards a result of the disposal of waste products oiccufrom exploration and production) is not
generally available to the companies within theingrindustry, such as the operators of the minesghith we hold a royalty interest, at a
reasonable price. If an operator is forced to irsignificant costs to comply with environmentalukdions or becomes subject to
environmental restrictions that limit its ability tontinue or expand operations, it could reducer@yalty revenues. To the extent that we
become subject to environmental liabilities for timee period during which we were operating proigsttthe satisfaction of any liabilities
would reduce funds otherwise available to us anddchave a material adverse effect on our finaraaldition, results of operations and cash
flows.

If title to properties are not properly maintain®dthe operators, our royalty revenues may be dsek

The validity of unpatented mining claims, which stitute a significant portion of the propertieswahnich we hold royalties in the United
States, is often uncertain and such validity isagievsubject to contest. Unpatented mining clairmgenerally considered subject to greater
title risk than patented mining claims, or realgedy interests that are owned in fee simple. Beeaunpatented mining claims are self-
initiated and self-maintained, they possess sornguanvulnerabilities not associated with other typéproperty interests. It is impossible to
ascertain the validity of unpatented mining clafmasn public real property records, and thereforeait be difficult or impossible to confirm
that all of the requisite steps have been follofeedocation and maintenance of an unpatented mioiaim. If title to unpatented mining
claims included among our royalty properties isprafperly maintained, our royalty revenues couldbeersely affected.

Foreign operations are subject to many risks.

Our foreign activities are subject to the risksmalty associated with conducting business in faoreiguntries. This includes exchange
controls and currency fluctuations, limitationsrepatriation of earnings, foreign taxation, foregrvironmental laws and enforcement,
expropriation or nationalization of property, lalppactices and disputes, and uncertain politicdl@sonomic environments. There are also
risks of war and civil disturbances, as well aeottisks that could cause exploration or develogrdéficulties or stoppages, restrict the
movement of funds or result in the deprivationassl of contract rights or the taking of propertyniagionalization or expropriation, without
fair compensation. Exploration licenses granteddaye foreign countries do not include the righine. Each country has discretion in
determining whether to grant a license to minanloperator cannot secure a mining license follgveixploration of a property, the value of
our royalty interest would be negatively affectedreign operations could also be adversely impdeyddws and policies of the United Ste
affecting foreign trade, investment, and taxatMe currently have interests in projects in ArgeatiBurkina Faso, Finland, Mexico, Russia
and Chile. We also evaluate precious metal royadtyuisitions or development opportunities in otbets of the world, including Canada,
Central America, Europe, Australia, other Repubtitthe former Soviet Union, Asia, Africa and Soétimerica.
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We are also subject to the risks of operating irkBa Faso, West Africa. Countries in the regiomehhistorically experienced periods of
political uncertainty, exchange rate fluctuatidnslance of payments and trade difficulties and jgmbk associated with extreme poverty and
unemployment. Any of these economic or politicaksi could adversely affect the Taparko project.

Our operations in Mexico are subject to risks saglthe effects of political developments and larakst, and communal property issues. In
the past, Mexico has experienced prolonged peonbdseak economic conditions characterized by exghaate instability, increased inflati
and negative economic growth, all of which couldwcagain in the future. Any of these risks couddexrsely affect the Mulatos mine and the
Pefasquito project.

We hold a royalty interest in an exploration prapéiat is subject to the risks of operating in #asThe economy of the Russian Federation
continues to display characteristics of an emergiagket, including extensive currency controls potentially high inflation. The prospects
for future economic stability in the Russian Fetieraare largely dependent upon the effectivenéssanomic measures undertaken by the
government, together with legal, regulatory andtigal developments. Russian laws, licenses anthiggeihave been in a state of change and
new laws may be given a retroactive effect.

Our Martha royalty is subject to risks relatingofmerating in Argentina. Argentina, while currengigonomically and politically stable, has
experienced political instability, currency fluctislms and changes in banking regulations in regeats. Future instability, currency value
fluctuations or regulation changes could adveraélct our revenues from the Martha mine.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Our stock price may continue to be volatile andidalecline.

The market price of our common stock has fluctuatedi may decline in the future. The high and lole paices of our common stock were
$20.50 and $12.30 in the fiscal year ended Jun2@5, $41.66 and $18.74 in the fiscal year endee 30, 2006 and $37.50 and $23.25 for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. The fluctnaifdhe market price of our common stock has lzstted by many factors that are
beyond our control, including:

. market prices of gold and other met:

. interest rates

. expectations regarding inflatio

. ability of operators to produce precious metals @enklop new reserve
. currency values

. general stock market conditions; ¢

. global and regional political and economic condisic

13
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We may change our dividend policy.

We have declared a cash dividend on our Commork$to@ach fiscal year beginning in fiscal year @00ur board of directors has
discretion in determining whether to declare adbwid based on a number of factors, including pliegagold prices, economic market
conditions and funding requirements for future apyaties or operations. If our board of directdeslines to declare dividends in the future,
or reduces the current dividend level, our stoékepecould fall, and the success of an investmentuinCommon Stock would depend solely
upon any future stock price appreciation in value.

Certain antitakeover provisions could delay or prevent a thmdy from acquiring us.

Provisions in our Certificate of Incorporation nragke it more difficult for third parties to acquizentrol of us or to remove our managen
Some of these provisions are:

. Permit our board of directors to issue preferredisthat has rights senior to the Common Stockautlshareholder approval; a
. Provide for three classes of directors servinggsaegd, thre-year terms

We are also subject to the business combinatiovigioms of Delaware law that could delay, detep@vent a change in control. In addition,
we have adopted a Stockholder’s Rights Plan thabses significant penalties upon a person or gtisapacquires 15% or more of our
outstanding Common Stock without the approval eflibard of directors. Any of these measures cowddent a third party from pursuing an
acquisition of Royal Gold, even if shareholderdehad the acquisition is in their best interests.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Royalties on Producing Properties

Recent activities at each of the significant pradggroperties in which we have a royalty intesast described in the following pages. Please
also see Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Bi@t¢s included in Part I, Item 8. “Financial Stats and Supplementary Data” of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional infornmation these properties.

We do not operate the properties in which we hayalty interests and therefore much of the infofaratlisclosed in this Form 10-K
regarding these properties is provided to us byfierators. For example, the operators of the vanwoperties provide us information
regarding metals production, estimates of miners¢rves and additional mineralization. There iseniiiormation available to the public

from the operators of the properties in which weehayalties, including reports filed by Newmongetir d’Alene, and Barrick with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. For risks tdasiness associated with operations of mininggrties by third parties see generally
the risks described under Part I, Item 1A, “RisktBes.” For risks associated with the operatorseree estimates, please see Part I, Item 1A,
“Risk Factors -Estimates of reserves and mineralization by theaipes of mines in which we have royalty interests subject to significant
revision” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for furthertd#.
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Pipeline Mining Complex

The Pipeline Mining Complex is a large open pitll sand heap leach operation located approximat@lgié miles southwest of Elko, Nevada,
in Lander County. The site is reached by drivingtfeom Elko on Interstate 80 approximately 46 miilend proceeding south on State
Highway 306 approximately 23 miles. The Pipelinenig Complex includes the Pipeline, South Pipeldap and Crossroads deposits ar
operated by the Cortez Joint Venture.

The royalty interests we hold at the Pipeline Min@omplex include:

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

()
(f)

Reserve Claim§GSRYT) . This is a sliding-scale GSR royalty for all ggiibduced from the “Reserve Claims,” which inclu@s
claims that encompass all of the proven and pra&badderves in the Pipeline and South Pipeline dispas of April 1, 1999. As
defined in our royalty agreement with Cortez, 0 @Raroyalty applies to revenues attributed to préslodned and removed, with no
deduction for any costs paid by or charged to @oegcept for deductions of Mining Law reform co$tsning Law reform costs
includes all amounts paid by or charged to Corveahy royalty, assessment, production tax or déharimposed on and measured
by production, to the extent that any such leviyaseafter imposed by the United States, in conoeetith reform of the General
Mining Law or otherwise. As defined, no such Minibaw reform costs are currently deducted sinceunt seform has yet occurre
The revenues attributed to Cortez are determineal dagemed market value basis of total productioe#égh calendar quarter
outturned to Cortez’s account at the refiner. TI8RGoyalty rate on the Reserve Claims is tied ¢ogld price, without indexing for
inflation or deflation as shown in the table bels

GAS Claims“GSRZ2) . This is a sliding-scale GSR royalty for all ggicbduced from the 288 claims outside of the Res€faens.
The GAS Claims include 310 lode mining claims, ptdduction from 22 of the GAS Claims that encomphesSouth Pipeline
reserve as of April 1, 1999, are subject to theeRaesClaims GSR royalty. The GSR royalty rate a®@AS Claims is tied to the gc
price, without indexing for inflation or deflatioand applies to revenues attributed to productedhand removed, with no deduction
of costs, except for Mining Law reform costs, if/a

Reserve and GAS Claims Fixed Royaltg$R3). The GSR3 royalty is a fixed rate GSR royalty ofl2%% for the life of the mine

and covers the same cumulative area as is covgredriwo slidini-scale GSR royalties, GSR1 and GS

Net Value Royalty“NVR1"). This is a fixed 1.25% NVR on production from the &&laims located on a portion of the Pipeline

Mining Complex that excludes the Pipeline openTite Company owns 31.6% of the 1.25% NVR (or 0.3@#ti)e our consolidate
minority interest owns the remaining portion of h&5% NVR. This NVR1 royalty is calculated by deting contract defined
processing-related and associated capital costedbumining costs from the revenue received byogberator from the claims
covered by the royalty

The Silver GSF. This is a 7.0% GSR royalty on all silver produéesn any of the Reserve Claims or the GAS clai

The Other Products NSRhis is a 3.0% NSR royalty on all products, ottiem gold or silver, produced from any of the Rese

Claims or GAS claims, commencing July 1, 1999. TH&R is defined as the actual price received byezdor the sale of products
other than gold and silv
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prior to delivery to any customer, refinery or upding facility and after deductions for any Minibgw reform costs, the costs of
insuring, marketing, freight or transportation aifidpplicable, refining and treatment costs, focts products. There is no current
production attributed to this royalty interest.

The following shows the current sliding-scale G8Ralty rates under our royalty agreement with Corte

London PM Quarterly Averag GSR1 GSR2

Price of Gold Per Ounce ($U.¢ Royalty Percentag Royalty Percentag
Below $210.0( 0.4(% 0.72%
$210.0( - $229.9¢ 0.5(% 0.9(%
$230.0( = $249.9¢ 0.7% 1.35%
$250.0( - $269.9¢ 1.3(% 2.3%%
$270.0( - $309.9¢ 2.25% 4.05%
$310.0( - $329.9¢ 2.6(% 4.68%
$330.0( - $349.9¢ 3.0(% 5.4(%
$350.0( - $369.9¢ 3.4(% 6.12%
$370.0( = $389.9¢ 3.7%% 6.75%
$390.0( - $409.9¢ 4.0% 7.2(%
$410.0( = $429.9¢ 4.25% 7.65%
$430.0( - $449.9¢ 4.5(% 8.1(%
$450.0( - $469.9¢ 4.7%% 8.55%
$470.0( - and abov 5.0(% 9.0(%
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Under certain circumstances we would be entitledeiayed production payments (i.@payments not recoupable by Cortez) of $400,000 pe
year.

Barrick estimated that at a $475 gold price, promed probable reserves related to our royalty éstsrat the Pipeline Mining Complex
includes 82.65 million tons of ore, at an averagalg of 0.028 ounces per ton, containing approxm&.326 million ounces of gold as of
December 31, 2006. In addition, Barrick has regbatgditional mineralized material at the Pipelinmidg Complex totaling 35.35 million
tons of ore, at an average grade of 0.037 ouncgsldfper ton.

The following illustration depicts the area subjecour royalty interests at the Pipeline Miningn@dex:

T lesRt 1 iGsR2 GSR3 NVR1

| TS——

r
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SJ Claims

We own a 0.9% NSR royalty on the SJ Claims thatc®a portion of the Betze-Post mine, in EurekarBguNevada. Betze-Post is an open
pit mine operated by a subsidiary of Barrick, atGioldstrike property. The SJ Claims and the B&zst-open pit lie approximately 24 air
miles northwest of Carlin, Nevada. The propertgdsessed by driving north from Carlin on State Migi 766 for 19 miles and then on an
improved gravel road for two miles.

Barrick estimated that at a $475 gold price, proaed probable reserves related to our royalty éstest the SJ Claims include 60.55 million
tons of ore, at an average grade of 0.132 ounagesipecontaining approximately 7.977 million ousad gold as of December 31, 2006.
Barrick does not provide us with information regagdadditional mineralized material on the SJ Ckiimat is related to our royalty interest.

The following map depicts the area subject to oyalty interest at the SJ Claims:
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Leeville Project

We own a 1.8% carried working interest, equal 108% NSR royalty, which covers the majority of theeville Mining Complex (collectivel
Leeville South and Leeville North), in Eureka Coyrtievada. The Leeville Mining Complex is approxieig 19 air miles northwest of
Carlin, Nevada. The property is accessed by drivimgh from Carlin on State Highway 766 for 19 raiend then on an improved gravel road
for two miles. Leeville North is an underground micurrently under production ramp up by Newmontwhent has announced that it
intends to be at full production at Leeville Nolty the end of calendar 2007. Currently, we deroyalty revenue from underground
operations on a portion of the Leeville South amdtiN mines, which are operated by a subsidiaryefidont. Production from the Leeville
South mine is expected to continue throughout ckef007.

As of December 31, 2006, Newmont estimated that®800 gold price, proven and probable reservaseetto the Leeville South mine
includes 29,000 tons of ore, at an average gra@e3a@D ounces per ton, containing 9,000 ounceslof ¢n addition, Newmont has reported
additional mineralized material at Leeville Souttating 21,000 tons of ore, at an average grade38f0 ounces of gold per ton.

At the Leeville North mine, proven and probableeress include 5.15 million tons of ore, at an agergrade of 0.454 ounces per ton,
containing 2.339 million ounces of gold as of Debem31, 2006. In addition, Newmont has reportedtixhél mineralized material totaling
1.44 million tons of ore, at an average grade 878.ounces of gold per ton, at Leeville North.

The following map depicts the area subject to oyalty interest at the Leeville Project:

NORTH
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Troy Mine

In the second quarter of fiscal year 2005 and imeation with financing provided by the CompanyRevett, we acquired two royalty
interests in the Troy underground silver and coppiere, operated by a subsidiary of Revett, locatddncoln County, Montana. The Troy
mine is approximately 15 miles south of the towT oy, Montana, and access is via a paved roademted to State Highway 56. Please see
Note 3 to the consolidated financial statementdgugher information in connection with the finangiprovided by the Compan

The first royalty interest we acquired in the Traine is a production payment equivalent to a 7.08R@oyalty from all metals and products
produced and sold from the Troy mine. The 7.0% @3RIty will extend until either cumulative prodiart of approximately 9.9 million
ounces of silver and 84.7 million pounds of coppemve receive $10.5 million in cumulative paymemtbichever occurs first. We have
received cumulative payments with the GSR royaitgling $5.5 million through June 30, 2007. Theosekroyalty interest we acquired in
Troy Mine is a perpetual GSR royalty, which begih$.1% on any production in excess of 11.0 milbomces of silver and 94.1 million
pounds of copper, and steps down to a perpetu# B8R royalty after cumulative production has edeeel2.7 million ounces of silver and
108.2 million pounds of copper.

As of December 31, 2006, Revett estimated thah &14.00 per ounce silver price, proven and prabedserves related to the Troy mine
include 12.05 million tons of ore, at an averagadgrof 1.14 ounces per ton, containing 13.768 eniliunces of silver. In addition, Revett
reported additional mineralized material at theyTmuine totaling 45.22 million tons of ore, at areeage grade of 1.36 ounces per ton of
silver.

As of December 31, 2006, Revett estimated thatb&. @0 per pound copper price, proven and prob@slerves related to the Troy mine
includes 12.19 million tons of ore, at an averagelg of 0.54 percent, containing 131 million pouatisopper. In addition, Revett has
reported additional mineralized copper materighatTroy mine totaling 45.22 million tons of or¢am average grade of 0.64 percent of
copper.
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All of the ground within the “area of interestis labeled in the following map, depicts the ardgest to our royalty interests at the Troy m
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Bald Mountain Mine

We own a 1.75% to 3.5% sliding-scale NSR royaltyagrortion of the Bald Mountain mine. The Bald Mtin mine is an open pit, heap
leach mine operated by a subsidiary of Barrick. Bakl Mountain mine is located in White Pine Coyrmtyproximately 65 miles south of
Elko, Nevada. The Bald Mountain mine is approxiryateidway between Elko and Ely, Nevada. From Elke mine is reached by driving
on paved State Highway 46 south for approximaté&lymles, then for 30 miles on an improved gravelrto the mine site. From Ely, the
drive is 30 miles west on paved United States Hmh®0, then 55 miles north on the improved gravddy\RMarshes Road.

As of December 31, 2006, Barrick informed us thatportion of the mine covered by our royalty ietrcontained proven and probable
reserves of 51.49 million tons of ore, at an avergigde of 0.039 ounces per ton, containing apprataly 2.024 million ounces of gold.
These reserves are based on a gold price of $47&upee. In addition, Barrick has reported thatgheperty covered by our royalty interest
contains an additional 7.64 million tons of addiabmineralized material, at an average grade@8®ounces per ton of gold.

The following map depicts the area subject to oyalty interests at the Bald Mountain mine:
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Robinson Mine

We own a 3.0% NSR royalty on all mineral producticom the Robinson open pit mine operated by aididry of Quadra Mining Ltd. The
Robinson mine produces two flotation concentradeséle to third party smelters. One concentratgains copper, gold and silver. The
second is a molybdenum concentrate. Access tortipepy is via Nevada state highway 50, 6 1/2 milest of Ely, Nevada, in White Pine
County.

As of December 31, 2006, Quadra informed us thettpper and gold reserves were 134.92 million, tahan average grade of 0.008 ounces
per ton of gold, containing 1.034 million ouncegofd and a copper grade of 0.69% equating to 1n@idn pounds of copper. The reserves
were calculated at $500 per ounce for gold and3bfiet pound of copper. Silver and molybdenum resewere not reported but are prodi
and sold as a byproduct.

All of the ground within the “property boundary’s tabeled in the following map, is subject to cayalty interest at the Robinson mine:
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Mulatos Mine

We own a 0.3% to 1.5% sliding-scale NSR royaltyttse Mulatos open pit mine in southeastern Sonoexidd approximately 137 miles east
of the city of Hermosillo and 186 miles south of thorder with the United States. Access to the rfrora the city of Hermosillo can be made
via private chartered flight or paved and graveld:aCommercial production at the Mulatos mine begaApril 1, 2006. Operation of the

gold heap leach mine is by a subsidiary of AlanAssof December 31, 2006, based upon a gold pri&s00 per ounce, Alamos has reported
proven and probable reserves of 43.79 million tahan average grade of 0.047 ounces per ton,ingge2.057 million ounces of gold.
Additional mineralized material, based upon a 0.6a6ces per ton cut-off, is reported as 95.21 amltions of ore at 0.036 ounces per ton.

All of the ground within the shaded area on théofeing map depicts the area subject to our royialigrests at the Mulatos mine:
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Martha Mine

We own a 2.0% NSR royalty on mineral productiomfreertain properties in Santa Cruz Province, Arigenincluding the underground
Martha silver mine operated by Coeur d’Alene. Thartda mine is located in remote southern Argentiime property is accessed by driving
west-northwest from the coastal town of Puerto Bdian, which is approximately 1,300 miles soutlBaEnos Aires. From Puerto San Julian
the mine is reached by driving 95 miles on pubighivays (the last 25 of which are unpaved roadd)than five miles on a local road, which
is also unpaved.

As of June 30, 2007, Coeur d’Alene informed us,tatin $10.00 per ounce silver price, estimatedgr and probable reserves associated
with our Martha mine royalty includes approximat&y3,700 tons of ore, at an average grade of 6G8u68es per ton, containing
approximately 7.576 million ounces of silver. Coéi&klene did not provide us with updated informati@garding additional mineralized
material for Martha mine that is related to ouraiby interest.

The following map depicts the area subject to oyalty interests at the Martha mine:

Limits of
Original Claims

. Relinquished Ground

M 4 600 000

(=]
Gob. Gregores

25 Km

E 2 450 000

25




Table of Contents

Royalties on Development Stage Properties

The following is a description of our interestgayalties on development stage properties. Therg@aven and probable reserves associated
with these properties at this time. Reserves amargrized below in this report in Item 2, PropertieReserve Information.

Taparko Mine

In connection with financing provided by the Compam Societe des Mines de Taparko, also known ast8®GA (“Somita”), we acquired
two initial production payments equivalent to GSyalties and two subsequent GSR royalties on tiparka project. Please see Note 3 tc
consolidated financial statements for further infation regarding the financing transaction. Pledse refer to Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements for discussion on the Commfyriding commitment related to this financing saction.

We own a production payment equivalent to a 15.08RGTB-GSR1) royalty on all gold produced from freparko project, located in
Burkina Faso and operated by Somita. TB-GSR1 resrinifiorce until cumulative production of 804,42@haes of gold is achieved or until
cumulative payments of $35 million have been madedyal Gold, whichever is earlier. We also owrr@dpction payment equivalent to a
GSR sliding-scale royalty (TB-GSR2) on all gold gweed from the Taparko project. TB-GSR2 runs cameuly with TB-GSR1, and
remains in-force until the termination of TB-GSR1.

We also own a perpetual 2.0% GSR royalty (TB-GS&tBall gold produced from the Taparko project afld2GSR3 will commence upon
termination of the TB-GSR1 and TB-GSR2 royaltiedktion of the TB-GSR3 royalty is associated véltisting proven and probable
reserves and has been classified as a developtagetreyalty interest. The remaining portion of Ti2 GSR3 royalty, which is not currently
associated with proven and probable reservesassifled as an exploration stage royalty interest.

In addition, we own a 0.75% milling fee royalty (A\BR1) on all gold processed through the Taparkgegatqrocessing facilities that is
mined from any area outside of the Taparko pra@ees, subject to a maximum of 1.1 million tons yesr. There currently are no proven and
probable reserves associated with TB-MR1.

Pdiasquito Project

We own a production payment equivalent to a 2.09R K& alty on all metal production from the Pefiatmproject, located in the State of
Zacatecas, Mexico, and operated by Goldcorp.

The deposit consists of oxide and sulfide portiomistaining gold, silver, zinc and lead. Currerg sittivities include infrastructure and
processing facility construction.
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Pascud_ama Project

We own a production payment equivalent to a slicingle NSR based upon gold price as shown in tf@viog table.

London PM Monthly Averag NSR
Price of Gold Per Ounce ($U.¢ Royalty Percentag
Below $325.0( 0.1€%
$325.0: - $350.0( 0.22%
$350.0: - $375.0( 0.27%
$375.0: - $400.0( 0.32%
$400.0: = $500.0( 0.5€%
$500.0: - $600.0( 0.7%
$600.0: - $800.0( 0.91%
$800.0: - and abov 1.08%

The Pascua-Lama project is located on the bordArgdntina and Chile within 6.25 miles of Barrick/aledaro project. Our royalty interest
is applicable to all the gold production from ChiBarrick is also the owner/operator of the Padcaia project.

An additional royalty equivalent to 0.216% of preds from copper produced in Chile, net of allowat#ductions, sold on or after January 1,
2017, is owned by the Company.
Gold Hill

We own a sliding-scale production payment equiviaiera 2.0% NSR at a gold price above $350. Thaltpyontains a buyout provision of
$10.0 million as well as an advanced minimum payrpeovision; all payments are a reduction to thedut price.

The property is located adjacent to the Round Maiargold mine, (a 50/50 joint venture between Késrand Barrick), 60 miles north of
Tonopah in Nye County, Nevada. The Gold Hill prapés 4 miles north of the Round Mountain gold miaed encompasses 108 mining
claims.
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Reserve Information

Table 1 below summarizes proven and probable resdor gold, silver, copper, zinc and lead thatehlagen reported to us by the operatol
our royalty interests as of December 31, 2006.9@leafer to pages 30-31 for the footnotes to Table

TABLE 1

Summary of Proven and Probable Gold Reserves Subj&ur Royalties!2)
As of December 31, 2006

Average Golc Gold Containec

Tons Grade Ounces

Royalty Operatot Category (millions) (ounces per tor (millions) @
Pipeline GSR:® Barrick Proven 10.7¢ 0.04: 0.46¢€
Probabl 56.3¢€ 0.02¢ 1.632
Pipeline GSR® Barrick Proven 2.3¢2 0.01¢€ 0.037
Probablt 13.1% 0.01¢ 0.19:-
Pipeline GSR{®) Barrick Proven 13.1Z 0.03¢ 0.50:
Probablt 69.5¢ 0.02¢ 1.82:
Pipeline NVR1@® Barrick Proven 9.5t 0.02¢ 0.27¢
Probabl 52.71 0.02¢ 1.27:
SJ Claims®) Barrick Reserve 60.5¢ 0.13:Z 7.971
Leeville North(®) Newmont Probable 5.1¢F 0.45¢ 2.33¢
Leeville South() Newmont Proven 0.0z 0.31( 0.00¢
Bald Mountain®) Barrick Reserve 51.4¢ 0.03¢ 2.02¢
Robinson Quadra Proven 129.6¢ 0.00¢ 1.00(¢
Probablt 5.27 0.00¢ 0.03¢
Mulatos Alamos Proven 8.21 0.05¢ 0.48:
Probablt 35.57 0.04¢ 1.57¢
Pefiasquito (oxide(8.9.18) Goldcorp  Proven 46.41] 0.00¢ 0.28:
Probablt 75.2¢ 0.00¢ 0.367
Peflasquito (sulfide (8.9.18) Goldcorp  Proven 470.5% 0.017 7.85¢
Probablt 419.0¢ 0.011 4.54¢
Pascu-Lama(®:10) Barrick Proven 38.2: 0.05: 2.02¢
Probablt 352.7¢ 0.04z 14.95¢
Taparko TE-GSR1(8.11) High Proven — — —
River Probabl 9.51 0.08:i 0.83(
Taparko TE-GSR2(6.11) High Proven — — —
River Probable 9.51 0.08i 0.83(

Gold Hill 812) Kinross Reserve
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TABLE 1 (Continued)
Summary of Proven and Probable Silver Reserves8utsj Our Royaltie§13)

As of December 31, 2006

Silver
Average Silvel Containec
Tons Grade Ounces
Royalty Operator Category (millions) (ounces per tor (millions) ®)
Troy 497.0% GSF Revett Reserve 9.0: 1.1¢4 10.32:¢
6.1% GSFk Revett Reserve 1.7¢ 1.14 2.04¢
2.0% GSFk Revett Reserve 1.22 1.14 1.39¢
Martha(9) Coeur (Alene Proven 0.0z 78.7( 2.64¢
Probabl 0.0¢ 61.5Z 4.93(
Pefasquito (oxide(®.9.18) Goldcorp Proven 46.41 0.61 28.24+
Probabli  75.2¢ 0.4¢ 36.06!
Peflasquito (sulfide (8.9.18) Goldcorp Proven  470.5% 0.9¢ 466.99:
Probabli  419.0¢ 0.7¢ 332.56:
Summary of Proven and Probable Copper Reserveg&ubjOur Royaltie§15)
As of December 31, 2006
Coppet
Average Coppe Containec
Tons Grade Pounds
Royalty Operatol Category (millions) (% Cu) (millions) @)
Troy 147.0% Revett Reserve 7.8¢ 0.54 85
6.1% Reserve 1.5¢ 0.54 17
2.0% Reserve 2.7z 0.54 29
Robinson Quadre Proven 129.6¢ 0.6¢ 1,78
Probabli 5.27 0.7z 77
Summary of Proven and Probable Zinc Reserves Subj&ur Royalties! 16)
As of December 31, 2006
Zinc
Average Zinc Containec
Tons Grade Pounds
Royalty Operatol Category (millions) (% Zn) (millions) @)
Pefiasquito (sulfide (8.9.18) Goldcorf  Proven 470.57 0.7¢ 7,36:
Probabl 419.0¢ 0.6t 5,44~
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TABLE 1 (Continued)

Summary of Proven and Probable Lead Reserves $ubjeur Royaltie$!:17)
As of December 31, 2006

Lead
Average Zinc Containec
Tons Grade Pounds
Royalty Operatol Category (millions) (% Pb) (millions) @)
Pefiasquito (sulfide (8.9.18) Goldcorf  Proven 470.57 0.3¢ 3,43¢
Probabli 419.0¢ 0.2¢ 2,44

Footnotes to Table 1

(Y

@

(©)

4)
®)
(6)
0]
®)

Set forth below are the definitions of proven andbable reserves used by the U.S. Securitie€aadange Commission. Some of our
royalty operators are Canadian issuers. Their diefits of “mineral reserve,” “proven mineral resehand “probable mineral reserve”
conform to the Canadian Institute of Mining, Metiadly and Petroleum definitions of these terms ab®kffective date of estimation as
required by National Instrument 43-101 of the Céma&ecurities Administrators. The Canadian defing of “reserve,” “proven
(measured) reserv” and“probable (indicated) resery’ are different than those used by the SEC, whicldafi@ed below

“Reserve” is that part of a mineral depositethtould be economically and legally extractedrodpced at the time of the reserve
determinatior.

“Proven (Measured) Reserves” are reserves lfiichw(a) quantity is computed from dimensions réae@n outcrops, trenches, workings
or drill holes, and the grade is computed fromrésilts of detailed sampling, and (b) the sitesrfepection, sampling and measurement
are spaced so closely and the geologic characserigell defined that the size, shape, depth ame:rai content of the reserves are well
established

“Probable (Indicated) Reserves” are reservew/foch the quantity and grade are computed frdimrimation similar to that used for
proven (measured) reserves, but the sites for atigpe sampling and measurement are farther apanteootherwise less adequately
spaced. The degree of assurance of probable (tadiceeserves, although lower than that for praveeasured) reserves, is high enough
to assume geological continuity between pointshseovation

Gold reserves were calculated by the variousaipes at the following per ounce price: $400 — Tepa$475 — Cortez Pipeline and
South Pipeline, SJ Claims, Bald Mountain, and Pad@ama; $500 — Leeville, Robinson and Mulatos; $5Pefiasquito; and $535 —
Cortez Gap

“Contained ounces” or “contained pounds” do aetinto account losses in processing the oreafaunts shown are 100% of the
reserves subject to our royalty intere

GSR1, GSR2 and NVR1 reserves are a subset ofsbeves covered by GSFk

The operator at SJ and Bald Mountain did not preddreakdown of proven and probable rese
Only probable reserves are reported by the opefatdreeville North.

Only proven reserves are reported by the operatdrdeville South

Development stage proper
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®)  Operator reported reserve estimates by defypss. An oxide deposit is one in which the oxidaarals predominate. A sulfide deposit
is one in which the sulfide minerals predomin

(10)  Royalty applies to all gold production from aeaiof interest in Chile. According to Barrick’s Haraciones technical report dated
March 30, 2005, approximately 80% of these reseavedocated in Chile

1)  TB-GSR1 and TB-GSR2 royalties apply to producfimm the same reserve. In July 2007, High Riveroamced initial gold
production.

(12)  Round Mountain Gold Corporation’s Gold Hill reges are not separately detailed in their publielgilable financial reports. However,
Barrick stated in its September 2006 Nevada Mingr poesentation titled “Barrick in Nevada,” postattheir website, that as of
December 31, 2005, there were 375,000 containedesun reserves that represent their 50% shateeqirbject. They did not indicate
whether the reserves were proven or prob:

13)  Silver reserves were calculated by the operaib$i1.00 per ounce for Troy, $10.00 per ouncé/fartha and $7.00 per ounce for
Pefiasquito.

(14)  Due to the royalty structure at the Troy mine, resg cannot be broken down into proven and prob
(15)  Copper reserves were calculated by the operat&2.60 per pound for Troy and $1.15 for Robins
(16)  Zinc reserves were calculated by the operator &0H0er pounc

17  Lead reserves were calculated by the operator.40%r pounc

(18)  Goldcorp revised its December 31, 2006, resestienates in June 2007. The reserve amounts shdiestrthe June 2007 updates by
Goldcorp.

(19 Coeur d’Alene revised its December 31, 2006, ruesestimates in June 2007. The reserve amountgnstedlect the June 2007 updates
by Coeur ' Alene.
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Table 2 below summarizes additional mineralizafamgold, silver, copper, lead and zinc which haeen reported to us by the operators of
our royalty interests as of December 31, 2006.9eleafer to page 34 for the footnotes to Table 2.

TABLE 2

Gold Additional Mineralization Subject to Our Rogras ()
As of December 31, 2006

Average Golc

Additional Mineralizes Tons Grade
Royalty Operatot Material 1.2) (millions) (ounces per tor
Measurec® 2.4¢ 0.03(
Indicated® 9.62 0.03:
Pipeline GSR:) Barrick Inferred( 2.4C 0.01¢
Measurec@) 5.6¢ 0.041
Indicated® 15.1¢ 0.04:
Pipeline GSR:®) Barrick Inferred( 0.04 0.03¢
Measurec® 8.17 0.03¢
Indicated® 24.7¢ 0.03¢
Pipeline GSR®®) Barrick Inferred®.4) 2.44 0.01¢
Measurec® 6.3¢ 0.04(
Indicated® 19.01 0.04(
Pipeline NVR1®) Barrick Inferred( 1.8¢ 0.01¢
Measurec® — —
Indicated® — —
Leeville North Newmont Inferred @ 1.44 0.37:
Measurec® 0.0z 0.30(
Indicated® — —
Leeville Soutr Newmont Inferred® — —
Measured &
Indicated® 7.64 0.03¢
Bald Mountain Barrick Inferred @ — —
Measurec® 12.7¢ 0.04:
Indicated® 82.4¢ 0.03¢
Mulatos 45 Alamos Inferred® — —
Measurec®) 8.71 0.00z
Indicated® 38.2¢ 0.00:
Pefiasquito (oxide(©.7.9) Goldcorp Inferred(@ 45.1¢ 0.00¢
Measurec®) 109.2¢ 0.00¢
Indicated®) 591.7: 0.00¢
Pefiasquito (sulfide(©.7.9) Goldcorp Inferred®) 1,299.6: 0.007%
Measurec
Indicated
Martha(®) Coeur ¢ Alene Inferred
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TABLE 2 (Continued)

Silver Additional Mineralization Subject to Our Raities(®)
As of December 31, 2006

Average Silvel

Additional Mineralizet Tons Grade
Royalty Operator Material (1.2) (millions) (ounces per tor
Measurec 35.1¢ 1.4¢
Indicated@ 10.0¢ 0.9¢
Troy Revett Inferred@ — —
Measurec
Indicated@
Martha(®) Coeur ( Alene Inferred(@
Measurec® 8.71 0.2C
Indicated@ 38.2¢ 0.21
Pefiasquito (oxide(©.7.9) Goldcorp Inferred@ 45.1¢ 0.3¢
Measurec®? 109.2¢ 0.6-
Indicated@ 591.7: 0.5¢
Pefiasquito (sulfide(©.7.9) Goldcorp Inferred( 1,299.6: 0.3¢

Copper Additional Mineralization Subject to Our Rdties(®
As of December 31, 2006

Additional Mineralize« Tons Average Coppe
Royalty Operato Material .2) (millions) Grade (%’
Measurec? 35.1¢ 0.7z
Indicated@) 10.0¢ 0.3¢
Troy Revett Inferred( — —
Lead Additional Mineralization Subject to Our Rayes (1)
As of December 31, 2006
Average Leac
Additional Mineralize: Tons Grade
Royalty Operatot Material (1.2) (millions) (%)
Measurec? 109.2¢ 0.24
Indicated®) 591.7: 0.2C
Peflasquito (sulfide(©.7.9) Goldcorf  Inferred® 1,299.6: 0.07
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Royalty

TABLE 2 (Continued)

Zinc Additional Mineralization Subject to Our Rotiak ()
As of December 31, 2006

Additional Mineralize: Tons Average Zinc Grad
Operatol Material .2) (millions) (%)

Measurec®? 109.2¢ 0.67
Indicated®@ 591.7: 0.5t

Peflasquito (sulfide(©.7.9) Goldcorf  Inferred® 1,299.6. 0.5C

Footnotes to Table 2

@

@

®
Q)
®)
(6)
)

®)

©)

NOTE:

Additional mineralized material is that partsomineral system that has potential economic Bigmice but cannot be included in
the proven and probable ore reserve estimatesfurttier drilling and metallurgical work is compdet and until other economic
and technical feasibility factors based upon suolkwhave been resolved. The U.S. Securities antidhge Commission does not
recognize this term. Investors are cautioned nassume that any part or all of the mineral depasithis category will ever be
converted into reserve

Some of our royalty operators are Canadiareissand report “additional mineralized materialtlantheir definitions of “mineral
resource,” “measured mineral resource,” “indicatéderal resource” and “inferred mineral resouragfijch conform to the
Canadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Pet¢urin definitions of those terms as of the effectlate of estimation, as required
by National Instrument 43-101 of the Canadian SgearAdministrators. Mineral resources which ao¢ mineral reserves do not
have economic viability. Canadian issuers useghms “mineral resources” and its subcategories Swesl,” “indicated” and
“inferred” mineral resources. While such terms m@eognized and required by Canadian regulatioesUtls. Securities and
Exchange Commission does not recognize them. lorseate cautioned not to assume that any part of #le mineral deposits in

these categories will ever be converted into resse

GSR1, GSR2 and NVR1 additional mineralized mataniala subset of the additional mineralized mdteageered by GSR?
The Compan's royalty is subject to a 2.0 million ounce capgoid production

Cut-off grade of 0.015 ounces per

Development stage proper

Operator has reported estimates by deposistyle oxide deposit is one in which the oxide mat@predominate. A sulfide
deposit is one in which the sulfide minerals preiate.

Coeur d’Alene revised its December 31, 2008emee estimates in June 2007. Coeddehe did not provide additional mineraliz
material updates during its June 2007 revisi

Goldcorp revised its December 31, 2006, additionineralized estimates in June 2007. The amalawn reflect the June 2007
updates by Goldcor

Additional mineralized material was not reportedtiy operators for SJ Clai-Goldstrike, Robinson, Taparko, and Pa-Lama.
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Royalties on Exploration Stage Properties

The following are descriptions of our interestsagalties on inactive or exploration stage propsttiThere are no proven and probable
reserves associated with these properties afirinds t

Mule Canyon

We own a 5.0% NSR royalty on a portion of the MGkEnyon property located in Lander County, Nevagpraximately 12 miles southeast
of Battle Mountain, Nevada. This property is coliéd by Newmont.

Buckhorn South Project

We own a 16.5% NPI royalty on the Buckhorn Soutbjgmt. The Buckhorn South project, controlled by @ortez Joint Venture, is
approximately 5,000 acres and is located in Eutadanty, Nevada, approximately 50 miles southwe&lkd, Nevada, and approximately
two miles south of Buckhorn mine.

Long Valley

We own a 1.0% NSR royalty on the Long Valley gotdject 10 miles east of Mammoth Lakes, Califorfiiae project is a claim group
consisting of 95 claims. The project is controllsdVista Gold Corporation.

RG Russia

On June 20, 2003, through a newly formed wholly-e&subsidiary, RG Russia, Inc., we entered intaggeement for exploration in Russia
with a subsidiary of Phelps Dodge Exploration Coation, who holds an exploration license grantedhgyRussian government. As part of
the exploration agreement, we provided explorafimaling totaling $1.3 million to vest in a 1.0% N$®&alty interest. On May 3, 2005, the
subsidiary of Phelps Dodge Exploration Corporagatered into an agreement with Fortress Mineralp@ation (“Fortress”), whereby
Fortress acquired a 51% indirect interest in thetlBye project, with an option to earn an additi®86 indirect interest by completion of
certain work requirements. Our 1.0% NSR royaltyaema in effect as to 100% of the project. Fortisszctively exploring the property.

Taranis Resources Inc.

On November 4, 2005, we entered into two Exploratiod Earn-In Agreements (the “Agreements”) withafidgs Resources Inc. (“Taranis”)
with respect to its exploration program in FinlaAd.part of the first Agreement, we will obtain #2 NSR royalty and future earn-in rights
on any new property acquired by Taranis in Finlaaa result of its regional exploration prograneaBe see Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements for a discussion on our fug@iommitments as part of the Agreements.

Argentine Royalties

Hidefield controls properties located in the eastmart of the Santa Cruz Province, Argentina, wiaighnot in production. We own a 2.0%
NSR royalty on these properties, which have betimedg explored during our fiscal year 20(
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Simon Creek

We own a 1.0% NSR royalty on the Simon Creek pityp@ihe Simon Creek property is located in Eurekaii@@y, Nevada, and is controlled
by Barrick.

Horse Mountain

We own a 0.25% net value royalty on the Horse Maumproperty. The Horse Mountain property is loddteLander County, Nevada, and is
controlled by Barrick.

Ferris/Cooks Creek

We own a 1.50% net value royalty interest on ne¢mees derived from the Ferris/Cooks Creek propeitych is located in Lander County,
Nevada, and is controlled by Barric

Rye
We own a 0.5% NSR royalty on the Rye property. Rige property is located in Pershing County, Nevadd, is controlled by Barrick.

BSC
We own a 2.5% NSR royalty on the BSC property. BB& property is located in Elko County, Nevada, sntbntrolled by Nevada Pacific
Gold.
ICBM

We own a 0.75% NSR royalty on a vested 67% intdeggiroximate) on the ICBM project, located in Lan@ounty and Humboldt County,
Nevada. The ICBM project is currently under expliomalease to Staccato Gol*Staccato”).

Long Peak

We own a 0.75% NSR royalty on the Long Peak projectited in Lander County, Nevada. The Long Peajept is currently under
exploration lease to Staccato.

Dixie Flats

We own a 0.75% NSR royalty on the Dixie Flats pegjéocated in EIko County, Nevada. We continubatd 1,280 acres of patented land
through an exploration agreement at the Dixie Ryadgect. The Dixie Flats project is currently uné&ploration lease to Staccato.

36




Table of Contents

Exploration Properties

Sparrow Hawk Claims

We own 31 unpatented mining claims from Quicksiltéenomenon, LLC on lands located southeast dCtheez Joint Venture area, Eureka
County, Nevada. There are no reserves or resoigtertfied on this project as of June 30, 2007.

Hoosac Project

We own 16 unpatented claims and control 192 unpaderiaims through leases in the Hoosac project.Hdosac project is located in Eure
County, Nevada. The Hoosac project is not curramtiger exploration lease.

Bulgarian Exploration

We own a 50% interest in Greek American Exploratitch, a Bulgarian private limited company that basagreement with the Bulgarian
Committee of Geology and Mineral Resources to condeological research and exploration on a licém&ulgaria.

Greek American Exploration joined with Phelps Do#iggloration Corporation to form a Bulgarian compaamed Sofia Minerals Ltd.
Sofia Minerals is held equally by Greek AmericarpiBxation and Phelps Dodge Exploration. There waexploration activity during fiscal
year 2007 and Sofia Minerals does not currentlyl laoly concession agreements with the Bulgarian Gtrerof Geology and Miner:
Resources. There were no expenses incurred id fisaa2007. We are currently in discussions whiih dther owners of the companies to
determine appropriate actions to dissolve the Bidgacompanies.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Casmalia Resources Hazardous Waste Disposal Site

In September 2002, the Company settled a claimdbriooly the United States Environmental Protectigercy (“EPA”) against Royal Gold
and 92 other potentially responsible parties. ERAg#m was based on the alleged disposal durin@ 398 1984 of so-called hazardous
petroleum exploration wastes at the Casmalia Ressuiazardous Waste Site by the company’s predec&syal Resources, Inc. Although
the company had effectively settled its federdlility regarding the Casmalia Site through a deimis settlement and did not expect to incur
any additional costs in connection with the Site, State of California on October 1, 2002, notifieel Company and the other parties who
participated in the EPA settlement that it wouldlst recover response costs allegedly incurretthéystate at the Casmalia Site. At the time
the claim was made, we did not know and could nedigt the amount of estimated costs the State dveek to recover. We knew, however,
that the State would likely agree to allocate resaility for the Site among the parties on a voédnt basis. In that case, the company’s
portion of the liability would be approximately @8% of any settlement amount.

At present, Royal Gold is considering entering iatde minimis settlement with the State of Califarhis settlement offer must be accepted
on or before September 14, 2007, unless an exteisgpught and granted. Such settlement will tésid final conclusion regarding the
Company’s responsibility to address the Casmatia i8atter.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of our sectdtgders during the quarter ended June 30, 2005ulRerom our annual meeting will |
described in Part Il, Iltem 4 of our report thatl\wi filed on Form 10-Q for the quarter ending Deber 31, 2007.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information and Current Stockholders

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Globak8eMarket (‘“NASDAQ”) under the symbol “RGLD” anchdhe Toronto Stock
Exchange under the symbol “RGL.” The following talskts forth, for each of the quarterly periodsciaieéd, the range of high and low sales
prices, in U.S. dollars, for the Common Stock onSYDRAQ, for each quarter since July 1, 2004.

Sales Price
Fiscal Year: High Low
2005 First Quarter (July, Aug., Sef— 2004) $17.11 $12.3(
Second Quarter (Oct., Nov., D& 2004) $19.0¢ $14.9¢
Third Quarter (Jan., Feb., Mar— 2005) $19.9¢ $15.3¢
Fourth Quarter (April, May, Jur— 2005) $20.5( $15.9¢
2006 First Quarter (July, Aug., Sef— 2005) $30.2( $18.7¢
Second Quarter (Oct., Nov., De 2005) $35.6¢ $20.9¢
Third Quarter (Jan., Feb., Mar— 2006) $41.6¢ $27.01
Fourth Quarter (April, May, Jur— 2006) $37.5( $23.0(
2007 First Quarter (July, Aug., Sej- 2006) $31.82 $25.67
Second Quarter (Oct., Nov., De 2006) $37.5( $24.1:
Third Quarter (Jan., Feb., Mar— 2007) $36.5( $29.31
Fourth Quarter (April, May, Jur—2007) $30.8i $23.2¢

As of August 15, 2007, there were 715 shareholoerscord of our common stock.

Dividends

We have paid a cash dividend on our common stac&doh calendar year beginning in calendar yead.200r board of directors has
discretion in determining whether to declare adbwid based on a number of factors including priempdold prices, economic market
conditions and funding requirements for future apyities or operations.

For calendar year 2007, we announced an annualedhidiof $0.26 per share of common stock, payakfieuinquarterly payments of $0.065
each. The first payment of $0.065 per share wasrnadlanuary 19, 2007, to shareholders of recarhbs¢ of business on January 5, 2007.
The second payment of $0.065 per share was maderilr20, 2007, to shareholders of record at theselof business on
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April 5, 2007. The third payment of $0.065 per shanas made on July 20, 2007, to shareholders ofdeat the close of business on July 6,
2007. We anticipate paying the fourth payment 0068 per share on October 19, 2007, to sharehotdeexord at the close of business on
October 5, 2007.

For calendar year 2006, we paid an annual dividé®D.22 per share of common stock, in four qubrigayments of $0.055 each. We paid
the first payment of $0.055 per share on Januar2@06, to shareholders of record at the closaisiness on January 6, 2006. We paid the
second payment of $0.055 per share on April 2162@0shareholders of record at the close of bssioa April 7, 2006. We paid the third
payment of $0.055 per share on July 28, 2006 tcesloéders of record at the close of business ondu2006. We paid the fourth payment of
$0.055 per share on October 20, 2006, to sharetsotdeecord at the close of business on Octob2066.

For calendar year 2005, we paid an annual dividéi$.20 per share of common stock, in four qubrteayments of $0.05 each. We paid
first payment of $0.05 per share on January 2152@0shareholders of record at the close of bgsioa January 7, 2005. We paid the second
payment of $0.05 per share on April 22, 2005, #rsholders of record at the close of business ail 8,2005. We paid the third payment of
$0.05 per share on July 22, 2005 to shareholdenecofd at the close of business on July 8, 2005 p¥id the fourth payment of $0.05 per
share on October 21, 2005, to shareholders of desttathe close of business on October 7, 2005.

We currently plan to pay dividends on a calendair y&sis, subject to the discretion of our boardictors. However, our board of directors
may determine not to declare a dividend basedrmmaber of factors including the gold price, econoarid market conditions, and the
financial needs of opportunities that might aris¢hie future.

Sales of Unregistered Securities

We did not make any unregistered sales of our gexsiduring the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Selected Statements of Operations Data

For The Years Ended June .

Amounts in thousands, except per share 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Royalty revenut $48,35’ $28,38( $25,30: $21,35:¢ $15,78¢
Costs of operation 3,26¢ 2,28¢ 1,847 1,51: 1,34t
General and administrative expel 5,82¢ 5,022 3,69¢ 2,92¢ 1,96¢
Exploration and business developm 2,49: 3,391 1,89: 1,392 1,23:
Depreciation, depletion and amortizati 8,26¢ 4,261 3,20t 3,31« 2,85t
Impairment of mining asse — — — — 16€
Current and deferred tax exper 9,54¢ 5,101 4,10z 3,654 1,88¢
Net income $19,72( $11,35( $11,45¢ $ 8,87: $ 6,752
Basic earnings per she $ 0.7¢ $ 0.5 $ 0.5¢ $ 0.4 $ 0.3¢
Diluted earnings per sha $ 0.7¢ $ 0.4¢ $ 0.54 $ 0.4z $ 0.3
Dividends declared per she $ 0.2¢ $ 0.22 $ 0.2C $ 0.1F $ 0.1C

Selected Balance Sheet Data

Amounts in thousanc 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Total asset $356,64¢ $171,76" $102,15¢ $93,21°¢ $80,90¢
Working capital 90,99¢ 81,45: 53,33( 49,46( 34,29¢
Note payable 15,75( — — — —
Other lon¢-term liabilities 98 98 97 108 118
Net deferred tax liabilitie 5,911 6,68: 7,42¢ 7,772 3,29
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion provides information th@nagement believes is relevant to an assessménnaerstanding of the consolidated
financial condition and results of operation of Bbgold and its subsidiaries. This discussion agkle matters we consider important for an
understanding of our financial condition and resofltoperations as of and for the three fiscal yeaded June 30, 2007.

Overview

Royal Gold, together with its subsidiaries, is egaghin the business of acquiring and managing pusanetals royalties. Royalties are
passive (non-operating) interests in mining prajeat provide the right to revenue or productiamt the project after deducting specified
costs, if any.

We seek to acquire existing royalties or to finapogects that are in production or near produciioexchange for royalty interests. We also
fund exploration on properties thought to contaiecpus metals and seek to obtain royalties aneratarried ownership interests in such
properties through the subsequent transfer of tipgranterests to other mining companies. Substiintall of our revenues are and will be
expected to be derived from royalty interests. Wedt conduct mining operations at this time. Dgriine 2007 fiscal year, we focused on the
management of our existing royalty interests, ttaguisition of royalty interests, and the creatiémayalty interests through financing and
strategic exploration alliances.

Our financial results are primarily tied to thegeriof gold and other metals, as well as produdtiom our royalty properties. During the 2007
fiscal year, the price of gold averaged $638 perceicompared with an average price of $527 pereftorahe 2006 fiscal year. Payments
received from the recently acquired Robinson andhlds royalties, along with an increase in prodarctt the Leeville Mining Complex and
the Troy mine contributed to royalty revenue of 34@illion during the fiscal year ended June 3M2@ompared to royalty revenue of
$28.4 million during the fiscal year ended JuneZm6.

Please see Part |, Item 1, Business, and Pagnh, 2t Properties, of this Annual Report on FornKifor discussion on Royal Gold’s
producing, development stage and exploration staggdty interests.

Royalty Acquisitions

Pefiasquito

On January 23, 2007, we acquired a 2.0% NSR royatityest on the Pefiasquito project located irStiage of Zacatecas, Mexico, from
Kennecott Exploration Company, a Delaware corpomatand Minera Kennecott S.A. de C.V., a compauoygriporated under the laws of
Mexico for $80 million in cash and 577,434 shareswr common stock. We also obtained the rightcguére any or all of a group of NSR
royalties ranging from 1.0% to 2.0% on various ottencessions in the same region. On April 27, 20@7notified Kennecott Exploration
Company of our intention to acquire the royaltiescertain of these concessions. We expect to caenple acquisition of these royalties for
nominal consideration during the first quarterie€al 2008. Our right to acquire the royalties identified in our notice expired on May 1,
2007.

The Peflasquito project is composed of two main siépoalled Pefiasco and Chile Colorado and is uthelazlopment by a subsidiary of
Goldcorp. The Pefiasquito project hosts a very lailger, gold and zinc reserve while also contagrisrge lead reserves. The Pefiasquito
project is currently under construction
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and the operator expects to commence initial prisginin mid-calendar 2008, with full production eqted in calendar 2012.

Pascui-Lama

On March 9, 2007, we, through RGCL a newly-formgHolly-owned Chilean subsidiary acquired an NSRisti-scale royalty on gold whic
is derived from certain mineral concessions atfthscua-Lama project located in Chile for $20.5iamill Barrick, through its subsidiaries,
owns the Pascua-Lama project, and is targetinguotaxh to commence in calendar year 2010. The aittpni also includes an NSR royalty
on copper from reserves located in Chile sold aftewary 1, 2017.

Gold Hill

On December 8, 2006, Royal Gold paid $3.3 milloMNevada Star Resource Corp. in exchange for mgigtale NSR royalty and certain
unpatented mining claims on the Gold Hill depoEfte Gold Hill deposit, located just north of theuRd Mountain gold mine in Nye County,
Nevada, is controlled by Round Mountain Gold Cogpion (‘Round Mountain Gold”), a joint venture between sidiaries of Kinross, the
operator, and Barrick. Production on the Gold Héposit is expected to commence once permittiegnspleted and equipment from the
Round Mountain pit becomes available.

Other developments

Please also see the “Liquidity and Capital Resairsection below within this Item 7 for discussioinour underwritten offering of common
stock and our amended bank loan.

Proposed Acquisition of Battle Mountain Gold Exjpliion Corp.

On July 30, 2007, we entered into an Amended arstiafRel Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “MergereAment”) with Battle Mountain
Battle Mountain and Royal Battle Mountain, Inc. @kder Sub”), a newly-formed and wholly-owned sulasidof Royal Gold. The Merger
Agreement amends and restates the Agreement anaPléerger dated as of April 17, 2007 by and amBogal Gold, Battle Mountain and
the Merger Sub pursuant to which Merger Sub wilhierged into Battle Mountain with Battle Mountaumgving as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Royal Gold (the “Merger”).

Under the Merger Agreement, each outstanding shfaBattle Mountain common stock will be convertatbithe right to receive, at the
election of each Battle Mountain stockholder, qitfiea number of shares of Royal Gold common stodie determined at closing (“Stock
Election”) or (ii) approximately $0.55 in cash (“€laElection”), in each case assuming 91,563,506 stat Battle Mountain common stock
will be issued and outstanding immediately priothe effective time of the merger. The per sharesicteration, if a holder of Battle Mount:
common stock makes a Stock Election, will be basethe average price per share of Royal Gold comstmek as reported on the NASDAQ
Global Select Market for the five trading day pédrigp to and including the second business day giregé€but not including) the closing date
of the merger transaction. If the average prideelsw $29.00, the per share stock considerationbeidetermined based on an aggregate of
1,634,410 shares of Royal Gold common stock anthdktaers of shares of Battle Mountain common steokld receive 0.0179 shares of
Royal Gold common stock for each share of BattleiMain common stock. If the average price of R@ald common stock is $30.18 or
above, the per share stock consideration will ierdgned based on an aggregate of 1,570,507 sbBRasyal Gold common stock and the
holders of shares of Battle Mountain common stookilel receive 0.0172 shares of Royal Gold commocksfior each share of Battle
Mountain common stock. If the average price is &wovequal to $29.00 but less than $30.18, thepé¢hshare consideration for each share
of Battle Mountain common stock would be
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proportionally adjusted based on the average pfi€&yal Gold common stock, using $47,397,901.2thasaggregate purchase price. The
per share consideration if a holder of Battle Maimtommon stock makes a Cash Election will be dhasea maximum amount of
$50,359,928 as the aggregate purchase price.

The stock consideration and cash considerationlppaya the Merger are subject to pro rata adjustrbased on the number of issued and
outstanding shares of Battle Mountain common stockediately prior to the effective time of the Mergand a potential reduction or
holdback of approximately 0.0006 shares of Roydtl@ommon stock on a per share basis, in the das&tock Election, or $0.017 on a per
share basis, in the case of a Cash Election, lmas#te cost of settling certain Battle Mountairghtion.

Royal Gold, Battle Mountain and BMGX (Barbados) ganation (with Battle Mountain, the “Borrowers”)aBle Mountain’s wholly-owned
subsidiary, entered into the First Amendment toBhHdge Facility Agreement (the “First AmendmentThe First Amendment amends the
March 28, 2007, Bridge Facility Agreement by ancdbamRoyal Gold and the Borrowers whereby Royal Ggjceed to make available to the
Borrowers a bridge finance facility of up to $20lan. In April 2007, the maximum availability undéhe bridge finance facility was reduced
to $15 million. Outstanding principal, interest agenses under the bridge facility may be condeateRoyal Gold’s option into Battle
Mountain common stock, at a conversion price paresif $0.60 at any time during the term of théldpeifacility, provided that Royal Gold
notifies Battle Mountain of its election to convert or before April 4, 2008. The bridge facilitylwnature on June 6, 2008. Please see Ni

of the notes to consolidated financial statememt$urther detail regarding the bridge finance ligci

Internal Review of Stock Option Matte

On December 12, 2006, a Wall Street Journal antaiked the topic that certain officers of publienpanies, including the chairman of the
Company, may have backdated the exercise of cestdireir options based on the frequency of exescxcurring on dates with low trading
prices during the month of exercise. Promptly aftarning of the story, the chairman of the Compadhyised the board of directors’ audit
committee regarding the matter. The audit committee initiated a voluntary review and retainedeipeindent counsel to assist in its review
of stock option practices. On February 7, 2007 jiidependent counsel made its final report to tiditaaommittee of its findings.

The principal findings of that report were as falk

. The review of stock option exercise informati@mvered the period from 1990 to 2002. The reviewntbno evidence that the
Company had a policy or sanctioned practice of fieng backdating of stock option exercise da

. Independent counsel was unable to concludetikattional backdating of stock option exercise slarurred, or to rule out the
possibility that such intentional backdating didac Counsel found several instances in which turpent officers and several forn
officers of the Company (and two instances in wiadbrmer outside director) exercised stock optiomshe day or days when the
trading price for the Compa’s common stock during the month of exercise wag#h

. Independent counsel found that the conduct of tineent president and chief executive officer, cffigfncial officer, general couns
and controller is not implicated in any way in thsues that were subject of the revii
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. The review found no evidence that any currerfoamer officer’s conduct involved any effort to r@ad investors, to inaccurately
improve the financial results of the Company, ooldain any personal benefit at the expense o€tthrapany

. Independent counsel also reviewed the Compaiytk ®ption grant procedures since 1990. The re¥ewd no evidence that the
Compan’s stock option grant dates had been backd

. Independent counsel also found historical weakrseiss@aternal controls with respect to exercisstotk options and the stock opt
practices generally, but found that such histonesdiknesses in internal controls have been reneetli&ince 2002, internal controls
regarding the Compa’s stock option practices have been substantiatiyaged.

The Company has concluded that there is no taimandéial statement impact resulting from the revihits stock option exercise and grant
practices.

Operators’ Production Estimates by Royalty for Calendar 2007

The following table shows estimates received framdperators of our producing mines during the §tearter of calendar 2007 indicating
production attributable to our royalty interests dalendar year 2007. The estimates are preparétehyperators of the mining properties.

do not participate in the preparation or verifioatof the operators’ estimates and have not indigretty assessed or verified the accuracy of
such information. See Part I, Item IA, “Risk FasteiEstimates of production by the operators of mimeshich we have royalty interests are
subject to changéof this Annual Report on Form 10-K for furtherteg.

Operators’ Production Estimate by Royalty for Cden2007 and Reported Production for the period
January 1, 2007 through June 30, 2007

Reported Productio

Calendar 2007 Productic through

Royalty Operatol Metal Estimate June 30, 2002
Pipeline GSR: Barrick  Gold 478,54: 0z. 238,92¢ oz.
Pipeline GSR: Barrick Gold 12,76: 0z. 7,647 oz.
Pipeline GSR: Barrick  Gold 491,30! 0z. 246,57 oz.
Pipeline NVR1 Barrick Gold 264,84: 0z. 149,28( oz.
Robinson(*.3) Quadre  Gold 90,00( oz. 54,84¢ oz.
SJ Claims Barrick Gold 799,16( 0z. 525,19: oz.
Leeville Newmont Gold 337,00( 0zZ. 97,36( oz.
Bald Mountain Barrick Gold 90,81: 0z. 46,10¢ oz.
Mulatos Alamos  Gold 150,39 0z. 56,95¢ oz.
Troy @ Revett Silver 2.0 million  oz. 677,74t oz.

Coeur Silver 2.7 million 0z. 1.4 million oz.
Martha® d Alene
Troy @ Revett Coppe 15.9 millior Ibs. 6.5 million Ibs.
Robinson(®) Quadre  Coppe 136.3 millior Ibs. 72.8 millior Ibs.

() Sold metal contained in concentre

@  Reported production relates to the amount of hsaties, subject to our royalty interests, forpeeod January 1, 2007 through June 30,
2007, as reported to us by the operators of thesr
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() In July 2007, Quadra revised its production estinfat calendar 2007 from 68,058 ounces of goldx®@0 ounces of gold. The reported
increase in estimated production was due to hititear planned grade and recove

(4) Recovered metal contained in concentr

Note: In July 2007, High River announced that tergect to produce approximately 35,000 ounces lof doring the remainder of calenc
2007.

The following table discloses historical productionthe properties that are subject to our royaidtgrests, as reported to us by the operators
of the mines, for the past three fiscal years:

Historical Productior!) by Royalty
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,

Royalty Metal 2007 2006 2005
Pipeline GSR: Gold 502,62t oz. 598,97: oz. 973,60: oz.
Pipeline GSR: Gold 7,647 oz. — —
Pipeline GSR: Gold 510,27: oz. 598,97: oz. 973,60: oz.
Pipeline NVR1 Gold 291,96: oz. 263,22 oz. 688,95 oz.
Robinson(@ Gold 80,60: oz. 13,08: oz. N/A
SJ Claims Gold 950,46: oz. 1.0 million oz. 531,34 oz.
Leeville Gold 230,45¢ oz. 83,69¢ oz. 93,18( oz.
Bald Mountain Gold 109,51! oz. 126,31° oz. 28,037 oz.
Mulatos(®) Gold 103,26: oz. 23,917 oz. N/A
Troy Silver 1.0 million oz. 884,52¢ oz. 522,14! oz.
Martha® Silver 2.9 million oz. 2.3 million oz. 1.8 million oz.
Troy Coppe 9.6 million Ibs. 7.1 million Ibs. 4.6 million Ibs.
Robinson(? Coppe  116.9 millior lbs. 27.2 millior Ibs. N/A

(1) Reported production relates to the amount of hseti@s, subject to our royalty interests, throdghe 30, 2007, as reported to us by the
operators of the mine

(@ The Robinson royalty was acquired during our figeslr 2006
() The Mulatos royalty was acquired during our fispedr 2006
@ Produced metal contained in concentr

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

On July 13, 2006, Financial Accounting StandardarBq“FASB”) Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48" Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes — An Interpretation of FASB Statement No., 1% issued. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting focertainty in income taxes recognized
in a company’s financial statements in accordanitie 8FAS 109. FIN 48 also prescribes a recognitimashold and measurement attribute
for the financial statement recognition and measerg of tax positions taken or expected to be takentax return. FIN 48 also provides
guidance on de-recognition, classification, inteegsl penalties, accounting in interim periodsgldsure, and transition. The provisions of
FIN 48 are effective for our fiscal year beginnihndy 1, 2007. The Company is evaluating the impiaetadoption of FIN 48 could have on
our financial statements; however, the Company dogégxpect the adoption of FIN 48 to have a makeffect on the Company’s financial
position or results of operations.
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In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement N .Fibr Value MeasurementsStatement No. 157 provides guidance for usingviaue
to measure assets and liabilities. Statement Nbapplies whenever other accounting standardsne@i permit) assets or liabilities to be
measured at fair value but does not expand thefusér value in any new circumstances. Under Statat No. 157, fair value refers to the
price that would be received to sell an asset @t fwatransfer a liability between participantglie market in which the reporting entity
transacts. In this standard, the FASB clarifiesghieciple that fair value should be based on #simptions market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability. The provisiamisStatement No. 157 are effective for our figesdr beginning July 1, 2008, and interim
periods within the fiscal year. The Company is satihg the impact, if any, the adoption of Statenidém 157 could have on our financial
statements.

Also in September 2006, the Securities and Exch&ugemission (“SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bultehlo. 108 (“SAB 108”)Financial
Statements — Considering the Effects of Prior Yéigstatements when Quantifying Misstatements imedaity ear Financial Statements.”
SAB 108 was issued in order to eliminate the ditgis practices surrounding how public companieamtify and evaluate the materiality of
financial statement misstatements. SAB 108 providasonce a current year misstatement has beenifigd, the guidance in Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 99Financial Statements — Materialifyshould be applied to determine whether the niistant is material and
should result in an adjustment to the financialesteents. SAB 108 is effective for the first fisgalhr ending after November 15, 2006. The
Company elected early application of SAB 108 duitaghird quarter ending March 31, 2007. PleaseNete 15 of the notes to consolidated
financial statements for the effect of the Compargdrly application of SAB 108.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No, ‘158e Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fingl Liabilities” , which allows
entities to choose to measure many financial ins¢nts and certain other items at fair value. StatgrNo. 159 is effective for the Compasy’
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2008. The Compargvizluating the impact, if any, the adoption of &ta¢nt No. 159 could have on our
financial statements.

Critical Accounting Policies

Listed below are the accounting policies that teenBany believes are critical to its financial sta¢eits due to the degree of uncertainty
regarding the estimates or assumptions involvedlamdhagnitude of the asset, liability, revenuexgense being reported.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of our financial statements, inffeonity with accounting principles generally acasgpin the United States of America,
requires management to make estimates and assasiplioese estimates and assumptions affect thetedpmmounts of assets and liabiliti
at the date of the financial statements, as wdl@seported amount of revenues and expensegydierreporting period.

Our most critical accounting estimates relate toamsumptions regarding future gold prices ancegtinates of reserves and recoveries of
third-party mine operators. We rely on reservenesties reported by the operators on the propertiedich we have royalty interests. These
estimates and the underlying assumptions affegbdibential impairments of long-lived assets andahidity to realize income tax benefits
associated with deferred tax assets. These essiraattassumptions also affect the rate at whicbhaege depreciation and amortization to
earnings. On an ongoing basis, management evaliltes estimates and assumptions; however, achamlrds could differ from these
estimates and assumptions.
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Royalty Interests in Mineral Properties

As of June 30, 2007, the net carrying value of ltyyiaterests in mineral properties was approxitya#215.8 million. Royalty interests in
mineral properties include acquired royalty intéses production stage, development stage and egdo stage properties. The fair value of
acquired royalty interests in mineral properties @apitalized as tangible assets when such inseleshot meet the definition of a financial
asset under the Financial Accounting Standard Be&HEASB”) Statement of Financial Account Standa(tiSFAS”) No. 140Accounting

for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets &xtinguishments of Liabilitie— a Replacements of FASB Statement No, b2%

derivative instrument under SFAS No. 138counting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirgivities.

Acquisition costs of production and developmengsteoyalty interests are depleted using the utigaduction method over the life of the
mineral property, which is estimated using proved probable reserves. Acquisition costs of royaitgrests on exploration stage mineral
properties, where there are no proven and prolvabirves, are not amortized. At such time as thecésted exploration stage mineral
interests are converted to proven and probablewesgethe cost basis is amortized over the remgilifie of the mineral property, using proy
and probable reserves. The carrying values of eafim stage mineral interests are evaluated fpairment at such time as information
becomes available indicating that the productidihmat occur in the future. Exploration costs ahbaiged to operations when incurred.

Royalty Revenue

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, we redemglty revenue of approximately $48.4 millioroyRilty revenue is recognized pursuant
to guidance in Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 1@evenue Recognition for Financial StatemeiRevenue is recognized in accordance with
the terms of the underlying royalty agreementsexttip (i) the pervasive evidence of the existesfabe arrangements; (ii) the risks and
rewards having been transferred; (iii) the royakyng fixed or determinable; and (iv) the colleiitiyp of the royalty being reasonably assur
For royalty payments received in gold, royalty mewe is recorded at the average spot price of gwlthe period in which the royalty was
earned.

Revenue recognized pursuant to the Robinson roggltgement is based upon 3 percent of revenuevegtby the operator of the mine,
Quadra, for the sale of minerals from the Robinsdme, reduced by certain costs incurred by Qua@uadra’s concentrate sales contracts
with third-party smelters, in general, provide &orinitial payment based upon provisional assagsqaioted metal prices at the date of
shipment. Final true up payments are subsequeadigdupon final assays and market metal pricemsaispecified future dates, typically
one to three months after the date the concerdratees at the third-party smelter (which generaltgurs three to six months after the
shipment date from the Robinson mine).

Royal Gold recognizes revenue under the Robinsgaitsoagreement based on amounts contractuallypdrsuant to the calculations above
for the underlying sale. As a result of pricingigéions in gold, silver and copper over the respecettiement period, royalty revenue
recognized on the Robinson royalty could be pasdliyior negatively impacted by any changes in nyataks, between the provisional and
final settlement periods.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

At June 30, 2007, we had current assets of $93libmcompared to current liabilities of $4.7 milhi for a current ratio of 20 to 1. This
compares to current assets of $84.7 million andeaaitiabilities of $3.3
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million at June 30, 2006, resulting in a curretioraf approximately 26 to 1. Our available castr@ased during the period primarily due to
net proceeds received from the issuance of comnoaok selated to our April 2007 equity offering, dissed below, of approximately
$121.9 million as well as proceeds received fromiisuance of common stock related to the exeofis®ck options of approximately

$0.6 million. These increases were partially offsetash paid for the acquisition of royalty intsein mineral properties, including
transaction costs, of approximately $120.8 milliaming the period. The decrease in the current iatdue primarily to an increase in our
accounts payable. The increase in accounts paigablee to an increase in our Nevada Net Proceed$‘MAPT”) payable, which is due to
an increase in royalty revenue from our Nevada gnttgs during the first six months of calendar 2007

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, liquideeds were met from $48.4 million in royalty eeues (including $1.7 million of minori
interest), net proceeds from issuance of commarkstlated to our April 2007 equity offering of apgimately $121.9 million, our available
cash resources and interest and other income 8frfilion. Also during our fiscal year ended Jurte 3007, total assets increased to
$356.6 million compared to $171.8 million at Jule 3006. The increase was primarily attributabléh®royalty acquisitions on the
Pefiasquito and Pascua-Lama projects for $99.1simaad common stock million and $20.9 million isltarespectively.

We believe that our current financial resourcesfands generated from operations will be adequat®aver anticipated expenditures for
general and administrative expense costs, expboratid business development costs, and capitahditpees for the foreseeable future. Our
current financial resources are also availabledgalty acquisitions and to fund dividends. Ourdeerm capital requirements are primarily
affected by our ongoing acquisition activitiesttie event of a substantial royalty or other acgjoisj we may seek additional debt or equity
financing opportunities.

Recent Liguidity and Capital Resource Developments

Equity Offering

In April 2007, we sold 4,000,000 shares of our camratock, at a price of $29.25 per share, resuitimgoceeds of approximately

$110.9 million, which is net of the underwritersscbunt of $5.6 million and transaction costs gfragimately $650,000. A portion of the net
proceeds in this equity offering was used to rethayoutstanding balance under our revolving crieditity with HSBC Bank USA, National
Association (“HSBC Bank”), as discussed below inReeent Liquidity and Capital Resource Developmehtsendment to HSBC Loan
Agreemen,” while the remaining net proceeds are intendeletased to fund the acquisition and financingduafitonal royalty interests and
for general corporate purposes.

The underwriters of this equity offering were gesthin option to purchase up to 600,000 additidmales of our common stock to cover over-
allotments. On May 3, 2007, the underwriters puseldean additional 400,064 shares of our commork gtecsuant to their over-allotment
option. The additional purchase to cover over-aikmts resulted in additional proceeds of approxéhga11.0 million, which is net of the
underwriter’'s discount of approximately $656,000.

Chilean Term Loan Agreement

On March 1, 2007, RGCL, a wholly-owned subsidiaijRoyal Gold, entered into a $15.75 million termatdfacility bearing interest at
LIBOR plus 0.25% pursuant to a Term Loan Agreenb@tiveen RGCL and HSBC Bank. Pursuant to the tefriigron Loan Agreement,
Royal Gold must maintain a restricted interest-imgpsecurities account (the “Collateral Account’HSEBC Securities (USA) Inc. with a
balance equal to or in excess of the outstandinguais on the $15.75 million term loan. In connettiath the Term Loan Agreement, Royal
Gold entered into a Guarantee (the “Guarantee”Herbenefit of
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HSBC Bank to guaranty RGCL's obligations underTieem Loan Agreement and a security agreement giaitSBC Bank a security
interest in the Collateral Account to secure RGGibigations under the Term Loan Agreement andhigations under the Guarantee. The
loan will mature on March 1, 2012. The $15.75 millibalance in the Collateral Account as of June280y, is recorded asstricted cash-
compensating balanaa the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

Amendment to HSBC Loan Agreerr

On January 5, 2007, the Company and a wholly-ovauddidiary entered into the Second Amended andaRReist oan Agreement
(“Amendment”) with HSBC Bank. The Amendment incred®ur revolving credit facility from $30 milliomt$80 million and extended the
maturity date of the credit facility to December, 2010. The facility bears interest at LIBOR pluS% and includes both affirmative and
negative covenants, as defined, so long any poatidthe facility is outstanding and unpaid. The Kiewancial covenants, as defined within the
affirmative covenants, include tangible net wodirrent ratio and a minimum cash balance. The Caogipadorrowing base will be calcula
based on our royalties and will be initially bagedits GSR1, GSR3, and NVR1 royalties at the PigelMining Complex and its SJ Claims,
Leeville Mining Complex, Bald Mountain and Robinsmyalties.

The Company and the wholly-owned subsidiary grart88C Bank security interests in the following: thempany’s GSR1, GSR3, and
NVR1 royalties at the Pipeline Mining Complex; tBempan’s SJ Claims, Leeville Mining Complex, Bald Mountaimd Robinson royaltie
and the Company’s debt reserve account at HSBC .B@arkinitial availability under the borrowing basas the full $80 million under the
credit facility. As of April 15, 2007, the total aNability under the borrowing base was decrease®’iL.4 million, reflecting an updated
borrowing base calculation, as defined, based tp@future cash flows from the royalties includedhie borrowing base calculation.

During our third fiscal quarter of 2007, we drewd$6illion under the revolving credit facility primby to complete the closing of the
Pefiasquito and Pascua-Lama royalty acquisitiondisasssed in Note 2 to the consolidated finarstatements. During the fourth quarter of
fiscal year 2007, we fully paid outstanding amoumtder the credit facility, primarily from the peeds of our equity offering in April 2007.

Inventory— restricted
Please see Note 14 of the notes to consolidataddial statements for further information.

Note Receivabl- Battle Mountain Gold Exploration

On March 28, 2007, Royal Gold entered into a BriBigence Facility Agreement (as amended on July2807) with Battle Mountain and its
wholly-owned subsidiary BMGX (Barbados) Corporatias borrowers, whereby Royal Gold made availatbiedge facility of up to

$20 million. In April 2007, the maximum availabjlitinder the bridge facility was reduced to $15iomill Outstanding principal, interest and
expenses under the bridge facility may be conveatd®ioyal Gold’s option into Battle Mountain comm&inck, at a conversion price per
share of $0.60 at any time during the term of thiége facility, provided that Royal Gold notifiesaBle Mountain of its election to convert on
or before April 4, 2008. The bridge facility willature on June 6, 2008.

As of June 30, 2007, approximately $14.5 milliogregate principal amount has been advanced toeBdtilintain under the bridge facility
and is recorded dsote receivable — Battle Mountain Gold Exploratmmthe consolidated balance sheets. Please sed hwothe
consolidated financial statements and “Recent @raknts — Other development®roposed Acquisition of Battle Mountain Gold
Exploration Corp.” within this MD&A for further information.
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Dividend Increast

On November 8, 2006, the Company announced thBbisd of Directors increased the Company’s antaaéndar year) dividend from
$0.22 to $0.26 per share of common stock, payabke quarterly basis. Quarterly dividends of $0.pébshare of common stock were pai
January 19, 2007, April 20, 2007 and July 20, 2007.

Contractual Obligations

Our contractual obligations as of June 30, 2004 aarfollows:

Payments Due by Peric

Less thar More that
Contractual Obligation Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Note payabl«?) $19,810,00 $ 870,00( $1,740,00 $17,200,00 $ —
Operating lease 1,084,15 180,69: 581,68: 321,78( —
Long-term retirement obligatio 98,17: 26,40( 52,80( 18,97: —
Total $20,992,33 $1,077,09: $2,374,48. $17,540,75 $ —

@ Amounts represent principal ($15,750,000) and edtuohinterest payments ($4,060,000) assuming rip exinguishment

For information on our contractual obligations, dkstes 6 and 13 of the notes to consolidated filsdustatements under Part II, Item 8.
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” isfAmnual Report on Form 10-K. Royal Gold belieitesill be able to fund all existing
obligations from net cash provided by operatingvis.

Results of Operations

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007, Compared withaFi¥ear Ended June 30, 2006

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, we redandeincome of $19.7 million, or $0.79 per basiare and diluted share, as compared to
net income of $11.4 million, or $0.50 per basicrerend $0.49 per diluted share, for the fiscal yemted June 30, 2006.

For fiscal year 2007, we received total royaltyemwe of $48.4 million (including $1.7 million of nority interest), at an average gold pric
$638 per ounce, compared to royalty revenue of4b28llion, at an average gold price of $527 peraaufor fiscal year 2006. Royalty rever
and the corresponding production, attributableuoroyalty interests, for fiscal year 2007 compa@éiscal year 2006 is as follows:
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Royalty Revenue and Production Subject to Our Rgyaterests
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006

Fiscal Year Ende Fiscal Year Ende
June 30, 200 June 30, 200
Royalty Reportec Royalty Reportec

Royalty Metal(s) Revenue Production® Revenue Productior(®)
Pipeline Gold $21,485,76 510,27 oz. $16,813,05 598,97+ oz.
Robinson(@ $12,573,37 $ 2,202,74

Gold 80,60 oz. 13,08: oz.

Coppet 116.9 millior Ibs. 27.2 millior Ibs.
SJ Claims Gold $ 5,463,19' 950,46: oz. $ 4,783,89' 1.0 million oz.
Troy $ 3,066,87! $ 1,693,44

Silver 1.0 million oz. 884,52¢ oz.

Coppet 9.6 million Ibs. 7.1 million lbs.
Leeville Gold $ 2,660,66 230,45¢ 0z. $ 767,74« 83,69¢ oz.
Bald Mountain Gold $ 1,281,21! 109,51 oz. $ 1,492,65! 126,31 oz.
Mulatos(2) Gold $ 1,012,15 103,26: 0z. $ 225,00( 23,917 oz.
Martha Silver $ 713,57¢ 2.9 million oz. $ 401,58¢ 2.3 million oz.
Gold Hill ® Gold $ 100,00( N/A N/A N/A

Total Revenu $48,356,82 $28,380,14

(1) Reported production relates to the amount of hseti@s, subject to our royalty interests, forfieeal years ended June 30, 2007 and
June 30, 2006, as reported to us by the operatdhe anines

(@ Receipt of royalty revenue commenced during ourtfoquarter of fiscal year 200

() Royalty revenue received represents an annualnagvroyalty payment per the Assignment and Mihiegse with Option to Purchase
between Round Mountain Gold and Royal Gold. Thed@tll royalty was acquired during our second geiadf fiscal year 2007

The increase in royalty revenue for the fiscal ya@ted June 30, 2007, compared with the fiscal geded June 30, 2006, resulted from an
increase in metal prices, increased productioheat eeville Mining Complex, the Troy mine, and d fiear of revenue from the Robinson
and Mulatos royalties. The consolidation of Cres&&lley Partners, L.P. (“CVP"ontributed $1,624,230 to royalty revenue durirgfthcal
year ended June 30, 2007, $1,521,765 of whichrigreted from income as minority interest in incoofeonsolidated subsidiary. See N
15 to the consolidated financial statements fathkrrinformation.

Cost of operations increased to $3.3 million fa fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, compared tori#lidn for the fiscal year ended June !
2006. The increase was mainly due to an incread®iNNPT expense, which resulted primarily fromraorease in royalty revenue from the
Pipeline Mining Complex, Leeville Mining Complexd@the Robinson royalty.

General and administrative expenses increased.8o$iflion for the fiscal year ended June 30, 208¥#npared to $5.0 million for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2006. The increase was prynaad to an increase in legal fees of approximak27,000 and accounting fees
approximately $199,000. These increases were pitimhbe result of the internal review of stock aptimatters and other corporate matters
during our third and fourth fiscal quarters of 2007
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Exploration and business development expensesatsatdo $2.5 million for the fiscal year ended J8@e2007, compared to $3.4 million
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. The decreas@mmarily due to a decrease in exploration cokgpproximately $151,000, a decreas
non-cash compensation expense allocated to exjplor@td business development expense of approXyrit80,000 and a decrease in
consulting services for business development ofa@mately $350,000, which is the result of the Qamy completing royalty acquisitions
and capitalizing the related acquisition costs.

Depreciation and depletion increased to $8.3 nnilfar the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, compar&d.3 million for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2006. The increase was primarily due ditiadal depletion incurred of approximately of $illion, as a result of the Robinson
and Mulatos royalty acquisitions during the fougtrarter of fiscal year 2006. Increased productiutha@n increase in depletion rates for our
Leeville Mining Complex and Troy mine royalties uéied in additional depletion of approximately $2nillion over the prior period.

The Company recorded total non-cash stock compensatpense related to our equity compensationspdé$2.7 million for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007, compared to $2.8 millionHerfiscal year ended June 30, 2006. Our non-cask sbmpensation is allocated among
cost of operations, general and administrative,expdoration and business development in our catfesteld statements of operations and
comprehensive income. The total non-cash compemsatipense allocated to cost of operations, geaehhdministrative expenses, and
exploration and business development expensehddidcal year ended June 30, 2007, was $400,97516,142 and $752,070, respectively,
compared with $380,565, $1,465,055 and $932,068pextively, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006

Interest and other income increased to $4.3 mifl@arihe fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, compar&8.2 million for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2006. The increase is primarily due thérignterest rates, an increase in average furaliahble for investing over the prior period
and interest earned on the Battle Mountain bridgdity.

Interest and other expense increased to $2.0 millinthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, compar§d 65,066 for the period ended
June 30, 2006. The increase is due to interestcaidg the period for the outstanding revolvingdit facility balance during our third fiscal
guarter and the RGCL note payable, as discussacabdRecent Liquidity and Capital Resource Deypef@nt.”

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, we rezedrdurrent and deferred tax expense totaling B8ln compared with $5.1 million for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. This resulted effective tax rate of 31.0% in the currend @nor periods.
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006, Compared withaFi¥ear Ended June 30, 2005

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, we redandeincome of $11.4 million, or $0.50 per basiare and $0.49 per diluted share, as
compared to net income of $11.5 million, or $0.85 Ipasic share and $0.54 per diluted share, fdiitbal year ended June 30, 2005.

For fiscal year 2006, we received total royaltyerewe of $28.4 million, at an average gold pric8%#7 per ounce, compared to royalty
revenue of $25.3 million, at an average gold poit®422 per ounce for fiscal year 2005. Royaltyerave and the corresponding production,
attributable to our royalty interests, for fiscalay 2006 compared to fiscal year 2005 is as follows

Royalty Revenue and Production Subject to Our Rgyaterests
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005

Fiscal Year Ende Fiscal Year Ende
June 30, 200 June 30, 200
Royalty Reportec Royalty Reportec

Royalty Metal(s) Revenue Production® Revenue Productior(®)
Pipeline Gold $16,813,05 598,974 o: $21,392,63 973,602 o:
SJ Claims Gold $ 4,783,891 1.0 million oz $ 2,026,05; 531,342 o:
Robinson® $ 2,202,74! N/A

Gold 13,082 o0z N/A

Coppet 27.2 million Ibs N/A
Troy $ 1,693,44 $ 749,36.

Silver 884,528 o: 522,145 o:

Coppet 7.1 million Ibs 4.6 million lbs
Bald Mountain Gold $ 1,492,65' 126,317 o: $ 208,10: 28,037 oz
Leeville Gold $ 767,74 83,696 0z $ 763,01 93,180 oz
Mulatos® Gold $ 225,00( 23,912 oz N/A N/A
Martha Silver $ 401,58¢ 2.3 million oz $ 163,16° 1.8 million oz

Total Revenu $28,380,14 $25,302,33

(1) Reported production relates to the amount of hseti@s, subject to our royalty interests, forfieeal years ended June 30, 2007 and
June 30, 2006, as reported to us by the operatdhe anines

(@ Receipt of royalty revenue commenced during ourtfoquarter of fiscal year 200

The increase in royalty revenue compared with figear 2005 resulted from a higher GSR sliding-scalalty rate from the Pipeline Mining
Complex due to higher gold prices in fiscal yea®@@0an increase in revenues from the SJ Claim8aitiMountain, and payments from the
recently acquired Mulatos and Robinson royaltidsese increases were partially offset by a decriegseduction at the Pipeline Mining
Complex.

Cost of operations increased to $2.3 million fa fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, compared torfilli8n for the fiscal year ended June
2005. The increase was primarily due to non-caghl@me compensation expense of $380,565, discumded;, and an increase in NNPT
expenditures due to increased royalty revenueara®d Claims and Bald Mountain royalties. Thesecases were partially offset by a
decrease in consulting services.

General and administrative expenses increased.@ofiflion for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2088npared to $3.7 million for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2005. The increase is primduiyto no-cash employee compensation expense of $1.5 milliscussed below.
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Exploration and business development expensesaseteto $3.4 million for the fiscal year ended J8de2006, compared to $1.9 million for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. The incraggemarily due to non-cash employee compensatiperse of $932,066, discussed below,
and an increase in our exploration funding of apjmately $463,000, due to the Taranis exploratidiarece, as discussed in Note 2 in the
accompanying notes to consolidated financial statém

Depreciation and depletion increased to $4.3 milfar the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, compar&3.2 million for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2005. The increase is primarily due toei®ed production at our SJ Claims.

The Company adopted SFAS 123(R) as of July 1, 206i5g the modified prospective application transitmethod. As a result of the
adoption of SFAS 123(R), the Company recorded todalcash stock compensation expense related tequitty compensation plans of

$2.8 million for the fiscal year ended June 30,&00hich is allocated among cost of operationsegarand administrative expenses, and
exploration and business development expenses icomsolidated statements of operations and coreps#be income. The total non-cash
compensation expense allocated to cost of opemtgeneral and administrative, and explorationlarginess development for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2006, was $380,565, $1,465,055388(66, respectively.

Interest and other income increased to $3.2 mifiarthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, compier&834,136 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2005. The increase is primarily due thérignterest rates and an increase in funds avaifabinvesting over the prior period. The
increase in funds available for investing is priityastue to the public offering of our common stadikring the first quarter of fiscal year 2006
and cash flow from operations.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, we rezedrcurrent and deferred tax expense totaling ®libn compared with $4.1 million for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. This resuited effective tax rate of 31.0% in the currentigm compared with 26.4% in the prior
period. The increase in our effective tax ratdésresult of the release of a valuation allowarss®eiated with the sale of available for sale
securities of approximately $320,000 and the reitmgmof Colorado loss carryforwards totaling apgmately $150,000 during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 20(

Forward-Looking Statements

Cautionary “Safe Harbor” Statement under the Peigcurities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Withetbxception of historical matters, the
matters discussed in this report are forward-loglstatements that involve risks and uncertaintias ¢could cause actual results to differ
materially from projections or estimates contaihedein. Such forward-looking statements includeestants regarding projected production
estimates and estimates of timing of commencemgmioaluction from the operators of our royalty peajes; the adequacy of financial
resources and funds to cover anticipated experditior general and administrative expenses asasealbsts associated with exploration and
business development and capital expendituresesett of the Casmalia matter; the potential neecdditional debt or equity financing for
acquisitions, our expectation that substantiallyat revenues will be derived from royalty inteseand the reserves and additional
mineralization for our royalty properties reportgdthe operators. Factors that could cause adatsalts to differ materially from these
forward-looking statements include, among others:

. changes in gold and other metals pric
. the performance of our producing royalty propert

. decisions and activities of the operators of oyahy properties
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. the ability of operators to bring projects into guation and operate in accordance with feasibgitidies;
. unanticipated grade, geological, metallurgical cessing or other problems at the royalty proper

. changes in project parameters as plans of the toperare refinec

. changes in estimates of reserves and mineralizhtighe operators of our royalty properti

. economic and market conditior

. future financial need:

. foreign, federal, or state legislation governingpushe operator:

. the availability of royalties for acquisition other acquisition opportunities and the availapitit debt or equity financing necessary
to complete such acquisitior

. our ability to make accurate assumptions reggrtlie valuation and timing and amount of royaltyrmpants when making
acquisitions

. risks associated with conducting business inigoareountries, including application of foreign Iswo contract and other disputes,
environmental laws and enforcement and uncertditiqad and economic environments; a

. the ultimate additional liability, if any, to the&®e of California in connection with the Casmalfiatter;

as well as other factors described elsewhere $nrégort. Most of these factors are beyond ouitgld predict or control. Many of these
factors are discussed in further detail in Pdtem 1A, Risk Factors, and the reader is urge@&al the Risk Factors in connection with the
risks inherent in our forward-looking statements Wisclaim any obligation to update any forwardkiog statement made herein. Readers
are cautioned not to put undue reliance on forvieolting statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE AB  OUT MARKET RISK

Our earnings and cash flow are significantly impddty changes in the market price of gold and atietals. Gold and other metal prices can
fluctuate significantly and are affected by numeréactors, such as demand, production levels, enmnpolicies of central banks, producer
hedging, world political and economic events, dredtrength of the U.S. dollar relative to otherencies. Please see “Volatility in gold and
other metal prices may have an adverse impacteuatue of our royalty interests and reduce oualtgyrevenues,” under Part I, Item 1A of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K for more informatiat can affect gold and other prices as wellistorical gold, silver and copper prices.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, werteggoyalty revenues of $48.4 million, with an eage gold price for the period of $638
per ounce. The GSR1 royalty, on the Pipeline Mir@mmplex, which produced approximately 34% of @awenues for the period, is a
sliding-scale royalty with variable royalty rategs based on the average London PM gold pricénéopériod. For the fiscal year, if the price
of gold had averaged higher or lower by $20 perceuwe would have recorded an increase or
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decrease in revenues of approximately $977,000eotisely. Due to the set price steps in the GSIalty, it is not possible to extrapolate
these effects on a linear basis.

We receive royalties from the NVR1 royalty on thpdfine Mining Complex in gold, and the revenuenaeord from this royalty therefore
depends on the price of gold. We sold 875 ouncegelf bullion in fiscal year 2007, at an averagdized price of $635 per ounce, and 1,733
ounces of gold bullion in fiscal year 2006, at &rrage realized price of $524 per ounce.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors Royati@oc.:

We have completed integrated audits of Royal Gloldls consolidated financial statements and oinitsrnal control over financial reporting
as of June 30, 2007, in accordance with the stdsdzrthe Public Company Accounting Oversight Bdaidited States). Our opinions, ba:
on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetadisted in the accompanying index present fairyall material respects, the financial
position of Royal Gold Inc. and its subsidiariedae 30, 2007 and 2006, and the results of tipeirations and their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended June 30, 200@nformity with accounting principles generallycapted in the United States of America.
These financial statements are the responsibilitiied Company’s management. Our responsibilitp isxpress an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits. We conducted dits ai these statements in accordance with thredatas of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Thdaadards require that we plan and perform the dadibtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of malterisstatement. An audit of financial statementdudes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosuréigifinancial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates
made by management, and evaluating the overahdiaastatement presentation. We believe that adita provide a reasonable basis for
opinion.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrst&ements, the Company changed its method ofusating for share-based compensation
and adopted SFAS No. 123(Bhare-Based Paymeneffective July 1, 2005.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessmentydsd in Management's Report on Internal ControltQaieancial Reporting appearing
under Part I, Item 9A, that the Company maintaiaffdctive internal control over financial repodias of June 30, 2007 based on criteria
established imnternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriee Treadway Commission
(COSO0), is fairly stated, in all material respebti@sed on those criteria. Furthermore, in our gpinihe Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financegorting as of June 30, 2007, based on critst@béished irinternal Control — Integrated
Frameworkissued by the COSO. The Company’s managementpsmsible for maintaining effective internal contoder financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness offriatecontrol over financial reporting. Our respdrildty is to express opinions on
management’s assessment and on the effectivenéss @bmpany’s internal control over financial rep@ based on our audit. We
conducted our audit of internal control over fin@hceporting in accordance with the standard$efRublic Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards requirentbailan and perform the audit to obtain reasonaséeirance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was mained in all material respects. An audit of intérna
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control over financial reporting includes obtainigag understanding of internal control over finahmg@orting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the designmerdtong effectiveness of internal control, andqening such other procedures as we
consider necessary in the circumstances. We bdlieteur audit provides a reasonable basis foopurions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablessesuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over firgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainky reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdegtessary to permit preparation of financatkstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; anda(iiyide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companysats that could have a material effect on then@iizd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadégbecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Denver, Colorado
August 22, 2007
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ROYAL GOLD, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
As of June 30,

Current asset:
Cash and equivalen
Royalty receivable
Deferred tax asse
Prepaid expenses and otl

Total current asse

Royalty interests in mineral properties, net (N8
Inventory— restricted (Note 14

Restricted cas— compensating balance (Note

Available for sale securities (Note

Note receivabl~ Battle Mountain Gold Exploration (Note
Other asset

Total asset

Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Income taxes payab
Dividend payabl¢
Accrued compensatic
Other

Total current liabilities

Net deferred tax liabilitie
Note payable (Note ¢
Other long term liabilitie:
Total Liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note
Minority interest in subsidiary (Note 1
Stockholder' equity

Common stock, $.01 par value, authorized 40,000sb@@es; issued 28,892,980 and 23,816,640 s

respectively

Additional paicin capital

Accumulated other comprehensive inca
Accumulated earnings (defic

Treasury stock, at cost (229,224 sha

Total stockholdel' equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

2007 2006
$ 82,841,86 $ 78,449,38
12,470,45 5,962,05:
154,05( 131,62:
216,85 155,90¢
95,683,221  84,698,96
215,839,44  84,589,56
10,611,56 —
15,750,00 —
1,995,04: 1,988,44:
14,493,87. —
2,276,04" 487,82
$356,649,19 $171,764,80
$ 234233 $ 1,075,64
5,062 334,76°
1,868,59- 1,300,62:
344,50 375,00
128,03¢ 237,48:
4,688,52 3,323,511
5,910,69 6,683,88!
15,750,00 —
98,17: 97,74¢
26,447,39 10,105,15
11,120,79 —
288,92 238,16t
310,439,11  166,459,67
458,29 498,46:
8,991,52! (4,439,77)
(1,096,87) _ (1,096,87)
319,080,99  161,659,64
$356,649,19  $171,764,80

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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ROYAL GOLD, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compselemcome
For the Years Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
Royalty revenue $48,356,82 $28,380,14  $25,302,33
Costs and expens
Costs of operations (exclusive of depreciation]etggn and amortization shown
separately below 3,264,76; 2,288,34 1,847,34.
General and administrati 5,823,67! 5,022,15 3,695,09
Exploration and business developm 2,493,45; 3,396,73. 1,892,86!
Depreciation, depletion and amortizati 8,268,68! 4,261,06! 3,204,98
Total costs and expens 19,850,56 14,968,29 10,640,29
Operating incom 28,506,26 13,411,84 14,662,04
Interest and other incon 4,257,78 3,203,96! 834,13t
Gain on sale of available for sale securi — — 163,57
Interest and other expen (1,973,53) (165,06¢) (103,579
Income before income tax 30,790,51 16,450,74  15,556,17
Current tax expense (Note 1 (10,309,55) (5,973,87) (3,047,55)
Deferred tax benefit (expense) (Note 761,29: 873,21: (1,054,91)
Minority interest in income of consolidated subaigi (1,521,76) — —
Net income $19,720,48 $11,350,08 $11,453,71

Adjustments to other comprehensive incc

Unrealized change in market value of availablestde securities, net of t: (40,169 783,38 (208,329

Realization of the change in market value on shivailable for sale securities, net of — — (104,689
Comprehensive incon $19,680,31 $12,133,46. $11,140,69
Basic earnings per she $ 0.7¢ $ 05C $ 0.5F
Basic weighted average shares outstan 24,827,31 22,863,78 20,875,95
Diluted earnings per sha $ 0.7¢ $ 0.4¢ % 0.54
Diluted weighted average shares outstan 25,075,08 23,134,03 21,070,79

The accompanying notes are an integral part obthessolidated financial statements
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Balance at June 30, 20

Issuance of common stock for:

Acquisition of royalty interest in
mineral property

Exercise of options

Tax benefit of stock option exercis

Issuance of restricted sto

Recognition of compensation expense fc
restricted stock issuance (Note

Net income and comprehensive income for
the year ended June 30, 2005

Dividends declare

Balance at June 30, 20

Issuance of common stock fc
Equity offering
Exercise of stock options
Vesting of restricted stoc

Tax benefit of stock-based compensatiot
exercises

Recognition of non-cash compensation
expense for stock- based compensation
(Note 8)

Reversal of deferred compensat

Net income and comprehensive income for
the year ended June 30, 2006

Dividends declare

Balance at June 30, 20

Issuance of common stock for:
Equity offering
Pefiasquito royalty acquisitio
Exercise of stock options
Vesting of restricted stoc

Tax benefit of stock-based compensation
exercises

Recognition of non-cash compensation
expense for stock- based compensa
(Note 8)

Net income and comprehensive income for
the year ended June 30, 2(

Dividends declared

Balance at June 30, 20

ROYAL GOLD, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ EquitytlierYears Ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Additional Accumulated Othe Total
Common Share Paic-In Comprehensiv: Deferred Accumulatec Treasury Stocl Stockholder

Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss Compensatio (Deficit) Earning: Shares Amount Equity
21,012,58 $210,12¢ $102,019,89 $ 28,097 $ — $  (18,262,92) 229,22¢ $(1,096,87.) $ 82,898,31
3,00( 30 55,14( 55,17(
200,99¢ 2,01C 971,00: 973,01:
387,94: 387,94:
42,000 42C 729,54( (729,96() —
205,30: 205,30:
(313,017) 11,453,71 11,140,69
(3.923,14) (3.923,14)
21,258,57 $212,58¢ $104,163,51 $ (284,92( $ (524,659 $  (10,732,35) 229,22« $(1,096,87.) $ 91,737,29
2,227,91. 22,27¢ 54,696,15 54,718,43
276,77 2,76¢ 3,909,10 3,911,87!
53,37t 532 (539) —
1,438,39! 1,438,39!
2,777,68 2,777,68
(524,659 524,65¢ —
783,38: 11,350,08 12,133,46
(5,057,501 (5,057,500
23,816,64 $238,16! $166,459,67 $ 498,46: $ — $ (4,439,77) 229,22¢ $(1,096,87:) $ 161,659,64
4,400,06 44,00 121,893,90 121,937,90
577,43¢ 5,77¢ 18,495,21 18,500,98
46,467 46E 581,83¢ 582,30:
52,37t 524 (524) —
345,82 345,82
2,663,18! 2,663,18!
(40,16¢) 19,720,48 19,680,31
(6,289,17) (6,289,17)
28,892,98 $288,92¢ $310,439,11 $ 458,29¢ $ — $ 8,991,52! 229,22¢ $(1,096,87) $ 319,080,99

The accompanying notes are an integral part obthessolidated financial statements
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ROYAL GOLD, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activitir
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:

Depreciation, depletion and amortizat
Gain on available for sale securit
Deferred tax (benefit) expen

Non-cash employee stock compensation exp:
Tax (benefit) expense of stc-based compensation exerci:

Changes in assets and liabiliti
Royalty receivable
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payabl
Income taxes payab

Accrued liabilities and other current liabiliti

Other lon¢-term liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash flows from investing activitie
Capital expenditures for property and equipn
Acquisition of royalty interests in mineral proges
Note receivabl~ Battle Mountain Gold Exploratio
Restricted cas— compensating balant
Purchase of available for sale securi
Deferred acquisition cos
Proceeds from sale of available for sale secul
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activitie
Dividends paic
Debt issuance cos
Issuance of Note payak

Tax benefit from stoc-based compensation exerci:

Net proceeds from issuance of common s
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi
Net increase in cash and equivale
Cash and equivalents at beginning of
Cash and equivalents at end of y

Supplemental cash flow informatic
Cash paid during the period ft
Interest
Income taxe:
Non-cash investing and financing activiti¢
Dividends declare
Deferred compensation (equity offs

Acquisition of royalty interest in mineral propeiyith common stock

For the Years Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
$ 19,720,48 $11,350,08 $11,453,71
8,268,68! 4,261,060  3,204,98.
— — (163,57)
(761,29 (873,21)  1,054,91
2,663,18! 2,777,68 205,30
(345,82)  (1,438,39) 387,94
(6,508,39) 639,27¢  (1,380,02)
414,29 266,49 (65,88¢)
1,019,56 (64,86%) (141,50:)
16,12: 1,519,67! 253,49¢(
(139,94 165,57 17,38¢
424 1,11F (6,455
$ 2434729 $18,604,48 $14,820,29
$ (284,93) $ (38,65) $ (126,95)
(120,808,16)  (43,931,44)  (7,514,94)
(14,493,87) — —
(15,750,00) — _
(81,089 (204,71)  (1,000,00)
(973,24) — —
— — 539,96(
$(152,391,30) $(44,174,82) $(8,101,94)
$ (5,721,20) $ (4,807,50) $(3,651,89)
(464,11 (81,857 —
15,750,00 — —
345,82 1,438,39! —
12252598 _ 58,630,31 973,01
$132,436,49 $55,179,34 $(2,678,88)
439247  29,609,01 4,039,47!
78,44938  48,840,37  44,800,90
$ 82,841,86 $78,44938 $48,840,37
$ 801,35( $ — 3 —
$ 10,29343 $ 4,610,91 $ 2,330,00
$ 6,289,17. $ 5057,500 $ 3,923,114
$ — 3 — $ 729,96(
$ 1849521 $ — $ 5517

The accompanying notes are an integral part obthessolidated financial statements
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1. OPERATIONS, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC IES AND RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING
PRONOUNCEMENTS

Operations

Royal Gold, Inc. (“Royal Gold”, the “Company”, “wg"us”, or “our”), together with its subsidiarids,engaged in the business of acquiring
and managing precious metals royalties. Royaltiepassive (non-operating) interests in miningquty that provide the right to revenue or
production from the project after deducting spedifcosts, if any.

We seek to acquire existing royalties or to finapogects that are in production or near produciioexchange for royalty interests. We also
fund exploration on properties thought to contaiecpus metals and seek to obtain royalties anerathrried ownership interests in such
properties through the subsequent transfer of tipgranterests to other mining companies. Subsi#iptall of our revenues are and will be
expected to be derived from royalty interests. Wadt conduct mining operations at this time. Dgriihe 2007 fiscal year, we focused on the
management of our existing royalty interests, ttaguisition of royalty interests, and the creatiémayalty interests through financing and
strategic exploration alliances.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of our financial statements in oomfty with accounting principles generally accepie the United States of America
requires us to make estimates and assumptionaftieat the reported amounts of assets and liaslitand disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the dates of the financial statenseand the reported amounts of revenues and expdosag the reporting periods. Actual
results could differ significantly from those estites.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tw®ants of Royal Gold, Inc., its wholly-owned swliaiies and an entity over which control
is achieved through means other than voting ri(gge Note 15). Intercompany transactions and atdmalances have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments purchaséith an original maturity of three months or lés$e cash equivalents. At June 30, 2007,
cash and cash equivalents were primarily held inaumed interest bearing cash and money markeuatsoAs of June 30, 2007,
approximately $82.2 million of our total cash ampliigalents was held at one financial institution.

Available for Sale Securities

Investments in securities that management doesavat the intent to sell in the near term and thatheadily determinable fair values are
classified as available-for-sale investments. Uired gains and
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losses on these investments are recorded in acateduther comprehensive income as a separate cemtpaf stockholders’ equity, except
that declines in market value judged to be othen ttemporary are recognized in determining netrimed/Vhen investments are sold, the
realized gains and losses on these investmentsniieed using the specific identification method imcluded in determining net income.

The Company'’s policy for determining whether deetinn fair value of available-for-sale investmeants other than temporary includes a
quarterly analysis of the investments and a redigunanagement of all investments that are impalfesiich impairment is determined by
Company to be other than temporary, the investra@st basis is written down to fair value and réed in net income during the period the
Company determines such impairment to be othertéraporary.

Royalty Interests in Mineral Properties

Royalty interests in mineral properties includewdged royalty interests in production stage, depalent stage and exploration stage
properties. The fair value of acquired royalty ietgs in mineral properties are capitalized asitdm@ssets when such interests do not meet
the definition of a financial asset under the FaiahAccounting Standard Board’s (“FASB”) StatemehfFinancial Account Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 140,Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Finandakets and Extinguishments of Liabilities — a Regrhents of FASB
Statement No. 125or a derivative instrument under SFAS No. 18&;ounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirgjivities. Also, in
accordance with FASB Emerging Issues Task ForeeIB®., or EITF, 04-02, Working Group Report NaAhether Mineral Rights are
Tangible or Intangible Assets and Related Isswestecognize our royalty interests as tangibletasseof June 30, 2007 and 2006. We based
our conclusion on the following factors:

1. Our royalty interests in mineral properties do matet the definition of financial assets under FARBtement No. 140; ar
2. Our royalty interests in mineral properties do matet the definition of derivative instruments unBASB Statement No. 13

Acquisition costs of production stage royalty iefss are depleted using the units of productiomatkbver the life of the mineral property,
which is estimated using proven and probable resercquisition costs of royalty interests on exglion stage mineral properties, where
there are no proven and probable reserves, ammatized. At such time as the associated exptoraiage mineral interests are converte
proven and probable reserves, the cost basis igiaethover the remaining life of the mineral pradgeusing proven and probable reserves.
The carrying values of exploration stage minertdriests are evaluated for impairment at such tisnefarmation becomes available
indicating that the production will not occur iretfuture. Exploration costs are charged to oparatiwhen incurred.

Asset Impairment

We evaluate long-lived assets for impairment whenevents or changes in circumstances indicatghbatlated carrying amounts of an
asset or group of assets may not be recoveraberedoverability of the carrying value of royalhterests in production and development
stage mineral properties is evaluated based ugonatsd future undiscounted net cash flows fronheayalty interest property using
estimates of proven and probable reserves. We @&eailne recoverability of the carrying value ofatly interests in exploration stage mineral
properties in the event of significant decreasahénprice of gold and other metals, and wheneger information regarding the mineral
properties is obtained from the operator that cefffeict the future recoverability of our royaltyénests. Impairments in the carrying
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value of each property are measured and recordie textent that the carrying value in each prgpexteeds its estimated fair value, which
is generally calculated using estimated futurealisted cash flows.

Our estimates of gold and other metal prices, dpesaestimates of proven and probable reservesaito our royalty properties, and
operators estimates of operating, capital and reclamatistscare subject to certain risks and uncertaimtfésh may affect the recoverabili

of our investment in these royalty interests in en@th properties. Although we have made our bestsassent of these factors based on current
conditions, it is possible that changes could ooatiich could adversely affect the net cash flowgeeted to be generated from these royalty
interests.

Office Furniture, Equipment and Improvements

We record the acquisition cost of office furnitaned equipment and leasehold improvements, lessradated depreciation and amortization,
as a component of other assets in our consolidatkehce sheets. We depreciate our office furnamaeequipment over estimated useful li
ranging from two to seven years using the straligletiethod. Leasehold improvements are amortized the term of the lease using the
straight-line method. The cost of normal mainteresared repairs is expensed as incurred. Signifiegpénditures, which increase the life of
the asset, are capitalized and depreciated ovesstimaated remaining useful life of the asset. Uminement or disposition of office
furniture, equipment, or improvements, related gainlosses are recorded in operations.

Royalty Revenue

Royalty revenue is recognized pursuant to guidam&aff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 104Revenue Recoghnition for Financial
StatementsRevenue is recognized in accordance with thegerfithe underlying royalty agreements subject)tthé persuasive evidence of
the existence of the arrangements; (ii) the risidr@wards having been transferred; (iii) the riyybeing fixed or determinable; and (iv) the
collectibility of the royalty being reasonably as=il For royalty payments received in gold, royadtyenue is recorded at the average spot
price of gold for the period in which the royaltyasvearned.

Revenue recognized pursuant to the Robinson roggltgement is based upon 3 percent of revenueveetby the operator of the mine,
Quadra Mining Ltd. (“Quadra”), for the sale of miaks from the Robinson mine, reduced by certaitsciogurred by Quadra. Quadra’s
concentrate sales contracts with third-party smelia general, provide for an initial payment lwhapon provisional assays and quoted metal
prices at the date of shipment. Final true up patmare subsequently based upon final assays arkeimaetal prices set on a specified
future dates, typically one to three months aftterdate the concentrate arrives at the third-pamtgiter (which generally occurs three to six
months after the shipment date from the Robinsarejni

Royal Gold recognizes revenue under the Robinsgaitsoagreement based on amounts contractuallypdrsuant to the calculations above
for the underlying sale. As a result of pricingig#ions in gold, silver and copper over the respedciettlement period, royalty revenue
recognized on the Robinson royalty could be padliyior negatively impacted by any changes in nyataks, between the provisional and
final settlement periods.
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Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under SFAS0®Accounting for Income Taxe®eferred income taxes reflect the impact of
temporary differences between the reported amafrassets and liabilities for financial reportingrposes and such amounts measured
laws and regulations. The deferred tax assetsiabitities represent the future tax return consegae of those differences, which will either
be taxable or deductible when the assets anditiebiare recovered or settled. A valuation alloeeis provided for deferred tax assets when
management concludes it is more likely than nat $bane portion of the deferred tax assets willbetealized.

StockBased Compensatian

Effective July 1, 2005, we account for our stoclkdzhcompensation in accordance with SFAS No. J28s@d 2004)Share-Based Payment
(“SFAS 123(R)"). SFAS 123(R) requires all sharedzthpayments to employees, including grants of eyg@stock options and restricted
stock, to be recognized in the financial statembat®ed on their fair values. Prior to July 1, 2686 measured compensation cost as
prescribed by Accounting Principles Board No. 26¢ounting for Stock Issued to Employe@#\PB 25"). See Note 8 within these Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for further dismn on the Company'’s stock-based compensation.

Operating Segments

We manage our business under one operating segeoasisting of royalty acquisition and managemetit/gies. All of our assets and
revenues are attributable to the royalty operategment.

Comprehensive Income

In addition to net income, comprehensive incoméuithes changes in equity during a period associattdcumulative unrealized changes in
the fair value of marketable securities held fde saet of tax effects.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividiegt income or loss by the weighted average nuofb@mmon shares outstanding dur
each year. Diluted earnings per share reflectetfeet of all potentially dilutive stock-based coamsation awards.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the prior period financial steeats have been reclassified for comparative paptisconform with the presentation in
current period financial statements.
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

On July 13, 2006, Financial Accounting StandardarBq“FASB”) Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48™Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes — An Interpretation of FASB Statement No., 1% issued. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting focertainty in income taxes recognized
in a company’s financial statements in accordanitie 8FAS 109. FIN 48 also prescribes a recognitimashold and measurement attribute
for the financial statement recognition and measerg of tax positions taken or expected to be tékentax return. FIN 48 also provides
guidance on de-recognition, classification, inteegsl penalties, accounting in interim periodsgldsure, and transition. The provisions of
FIN 48 are effective for our fiscal year beginnihngy 1, 2007. The Company is evaluating the impiaetadoption of FIN 48 could have on
our financial statements; however, the Company doégxpect the adoption of FIN 48 to have a makeffect on the Company’s financial
position or results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement N .Fibr Value MeasurementsStatement No. 157 provides guidance for usingviaue
to measure assets and liabilities. Statement Nbapplies whenever other accounting standardsne@ui permit) assets or liabilities to be
measured at fair value but does not expand thefusér value in any new circumstances. Under Statat No. 157, fair value refers to the
price that would be received to sell an asset @t fwatransfer a liability between participantglie market in which the reporting entity
transacts. In this standard, the FASB clarifiesghiciple that fair value should be based on #simptions market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability. The provisimfsStatement No. 157 are effective for our figesdhr beginning July 1, 2008, and interim
periods within the fiscal year. The Company is satihg the impact, if any, the adoption of Statendém 157 could have on our financial
statements.

Also in September 2006, the Securities and Exch&ugemission (“SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bultehlo. 108 (“SAB 108”)Financial
Statements — Considering the Effects of Prior Yéiastatements when Quantifying Misstatements imedaity ear Financial Statements.”
SAB 108 was issued in order to eliminate the ditgis practices surrounding how public companieamtify and evaluate the materiality of
financial statement misstatements. SAB 108 providasonce a current year misstatement has beenifigd, the guidance in Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 99Financial Statements — Materialityshould be applied to determine whether the nteistent is material and
should result in an adjustment to the financialesteents. SAB 108 is effective for the first fisgalr ending after November 15, 2006. The
Company elected early application of SAB 108 duitaghird quarter ending March 31, 2007. PleageNete 15 for the effect of the
Company’s early application of SAB 108.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No, ‘158e Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fingl Liabilities” , which allows
entities to choose to measure many financial insgnts and certain other items at fair value. StaterNo. 159 is effective as of the
beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that lregafter November 15, 2007. The Company is evigdhe impact, if any, the adoption of
Statement No. 159 could have on our financial states.

2. ROYALTY ACQUISITIONS
Pefasquito

On January 23, 2007, we acquired a 2.0% net snreliemn (“NSR”) royalty interest on the Pefiasquitoject located in the State of
Zacatecas, Mexico, from Kennecott Exploration Conypa Delaware corporation, and Minera Kennecdtt 8e C.V., a company
incorporated under the laws of Mexico for $80 ruiilin cash and 577,434 shares of our common stiekalso obtained the right to acquire
any or all of a group of NSR royalties ranging fr@rfi% to 2.0% on various other concessions in éneesregion. On April 27, 2007, we
notified Kennecott Exploration Company of our irtten to acquire the
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royalties on certain of these concessions. We éxpaomplete our acquisition of these royaltiesrfominal consideration during the first
quarter of fiscal 2008. Our right to acquire thgalties not identified in our notice expired on Mhy2007.

The Pefiasquito project is composed of two main siepoalled Pefiasco and Chile Colorado and is uhelezlopment by a subsidiary of
Goldcorp Inc. (“Goldcorp”). The Pefasquito projaosts one of the world’s largest silver, gold amat zeserves while also containing large
lead reserves. The Pefiasquito project is curremilier construction and is expected to commendalipitoduction in midealendar 2008 wit
full production being reached in calendar 2012.

The Pefiasquito royalty acquisition was accounted$an asset purchase. As such, the total purghiaseof $99.1 million, which consisted
of $80 million in cash, 577,434 shares of our comrstock (valued at $18,500,985) and approximaté$0$000 of transaction costs, is
recorded as a componentRdyalty interests in mineral propertieas a development stage royalty, in the cons@dibtlance sheets.

Pascua-Lama

On March 9, 2007, Royal Gold’s wholly-owned subaigli Royal Gold Chile Limitada, a Chilean limitedHdility company (“RGCL"),
acquired an NSR sliding-scale royalty on gold whigHerived from certain mineral concessions atthscua-Lama project located in Chile
for $20.5 million. Barrick Gold Corporation (“Baci”) owns the Pascua-Lama project, and is targeimogluction to commence in calendar
year 2010. The acquisition also includes an NSRltgyn copper from reserves located in Chile sdtdr January 1, 201

The NSR slidingscale royalty ranges from 0.16%, when the averageterly gold price is $325 per ounce or less,.08%, when the avera
quarterly gold price is $800 per ounce or more. atmguisition also includes a 0.216% fixed-rate evppyalty that applies to 100% of the
Pascua-Lama copper reserves in Chile but doesaketffect until after January 1, 2017.

The Pascua-Lama royalty acquisition was accourttedd an asset purchase. As such, the $20.5 milliechase price, plus approximately
$354,000 of direct acquisition costs, is recorded aomponent dRoyalty interests in mineral propertigsthe consolidated balance sheets.
We have allocated $20.4 million as a developmergestoyalty interest and approximately $411,008raexploration stage royalty interest.

Gold Hill

On December 8, 2006, Royal Gold paid $3.3 millieNevada Star Resource Corp. in exchange for an $li8iRg-scale royalty and certain
unpatented mining claims on the Gold Hill depoEite NSR sliding-scale royalty on the Gold Hill dsjpavill pay 2.0% when the price of
gold is above $350 per ounce and 1.0% when the pfigold falls to $350 per ounce or below. Theattyis also subject to a minimum
royalty payment of $100,000 per year. The Gold H#posit, located just north of the Round Mounggid mine in Nye County, Nevada, is
controlled by Round Mountain Gold Corporation, mjwventure between subsidiaries of Kinross GoldpBaoation (“Kinross”), the operator,
and Barrick. Production on the Gold Hill depositigpected to commence once permitting is complateddequipment from the Round
Mountain pit becomes available.

The Gold Hill transaction was accounted for asssefpurchase. As such, the $3.3 million acquisitiost, plus approximately $15,000 of
acquisition costs, is recorded as a componeRighlty interests in mineral propertieas a development stage royalty, on the conselidat
balance sheets.

70




Table of Contents

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Taranis Exploration Alliance

On November 4, 2005, Royal Gold entered into twpl&pation and Earn-In Agreements (the “Agreementdth Taranis Resources Inc.
(“Taranis”) with respect to its exploration programinland. As part of the first Agreement, thenGmany will obtain a 2.0% NSR royalty
and future earn-in rights on any new property aeguby Taranis in Finland as a result of its reglaxploration program, in exchange for a
$321,638 investment in 937,500 shares of Taranisimon stock and 468,750 warrants. On August 216,208 acquired, under a private
placement, an additional 100,000 shares of Taranisimon stock and warrants exercisable to purchipse 50,000 Taranis common shares
at $0.49.

As part of the Agreements, we funded $500,000 taia for exploration work on the Kettukuusikko peoty in Lapland, Finland, in
exchange for a 2.0% NSR royalty on the propertyoA3une 30, 2006, we funded the entire $500,000ntitment. We also have an option to
fund up to an additional $600,000. If we fund tihére additional amount, we will earn a 51% joieture interest in the Kettukuusikko
project, and we will release our 2% NSR royaltyeT@ompany has elected to exercise this optiorhdrevent that Royal Gold does not fully
fund the $600,000 to earn the joint venture intergs would retain our 2.0% NSR royalty. As of J&tk 2007, we have funded
approximately $506,000 of the additional $600,0pflan. Amounts funded to Taranis as part of thed$300 and $600,000 Kettukuusikko
exploration commitments have been expensed as parent ofExploration and business developmexpense on our consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income.

Taranis is publicly traded and therefore we haeended our investment in Taranis common stock aadamts ag\vailable for sale securitit
on our consolidated balance sheets at their relddiv values. See Note 4 within these Notes tosGlidated Financial Statements for further
detail on our investment in common stock and wdsrah Taranis.

Robinson and Mulatos Royalties

On December 28, 2005, Royal Gold paid $25 millimiennecott Minerals (“Kennecott”) in exchange tiop existing royalty interests held
by Kennecott, including a 3.0% NSR royalty on ttebRson mine, located in eastern Nevada, and mgtgtale NSR royalty on the Mulatos
mine, located in Sonora, Mexico.

The Robinson mine is an open pit copper mine wghiicant gold and molybdenum credits. The mine haen owned and operated by a
subsidiary of Quadra since 2004. Royal Gold begariving revenue from the Robinson royalty during fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006
after a $20.0 million reclamation trust account \idly funded by Quadra.

The Mulatos project, owned and operated by a sidrgidf Alamos Gold, Inc., is an open pit, heapchkegold mine. Commercial production
was achieved effective April 1, 2006. The Mulatasersliding-scale royalty, capped at two milliomees of gold production, ranges from
0.30% for gold prices below $300 per ounce up 5@% for gold prices above $400 per ounce.

The Kennecott transaction has been accounted fpaschase of assets. As such, the $25 millionisitpn cost, and approximately
$267,000 of our direct legal and other acquisitioats, have been allocated to the two acquiredtiegaccording to their relative fair values,
as separate componentsRdyalty Interests in Mineral Propertie® our consolidated balance sheets. Accordingly,8ifnillion has been
allocated to the Robinson royalty and $7.4 milli@s been allocated to the Mulatos royalty.
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Taparko Project Royalties

On March 1, 2006, Royal Gold entered into an Amedraled Restated Funding Agreement (“Funding Agre¢herith Societe des Mines de
Taparko, also known as Somita SA (“Somita”), a 9®%ted subsidiary of High River Gold Mines Ltd. (‘i River”), to acquire two initial
production payments equivalent to gross smeltermgt' GSR”) royalties and two subsequent GSR rgyiiterests on the Taparko-Bouroum
Project (“Taparko project”) in Burkina Faso, Wedtigéa. The Funding Agreement amended and restagethitial Funding Agreement dated
December 1, 2005, among Royal Gold, High River &andhita. The Taparko project is operated by SorRityal Gold’s funding of the
project has totaled $34.6 million of a total $35liom funding commitment and has been used fordiénelopment and construction of the
Taparko project. Construction of the Taparko profexs been largely completed, with production comeirey during the third quarter of
calendar 2007.

As a result of our funding to date, we obtainedftilewing mineral interests, all related to thepaako project:

1. TB-GSR1 — A production payment equivalena fifteen percent (15%) GSR royalty on all goldguced from the Taparko project.
TB-GSR1 remains in force until cumulative produntaf 804,420 ounces of gold is achieved, or untthalative payments of $35
million have been made to us, whichever is eal

2.  TB-GSR2 - A production payment equivalera t8SR sliding-scale royalty on all gold produceshf the Taparko project. TBSRZ
will be paid concurrently with, and remains in ferentil the termination of TB-GSR1. The sliding{gceoyalty rate will be
determined as follow

a. When the average price of gold is $430 pece or more, the rate will be equal to the avemge divided by 100 (e.ga
$440 gold price divided by 100 = 4.49

b.  When the average gold price is $385 per eamndess, the rate will be equal to the averagepmtivided by 90 (e.g a $350
gold price divided by 90 = 3.88%

c. When the average price is between $385 and $436upee, the rate is 4.3¢

3. TB-GSR3 - A perpetual 2% GSR royalty orgald produced from the Taparko project area (amdéfin the Funding Agreement).
This royalty will commence upon termination of fiB-GSR1 and T-GSR2 royalties

4. TB-MR1 - A 0.75% milling fee royalty, calatkd in the same manner as the TB-GSR1 royaltgll@old processed through the
Taparko project processing facilities that is mifreain any area outside of the Taparko project ésalefined in the Funding
Agreement). TB-MRL1 royalty is subject to a cap df thillion tons per year (_e.gif in a given year, the Taparko project procegsi
facility processes 800,000 tons of ore from thearkp project area and 500,000 tons of ore fromsaoedside the Taparko project
area, the 800,000 tons from the Taparko projeet a@uld be subject to TB-GSR1, TB-GSR2, or TB-G&Ra8 the TB-MR1 would
only apply to 300,000 tons of ot

The Taparko transaction has been accounted fopaschase of assets. Accordingly, the four comptmnehthe transaction noted above have
been recorded at their allocated relative fair galas components Biyalty Interests in Mineral Properties our consolidated balance
sheets. The remaining funding amounts will be alled according to their relative fair values agdfag occurs.

In order to secure our investment during the pebieidveen funding by Royal Gold and project comptefias defined in the funding
agreement), High River has pledged its 90% intenette equity of
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Somita. Royal Gold will maintain its security ingst, in the form of the Somita shares, throughctivestruction period. The security interest
will be released upon the project meeting Projemn@letion, as defined in the Funding Agreement.

In addition to the 90% interest in Somita, Royaldsalso obtained as collateral a pledge of sharésmequity investments held by High
River. The equity value underlying the pledge @St shares is valued at approximately $21.5 mifd®of June 30, 2007, and includes
12,015,000 common shares in the capital stock @@ Mines, Inc. and 1,790,941 common sharekarcapital stock of Intrepid Minerals
Corporation. The purpose of this collateral is @imtain a construction reserve that can be useehbedy any construction defects noted
during the construction contract warranty periokisicollateral can only be used to remedy idemtitienstruction defects and cannot be used
to repay any of Royal Gold’s investment. This sagunterest will be released by Royal Gold at #mal of the construction contract warranty
period.

Investment in Revett Silver Company and the Troy Mne

On October 14, 2004, in a three-part transactlos Gompany paid $8.5 million to Revett Silver Compé'Revett”) and its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Genesis Inc. (“Genesis”), for two rayahterests in the Troy underground silver andpsspmine, located in northwestern
Montana, and shares in Revett.

For consideration of $7.25 million, the Companyabféd the right to receive a production paymentwedent to a 7.0% gross smelter return
royalty (“GSR royalty”) from all metals and prodagiroduced and sold from the Troy mine. The GSRiltgwill extend until either
cumulative production of approximately 9.9 millioances of silver and 84.6 million pounds of coppeithe Company receives $10.5 mill
in cumulative payments, whichever occurs first. Nége received cumulative payments associated htlGISR royalty totaling $5.5 million
through June 30, 2007.

As a second component of the transaction, the Coynaequired a perpetual GSR royalty (“perpetuabhyy) at the Troy mine for $250,00
The rate for this perpetual royalty begins at 6d®@ny production in excess of 11.0 million ounegsilver and 94.1 million pounds of
copper, and steps down to a 2.0% perpetual rogéity cumulative production has exceeded 12.7 aniliunces of silver and 108.2 million
pounds of copper. In the third component of thagaation, the Company purchased approximately ill@mshares of Revett common stc
for $1.0 million, which was the fair value of Revedbmmon stock on the transaction date. These sltarebe converted, under certain
circumstances and at the election of the Company,a 1.0% NSR royalty on the Rock Creek mine, ksated in northwestern Montana
owned by Revett.

Under the terms of the share agreement, the Compasthe right, but not the obligation, to cure default by Revett or Genesis under their
obligations pursuant to an existing mortgage paat#cured by a Promissory Note, to Kennecott M@n@ompany, a third party and prior
Joint Venture interest owner of the Troy mine. Phiacipal and accrued interest under the PromisBlatg as of June 30, 2007, was
approximately $6.2 million with a maturity datefébruary 2008.

We have recorded the acquisition of the GSR royatity the perpetual royalty interests as comporaReyalty Interests in Mineral
Propertieson the consolidated balance sheets. The acquigifidre 1.3 million shares of Revett is recordedmasnvestment irvailable for
sale securitiesn the consolidated balance sheets. See Note hulidse Notes to Consolidated Financial Statenfentsirther detail on our
investment in Revett.
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3. ROYALTY INTERESTS IN MINERAL PROPERTIES

The following table summarizes the net book valtieazh of our royalty interests in mineral propestas of June 30, 2007 and June 30, Z

As of June 30, 2007:

Production stage royalty interes
Pipeline Mining Comple:
GSR1
GSR2
GSR3
NVR1
Bald Mountain
SJ Claims
Robinson ming¢
Mulatos mine
Troy mine GSR royalt
Troy mine Perpetual royal
Leeville Soutt
Leeville North
Martha

Development stage royalty interes
Pefasquito
Taparko Projec
TB-GSR1
TB-GSR2
TB-GSR3
Pascu-Lama
Gold Hill

Exploration stage royalty interes
Taparko Projec
TB-GSR3
TB-MR1
Pascu-Lama
Leeville North
Buckhorn Soutt

Total royalty interests in mineral propert

74

Accumulatec

Depletion &

Gross Amortization Net
$ — % — % —
8,105,02! (6,443,57) 1,661,44
2,525,10 (1,978,18) 546,92:
1,978,54 (1,832,86) 145,68:
20,788,44. (7,158,73)  13,629,70
17,824,77 (2,053,26) 15,771,50
7,441,777 (663,28) 6,778,49.
7,250,00! (3,035,55) 4,214,44
250,00( — 250,00(
1,775,80! (1,775,80) —
15,085,82 (1,472,22)  13,613,60
172,81( (172,810 —
83,198,11 (26,586,31) 56,611,80
99,171,76 — 99,171,76
25,680,74 — 25,680,74
7,505,511 — 7,505,511
1,058,90! — 1,058,90!
20,445,48 — 20,445,48
3,340,38: — 3,340,38.
157,202,79 — 157,202,79
214,76 — 214,76!
140,06! — 140,06!
410,64 — 410,64
1,460,43! (271,18) 1,189,25.
70,117 — 70,11
2,296,02! (271,18) 2,024,84;
$242,696,93  $(26,857,49) $215,839,44
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As of June 30, 2006:

Production stage royalty interes
Pipeline Mining Comple;
GSR1
GSR2
GSR3
NVR1
Bald Mountain
SJ Claims
Robinson mine
Mulatos mine
Troy mine GSR royalt
Troy mine Perpetual royal
Leeville Soutr
Leeville North
Martha

Development stage royalty interes
Taparko Projec
TB-GSR1
TB-GSR2
TB-GSR3

Exploration stage royalty interes
Taparko Projec
TB-GSR3
TB-MR1
Leeville North
Buckhorn Soutt

Total royalty interests in mineral propert

75

Accumulatec

Depletion &

Gross Amortization Net
$ — 3 — 3 —
8,105,022 (5,976,53) 2,128,48!
2,135,10 (1,548,57) 586,53(
1,978,54 (1,817,581 160,96:
20,788,44 (5,122,20)  15,666,23
17,824,77 (301,460  17,523,31
7,441,777 (128,799 7,312,98
7,250,00! (1,140,871 6,109,13!
250,00( — 250,00(
1,775,80! (1,753,58) 22,22:
14,240,41 (180,379  14,060,03
172,81 (172,810 —
81,962,71 (18,142,80) 63,819,90
13,859,87 — 13,859,87
4,053,92 — 4,053,922
569,06: — 569,06:
18,482,86 — 18,482,86
110,17¢ — 110,17¢
71,85 — 71,85
2,305,84! (271,18 2,034,65!
70,11° — 70,11°
2,557,98! (271,18 2,286,80.
$103,003,56  $(18,413,99) $84,589,56
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Discussed below is a status of each of our royatgrests in mineral properties.

Pipeline Mining Complex

We own two GSR sliding-scale royalties (GSR1 ragdiom 0.40% to 5.0% and GSR2 ranging from 0.72%.08%6), a 0.71% fixed gross
smelter return royalty (GSR3), and a 1.25% netevafiturn (“NVR”) royalty (NVR1) over the PipelineiMng Complex that includes the
Pipeline, South Pipeline, Gap and Crossroads gepasits in Lander County, Nevada. The Company &4m% of the 1.25% NVR (or
0.39%) while our consolidated minority interest athe remaining portion of the 1.25% NVR.

The Pipeline Mining Complex is owned by the Codeint Venture, a joint venture between Barrick €ptinc., a subsidiary of Barrick
(60%), and Kennecott Explorations (Australia) L{##0%), a subsidiary of Rio Tinto plc.

Bald Mountain

We own a 1.75% to 3.5% sliding-scale NSR royalgt ttovers a portion of the Bald Mountain mine, ihit¢/ Pine County, Nevada. Bald
Mountain is an open pit, heap leach mine operayeal $ubsidiary of Barrick. The sliding-scale royattcreases or decreases with the gold
price, adjusted by the 1986 Producer Price Index.

SJ Claims

We own a 0.9% NSR on the SJ Claims that cover topoof the Betze-Post mine, in Eureka County, NlavdBetze-Post is an open pit mine
operated by a subsidiary of Barrick at its Goldstiproperty.

Robinson Mine

We own a 3% NSR royalty on the Robinson mine, ledan eastern Nevada. The Robinson mine is an pipeopper mine with significant
gold production. The mine is owned and operated bybsidiary of Quadra Mining Ltd.

Mulatos Mine

We own a sliding-scale NSR royalty on the Mulataeemlocated in Sonora, Mexico. The Mulatos minened and operated by a subsidiary
of Alamos Gold, Inc., is an open pit, heap leacld goine. The Mulatos mine sliding-scale royaltyppead at two million ounces of gold
production, ranges from 0.30% for gold prices be®800 up to 1.50% for gold prices above $400 peceu

Troy Mine

We own a production payment equivalent to a 7.09R @&alty from all metals and products produced swid from the Troy mine, located
in northwestern Montana and operated by Revett. 38R royalty will extend until either cumulativeopliuction of approximately 9.9 million
ounces of silver and 84.6 million pounds of coppeithe Company receives $10.5 million in cumulatpayments, whichever occurs first. As
of June 30, 2007, we have received
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payments associated with the GSR royalty total® $nillion, which is attributable to cumulativeoptuction of approximately 2.6 million
ounces of silver and approximately 21.3 million pds of copper.

We also own a GSR royalty which begins at 6.1%mn@oduction in excess of 11.0 million ouncesitfes and 94.1 million pounds of
copper and steps down to a perpetual 2.0% afteulative production has exceeded 12.7 million ourtdesilver and 108.2 million pounds of
copper. Effective January 1, 2006, we have re-fladsur interest in the perpetual royalty fromeaploration stage royalty interest to a
production stage royalty interest due to an ineréaseserves at the Troy mine.

Leeville Mining Complex

We own a 1.8% carried working interest, equal 108% NSR royalty, which covers the Leeville Soutld ¢he majority of the Leeville North
underground mines (“Leeville Mining Complex”), ineka County, Nevada. The Leeville Mining Complexperated by a subsidiary of
Newmont Mining Corporatior“Newmont”).

During our first fiscal quarter of 2006, Newmonghe mining operations at Leeville North. Accordingluring our first fiscal quarter of
2006, we reclassified our cost basis in LeevilletN@as a production stage royalty interest. As suehbegan depleting our cost basis using
the units of production method during our firscésquarter of 2006.

We carry our interest in the non-reserve portiohexdville North as an exploration stage royaltgmast, which is not subject to periodic
amortization. During our third fiscal quarter of@0) Newmont communicated to us that additional enoand probable reserves were
developed at Leeville North. As such, we reclasdifipproximately $845,000 of our Leeville North lexation stage royalty interest cost
basis to Leeville North production stage royaltienast. In the event that future proven and prabedserves are developed at Leeville North
associated with our royalty interest, the costdasibur exploration stage royalty interest willdeelassified as a development stage royalty
interest or a production stage royalty interestitnre periods, as appropriate. In the event timairé circumstances indicate that the non-
reserve portion of Leeville North will not be comtesd into proven and probable reserves, we willlata our carrying value in the
exploration stage interest for impairment.

Martha Mine

We own a 2.0% NSR royalty on the Martha mine logatethe Santa Cruz Province of Argentina, operated subsidiary of Coeur d’Alene
Mines Corporation. The Martha mine is a high gradderground silver mine.

Pefasquito

We hold a 2.0% NSR royalty interest on the Pefidsquibject located in the State of Zacatecas, Mexitie Pefiasquito project is under
development by a subsidiary of Goldcorp Inc. ansthone of the world’s largest silver, gold ancczieserves while also containing large
lead reserves. We carry our interest in the pr@rehprobable reserves at the 8&juito project as a development stage royaltyastewhict
is not currently subject to amortization.
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Taparko Mine

We hold a production payment equivalent to a 15@&8R (TB-GSR1) royalty on all gold produced from Traparko project, located in
Burkina Faso and operated by Societe des Minesagarko (“Somita”), a subsidiary of High River Géltines Ltd. (“High River”). TB-
GSR1 will remain inforce until cumulative production of 804,420 ounoégold is achieved or until cumulative paymenit$85 million have
been made to Royal Gold, whichever is earlier. W§e hold a production payment equivalent to a Glgfng-scale royalty (TB-GSR2
ranging from 0% to 10%) on all gold produced frdra Taparko project. TB-GSR2 is effective concutgewith TB-GSR1, and will remain
in-force from completion of the funding commitmemitil the termination of TB-GSR1. We carry our i@sts in TB-GSR1 and TB-GSR2 as
development stage royalty interests, which arecooently subject to amortization.

We also hold a perpetual 2% GSR royalty (TB-GSRBalbgold produced from the Taparko project afleB=GSR3 will commence upon
termination of the TB-GSR1 and TB-GSR2 royaltiedktion of the TB-GSR3 royalty is associated véltisting proven and probable
reserves and has been classified as a developtagetreyalty interest, which is not subject to peic amortization at this time. The
remaining portion of the TB-GSR3 royalty, whichist currently associated with proven and probaéenves, is classified as an exploration
stage royalty interest, which is also not subjearnortization at this time.

In addition, we hold a 0.75% milling fee royalty§IMR1) on all gold processed through the Taparlaqmt processing facilities that is
mined from any area outside of the Taparko pr@eea. TB-MRL1 is classified as an exploration stagelty interest and is not subject to
amortization at this time.

The royalty documents for the foregoing royaltiasdnbeen signed and we are holding them pendingletion of our $35 million funding
commitment (of which we have funded $34.6 millienad June 30, 2007) to Somita. Upon completionuwffanding commitment, the royal
documents will be released and recorded and béyexjéective. See Note 13 below for more infornoatiabout the Amended and Restated
Funding Agreement.

Pascua-Lama

We hold a sliding-scale NSR royalty on gold whistderived from certain mineral concessions at tiec®a-Lama project, operated by a
subsidiary of Barrick, in Chile. The sliding-scl&R royalty ranges from 0.16%, when the averagetejiya gold price is $325 per ounce or
less, to 1.08%, when the average quarterly goltbps $800 per ounce or more. We also hold a 0228 rate copper royalty that applies to
100% of the Pascua-Lama copper reserves in Childdas not take effect until after January 1, 20¥&.carry our interest in the proven and
probable reserves at the Pascua-Lama project egedopment stage royalty interest, which is notenity subject to amortization.

We carry our interest in the non-reserve portioRPa$cud-ama project as an exploration stage royalty irsierghich is not subject to periot
amortization. In the event that future proven arabpble reserves are developed at the Pascua-Lanjeatpassociated with our royalty
interest, the cost basis of our exploration stagealty interest will be reclassified as a developtstage royalty interest or a production stage
royalty interest in future periods, as appropriftiehe event that future circumstances indicas¢ tihhe non-reserve portion of the Pastaaia
project will not be converted into proven and ptakaeserves, we will evaluate our carrying valughie exploration stage interest for
impairment.
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Gold Hill

We hold a sliding-scale NSR royalty on the Gold Hédposit, located just north of the Round Moungatd mine in Nye County, Nevada.
The sliding-scale NSR royalty on the Gold Hill dsjtavill pay 2.0% when the price of gold is aboa5s8 per ounce and 1.0% when the price
of gold falls to $350 per ounce or below. The Gditl deposit is controlled by Round Mountain Goldi@oration, a joint venture between
subsidiaries of Kinross, the operator, and Barik. carry our interest in the Gold Hill depositsadevelopment stage royalty interest, which
is not currently subject to periodic amortization.

Buckhorn South

We hold a 16.5% net profits interest royalty on Buekhorn South property, located in Eureka CouNyada and controlled by the Cortez
Joint Venture. The Buckhorn South interest is défizsbas an exploration stage royalty interest.

4. AVAILABLE FOR SALE SECURITIES

We hold 1.3 million shares of Revett common stdek ire recorded as an investment in availabledler securities on the consolidated
balance sheets. The market value for our investinght shares of Revett was $1,490,177 and $11383s of June 30, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Our cost basis in the Revett shar&4.i0 million.

We hold 1,037,500, 518,750, and 100,000 sharesrofiton stock, warrants and stock options, respdgtire Taranis. The market value for
our investment in Taranis’ common stock, warramid stock options was $504,820 and $505,306 asnaf 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
Our cost basis in the Taranis common stock, wasrantl stock options is $285,761.

5. REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITY PAYABLE

On January 5, 2007, the Company and a wholly-ovauedidiary entered into the Second Amended ancaiRest. oan Agreement
(“Amendment”) with HSBC Bank USA, National Assodtat (“HSBC Bank”). The Amendment increased our eatirevolving credit facility
from $30 million to $80 million and extended thetarity date of the credit facility to December 2D10. The facility bears interest at LIB(
plus 1.5% and includes both affirmative and negatiovenants, as defined, so long any portion ofabidity is outstanding and unpaid. The
Company’s borrowing base will be calculated basedur royalties and will be initially based on@SR1, GSR3, and NVR1 royalties at the
Pipeline Mining Complex and its SJ Claims, LeeviBald Mountain and Robinson royalties.

The Company and the wholly-owned subsidiary grart88C Bank security interests in the following: thempany’s GSR1, GSR3, and
NVR1 royalties at the Pipeline Mining Complex; tBempan’s SJ Claims, Leeville Mining Complex, Bald Mountaimd Robinson royaltie
and the Company’s debt reserve account at HSBC .Bamnkinitial availability under the borrowing bases the full $80 million under the
credit facility. As of April 15, 2007, the total aNability under the borrowing base was decreasegV’il.4 million, reflecting an updated
borrowing base calculation, as defined, based dpeffuture cash flows from the royalties includedhe borrowing base calculation. Per the
Amendment, the borrowing base calculation will bealculated October 15, 2007.

During our third fiscal quarter of 2007, we drewD386illion under the revolving credit facility prirmily to complete the closing of the
Pefasquito and Pascua-Lama royalty acquisitiondisaassed in Note 2.
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During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2007, wéyf paid amounts under the credit facility printarfrom the proceeds of our equity offering
in April 2007, as discussed further in Note 8. Thenpany paid approximately $801,000 in interesb@ased with the outstanding credit
facility during fiscal year 2007.

6. NOTE PAYABLE

On March 1, 2007, RGCL, a wholly-owned subsidiaijRoyal Gold, entered into a $15.75 million termatdfacility bearing interest at
LIBOR plus 0.25% pursuant to a Term Loan Agreentbetiveen RGCL and HSBC Bank. Pursuant to the tefrtieedolTerm Loan Agreement,
Royal Gold must maintain a restricted interest-imgpsecurities account (the “Collateral Account) @eposit at HSBC Securities (USA) Inc.
with a balance equal to or in excess of the outltgnamounts on the $15.75 million term loan. Inmection with the Term Loan Agreement,
Royal Gold entered into a Guarantee (the “Guardnfeethe life of the Term Loan, for the benefitlidSBC Bank to guaranty RGCL'’s
obligations under the Term Loan Agreement and arggagreement granting HSBC Bank a security ggem the Collateral Account to
secure RGCL's obligations under the Term Loan Agrext and its obligations under the Guarantee. d&e Will mature on March 1, 2012.

The $15.75 million balance in the Collateral Accbas of June 30, 2007, is recordedrastricted cash — compensating balaonehe
Company'’s consolidated balance sheets. RGCL’s $1fillion principal obligation under the Term LoAgreement is recorded aote
payableon the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

7. NOTE RECEIVABLE

As discussed further in Note 16, in connection i proposed merger with Battle Mountain Gold Bration (“Battle Mountain”), on
March 28, 2007, Royal Gold entered into a BridggaRce Facility Agreement (as amended) with BattteiMain and its wholly-owned
subsidiary BMGX (Barbados) Corporation, as borr@yarhereby Royal Gold has agreed to make avaitaltlee borrowers a bridge facility
of up to $20 million. In April 2007, the maximumaiability under the bridge facility was reduced#bs million. Outstanding principal,
interest and expenses under the bridge facility beagonverted at Royal Gold’s option into Battleuvitain common stock, at a conversion
price per share of $0.60 at any time during thentef the bridge facility, provided that Royal Galdtifies Battle Mountain of its election to
convert on or before April 4, 2008. The bridge fiacwill mature on June 6, 2008.

The conversion option has been accounted for asrdredded derivative instrument with the conversiption bifurcated from the host
contract, the bridge facility, and recorded aspasate asset on the balance sheet. The convergiiom @sset is marked to market each period
with a charge or credit tmterest expense and othearthe consolidated statement of operations. Theesponding discount to the carrying
value of the bridge facility note receivable isrigeaccreted to face value as additiangdrest income and otheach reporting period.

As of June 30, 2007, approximately $14.5 milliog@gate principal amount has been advanced toeBdtiLintain under the bridge facility
and is recorded dsote receivable — Battle Mountain Gold Exploratmmthe consolidated balance sheets. Interest cenadg under the
bridge facility will accrue at the LIBOR Rate pl8%6 per annum. Accrued interest on the $14.5 milliggregate advanced under the bridge
facility is recorded withirNote receivable—Battle Mountain Gold Exploratmmthe consolidated balance sheets as of Juné8d, 2
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8. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND STOCK-BASED COMPENSATIO N

The Company accounts for its stock-based compamsetiaccordance with FASB Statement No. 123 (exl/i2004) Share-Based Payment
(“SFAS 123(R)"), which is a revision of FASB Statent No. 123 Accounting for Stock-Based Compensafi@FAS 123"). SFAS 123(R)
requires all stock-based payments to employeelsidimg grants of employee stock options, to be geaed in the financial statements based
on their fair values.

2004 Omnibus Long-Term Incentive Plan

In November 2004, the Company adopted the OmnilougiTerm Incentive Plan (2004 Plan”). The 2004rPeplaces the Company’s
Equity Incentive Plan. Under the 2004 Plan, 900,8i8dres of Common Stock are available for futuamtgrto officers, directors, key
employees and other persons. The Plan providdhdagrant of stock options, unrestricted stockirieted stock, dividend equivalent rights,
stock appreciation rights, and cash awards. Arthede awards may, but need not, be made as perfoenracentives. Stock options granted
under the 2004 Plan may be non-qualified stockoostior incentive stock options.

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 200&@&608, we recorded total non-cash stock compenseakpanse related to our equity
compensation plans of $2,663,189 $2,777,686 an8,3aQ, respectively. Non-cash stock compensatiafidgsatedamong cost of operatior
general and administrative, and exploration andniess development in our consolidated statemernperations and comprehensive income
as summarized below:

For The Fiscal Years Ended June

2007 2006 2005
Non-cash compensation allocatic
Cost of operation $ 400,97 $ 380,56 $ 16,83¢
General and administrati 1,510,14. 1,465,05! 154,51
Exploration and business developm 752,07( 932,06¢ 33,94¢
Total nor-cash compensation exper $2,663,18 $2,777,68 $205,30:

The total income tax benefit associated with noshicgtock compensation expense was approximately, 98, $1,000,000, and $74,000 for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 2006, and, 288pectively.

As of June 30, 2007, there are 314,692 sharesnofmom stock reserved for future issuance under 004 Plan.

Stock Options

Stock option awards are granted with an exercige gqgual to the closing market price of the Comyfmstock at the date of grant. Stock
option awards granted to officers, key employeabather persons vest based on one to three yeamtihuous service. Stock option awe
granted to directors vest immediately with respe@0% of the shares granted and after one yearresipect to the remaining 50% granted.
Stock option awards have 10 year contractual terms.
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To determine non-cash stock compensation expenstdck option awards, the fair value of each siekon award is estimated on the date
of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton (“Black-8lels”) option pricing model for all periods presamht The Black-Scholes model requires
key assumptions in order to determine fair valdese key assumptions during our fiscal year 200062nd 2005 grants are noted in the
following table:

2007 2006 2005
Weighted average expected volatil 52.8¢% 61.2(% 69.71%
Weighted average expected option term in y 5.1 5.4 4.5
Weighted average dividend yie 0.92% 1.0(% 1.14%
Weighted average risk free interest t 4.€% 4.5% 3.6%

The Company’s expected volatility is based on tiséohical volatility of the Company’s stock overtiexpected option term. The Company’s
expected option term is determined by historicalreise patterns along with other known employeeoonpany information at the time of
grant. The risk free interest rate is based orzéne-coupon U.S. Treasury bond at the time of gndifit a term approximate to the expected
option term.

On February 15, 2007, 1,600 stock options undeR@@e! Plan were granted to an officer of the Comppaith an exercise price of $32.40,
which was the closing market price for our commimtis on the date of grant. On November 7, 20066®1 stock options under the 2004
Plan were granted to officers and certain employeeler the 2004 Plan. These options have an erguaise of $28.78, which was the
closing market price for our common stock on thiedd grant. On November 8, 2006, 15,000 stockomgtunder the 2004 Plan were granted
to the Board of Directors at an exercise price2d.80, which was the closing market price of ounown stock on the date of grant.

A summary of stock option activity under our equimpensation plans for the fiscal year ended 30n2007, is presented below.

Weighte«-
Average
Weightec- Remaining
Average Contractue Aggregate
Exercise Term Intrinsic
Options Shares Price (Years) Value
Outstanding at July 1, 20( 528,41: $ 14.8¢
Granted 108,10( 28.8¢
Exercisec (46,467 12.5:
Forfeited and Expire (10,839 20.3¢
QOutstanding at June 30, 20 579,21. $ 17.5i 6.4 $3,591,53!
Exercisable at June 30, 20 440,78 $ 14.7¢ 4.1 $4,010,38

The weighted-average grant date fair value of otigranted during the fiscal years ended June@®¥,2006 and 2005, was $13.79, $12.04,
and $9.23, respectively. The total intrinsic vatdi@ptions exercised during the fiscal years entiete 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, were
$767,181, $5,561,205, and $2,731,940, respectively.
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A summary of the status of the Company’s non-vestedk options for the fiscal year ended June 80y72is presented below:

Weightec-Average

Shares Grant Date Fair Valu
Non-vested at July 1, 20( 132,33: $11.2¢
Granted 108,10 $13.7¢
Vested (91,167 $11.62
Forfeited (10,837 $10.9¢
Non-vested at June 30, 20 138,43: $13.0(¢

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 200@26a608, we recorded non-cash stock compensation sgmssociated with stock options of
$1,153,420, $1,116,362 and $0, respectively. Akiok 30, 2007, there was $961,415 of total unréazedmon-cash stock compensation
expense related to non-vested stock options gramtder our equity compensation plans, which is etqubto be recognized over a weighted-
average period of 2.1 years. The total fair valughares vested during the fiscal years ended 3002007, 2006 and 2005 was $1,059,748,
$450,342 and $297,575, respectively.

Prior to July 1, 2005, we measured compensationasoprescribed by APB 25. No compensation coataélto the granting of stock options
has been recognized in the financial statemends friJuly 1, 2005, as the exercise price of aliapgrants was equal to the market price of
our common stock at the date of grant. In Octol9@51the FASB issued SFAS 123. SFAS 123 defindaiavalue” based method of
accounting for employee options or similar equitstituments. Had compensation cost been determimael the provisions of SFAS 123, the
following pro forma net income and per share amewtuld have been recorded:

For The Fiscal Yei
Ended June 3(

2005
Net income, as reporte $ 11,453,71
Add: Stock-based compensation expense for restrgttek awards included in reported net incomephetlated tax
effects 131,39¢
Less: Total stock-based employee compensation egpdgtermined under the fair value based methaallfaxvards, ne
of related tax effect 653,22))
Pro forma net incom $ 10,931,88
Earnings per shar
Basic, as reporte $ 0.5
Basic, pro form: $ 0.52
Diluted, as reporte $ 0.54
Diluted, pro forme $ 0.52
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Other Stockbased Compensation

On November 7, 2006 and November 8, 2005, offiaadscertain employees were granted 36,000 and @ &fres of restricted common
stock, respectively, that can be earned only lifezibne of two defined multi-year performance géalset within five years of the date of
grant (“Performance Shares”). If the performancalgare not earned by the end of this five yeaiodethe Performance Shares will be
forfeited. Vesting of Performance Shares is sulifgcertain performance measures being met antedased on an interim earn out of 2
50%, 75% or 100%. The defined performance goalsi@ddo two different performance measures: (bndh of free cash flow per share o
trailing twelve month basis; and (2) growth of rthyaunces in reserve on an annual basis.

A summary of the status of the Company’s non-veBdormance Shares for the fiscal year ended 30n2007, is presented below:

Weightec-Average

Shares Grant Date Fair Valu
Non-vested at July 1, 20( 41,50( $19.1¢
Granted 36,00( $28.7¢
Vested (44,87Y) $21.07
Forfeited (5,625 $19.5¢
Non-vested at June 30, 20 27,00( $28.7¢

We measure the fair value of the Performance Shmaesd upon the market price of our common stoak e date of grant. In accordance
with SFAS 123(R), the measurement date for theoPednce Shares will be determined at such timethigaperformance goals are attaine
that it is probable they will be attained. At sdirhe that it is probable that a performance coaditvill be achieved, compensation expense
will be measured by the number of shares thatudtiinately be earned based on the grant date marlest of our common stock. Interim
recognition of compensation expense will be madriah time as management can reasonably estineateithber of shares that will be
earned. As of June 30, 2007, our estimates indighi it is probable that 100% of our non-vesteddmance Shares will be earned by
June 30, 2008. For the fiscal years ended Jun2C(8, 2006 and 2005, we recorded mash stock compensation expense associated wi
Performance Shares of $1,070,196, $1,234,129 ane§fectively. As of June 30, 2007, total unrecmephnon-cash stock compensation
expense related to our Performance Shares is $B9Mich is expected to be recognized over the fisoal year, the period over which it is
probable that the performance goals will be atthine

On November 7, 2006 and November 8, 2005, offiaadscertain employees were granted 56,000 and G6ifres of restricted common
stock, respectively, which vest by continued serdone (“Restricted Stock”). Restricted Stock aisagranted to officers and certain
employees vest over three years beginning afteregtyear holding period from the date of granhwibe-third of the shares vesting in years
four, five and six, respectively.

On November 8, 2006 and November 9, 2005, our xectgive directors were granted 7,500 shares ofriRe] Stock. The non-executive
directors’ shares of Restricted Stock vest as # $imediately and 50% one year after the date arfitgr

Shares of Restricted Stock represent issued asthading shares of common stock, with dividendastthg rights. We measure the fair
value of the Restricted Stock based upon the mariked of our common stock as of the date of gi@estricted Stock is amortized over the
applicable vesting period
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using the straight-line method. Unvested shardestricted Stock are subject to forfeiture upomteation of employment with the
Company.

A summary of the status of the Company’s non-veRtestricted Stock for fiscal year ended June 3072 presented below:

Weighte-Average

Shares Grant Date Fair Valu
Non-vested at July 1, 20C 77,25( $20.6(
Granted 63,50( $28.8:
Vested (7,500) $26.41
Forfeited (16,250 $20.3¢
Non-vested at June 30, 20 117,00( $24.7:

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 200@2@a608, we recorded non-cash stock compensation sgmssociated with the Restricted
Stock of $439,573, $427,195, and $205,301, respeygtiAs of June 30, 2007, total unrecognized nashcstock compensation expense
related to Restricted Stock was $2,259,435, whi@xpected to be recognized over the remaininghteigaverage vesting period of

2.3 years.

Stock Issuances

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, optionmirchase 46,467 shares were exercised, rgpiitioroceeds of $582,303. During the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, options to puecB@6,777 shares were exercised, resulting in poscef $3,911,875.

As discussed in Note 2, on January 24, 2007, wes577,434 shares of our common stock as panedPéfiasquito royalty acquisition.

In April 2007, we sold 4,400,064 shares of our camratock, at a price of $29.25 per share, resuitimyoceeds of approximately

$121.9 million, which is net of the underwriter'scbunt of approximately $6.3 million and transaatcosts of approximately $650,000. A
portion of the net proceeds in this equity offerimgre used to repay the outstanding balance underwolving credit facility with HSBC
Bank, as discussed in Note 5, while the remaingtgonoceeds are intended to be used to fund thésitign and financing of additional
royalty interests and for general corporate purpose

In September 2005, we sold 2,227,912 shares af@umon stock in an underwritten public offeringagirice of $26.00 per share, resulting
in proceeds of approximately $54.7 million, whistiet of the underwriter’s discount of $2.9 milliand transaction costs of approximately
$327,000. The net proceeds in this equity offeliage been and will continue to be used to fundatgaiisition and financing of additional
royalty interests and for general corporate purpose

Preferred Stock

We have 10,000,000 authorized and unissued shia$e8lopar value Preferred Stock.

Treasury Stock

We have adopted a stock repurchase program, invthecBoard of Directors authorized the repurcludsg to $5 million of our common
stock, from time-to-time, in the open market ophvately negotiated
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transactions. In accordance with this program, axehrepurchased 229,224 shares of common stockré&tegsed shares are held in the
treasury for general corporate purposes. We hawmmitments to repurchase our common stock.

Stockholders’ Rights Plan

Our Board of Directors adopted a Stockholders’ Rigtian in which preferred stock purchase righRghts”) were distributed as a dividend
at the rate of one Right for each share of comntocksheld as of close of the business on Septedthet997. The terms of the Stockholders
Rights Plan provide that if any person or groupeasterannounce an intention to acquire or were ¢uiae 15 percent or more of our
outstanding common stock, then the owners of ehalesof common stock (other than the acquiringgeos group) would become entitled
to exercise a right to buy one one-hundredth afwaly issued share of Series A Junior Participangferred Stock of Royal Gold, at an
exercise price of $50 per Right.

9. EARNINGS PER SHARE (“*EPS”) COMPUTATION

For The Year Ended June 30, 2(

Income Shares Per-Shart
(Numerator) (Denominator’ Amount
Basic EPS
Income available to common stockhold $19,720,48 24,827,31 $ 0.7¢
Effect of potentially dilutive option 247,76
Diluted EPS $19,720,48 25,075,08 $ 0.7¢

Options to purchase 1,600 shares of common stbekparchase price of $32.40 per share, were aalstg at June 30, 2007, but were not
included in the computation of diluted EPS becaheeexercise price of these options was greaterttimaverage market price of the
common shares for the period.

For The Year Ended June 30, 2(

Income Shares Per-Shar¢
(Numerator) (Denominator’ Amount
Basic EPS
Income available to common stockhold $11,350,08 22,863,78 $ 0.5C
Effect of potentially dilutive option 270,25(
Diluted EPS $11,350,08 23,134,03 $ 0.4¢

As of June 30, 20086, all outstanding options weatuded in the computation of diluted EPS becaleeskercise price of all the options was
less than the average market price of our commarestor the period.
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For The Year Ended June 30, 2(

Income Shares Per-Shart
(Numerator) (Denominator Amount
Basic EPS
Income available to common stockhold $11,453,71 20,875,95 $ 0.5t
Effect of potentially dilutive option 194,84(
Diluted EPS $11,453,71 21,070,79 $ 0.5¢4

Options to purchase 392,580 shares of common sabein average purchase price of $19.40 per share,outstanding at June 30, 2005, but
were not included in the computation of diluted HieBause the exercise price of these options veadegrthan the average market price of
the common shares for the year.

10. INCOME TAXES

2007 2006 2005
Current federal tax expen $10,309,55 $5,973,87! $3,047,55.
Deferred tax (benefit) expen (813,05) (873,21) 1,375,35
Increase (decrease) in deferred tax asset valuallimmance 51,75¢ — (320,446

$ 9,548,26! $5,100,66 $4,102,46.

The provision for income taxes for the fiscal yeamsled June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, differs fremmaimount of income tax determined by
applying the applicable United States statutorgfatincome tax rate to pre-tax income (net of mtganterest in income of consolidated
subsidiary) from operations as a result of theofeihg differences:

2007 2006 2005
Total expense computed by applying federal r $10,244,06 $5,757,76. $5,444.,66.
State income taxes, net of federal ber 84,09 191,85t 156,60(
Adjustments of valuation allowan: 51,75¢ — (320,44¢)
Excess depletio (956,07 (922,43) (952,529
Other 124,42! 73,48 (225,829

$ 9,548,26! $5,100,66 $4,102,46.
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The tax effects of temporary differences and caryérds, which give rise to our deferred tax asamtsliabilities at June 30, 2007 and 2006,
are as follows:

2007 2006

Deferred tax asset

Non-cash stoc-based compensatic $ 926,66( $ 495,01¢
Other 205,80t 131,62:
Total deferred tax asse 1,132,46 626,63
Valuation allowanct (51,759 —
Net deferred tax asse 1,080,71i 626,63!
Deferred tax liabilities

Mineral property basi (6,535,80) (6,860,01)
Other (301,549 (318,89)
Total deferred tax liabilitie (6,837,35) (7,178,90)
Total net deferred taxe $(5,756,64)  $(6,552,26)

As of June 30, 2007, our valuation allowance waseiated with foreign net operating loss carryfaga As of June 30, 2006 and 2005,
there was no valuation allowance recorded witheesm our deferred tax assets. The net operatggydssociated with RGCL is
approximately $304,000. There is an unlimited daasick and carryforward period to use such losses.

11. MAJOR CUSTOMERS

In each of fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, weived $28,230,183, $23,089,615 and $21,600,73pectisely, of our royalty revenues
from the same operator, but not from the same mine.

12. SIMPLIFIED EMPLOYEE PENSION (“SEP") PLAN

We maintain a Simplified Employee Pension Plan P3#an")in which all employees are eligible to participatée contribute a minimum
3% of an employee’s compensation to an accountpsédr the benefit of the employee. If an emplogkeoses to make additional
contributions to the SEP Plan through salary wittlings, we will match such contributions to a madimof 7% of the employee’s salary.
We contributed $147,139, $150,683 and $126,39&aafyears 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Taparko Project

On March 1, 2006, Royal Gold entered into an Ameraled Restated Funding Agreement with Somita retetehe Taparko project in
Burkina Faso, West Africa. We have a $35 millionding commitment pursuant to the Amended and Restatinding Agreement, of which
we had funded approximately $34.6
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million as of June 30, 2007. Our final funding bétTaparko project, in the amount of $400,000, bellmade upon project completion, as
defined in the Amended and Restated Funding Agraerir royalties are subject to completion of fwnding commitment.

Under a separate Contribution Agreement, High Risweesponsible for contributing additional equityntributions for any cost overruns
incurred during the construction of the Taparkggeband construction warranty periods. If High &iis unable to make the required equity
contributions, we have the right to either (a) pdevfunding that High River failed to fund, or @clare a default under the Funding
Agreement. In the event that we elect to providelfng in the amount that High River fails to fumge may elect to acquire either an equity
interest in High River, consisting of units of commshares and warrants of High River as defineth obtain additional royalty interests in
the Taparko project in a proportional amount to adglitional funding compared with our original $88lion funding commitment. As of
August 15, 2007, High River has made all requirggity commitments as scheduled, under its ContiobuAgreement.

Taranis

On November 4, 2005, we entered into a stratetjanak with Taranis for exploration on the Kettukikko project located in Finland. Duri
our fiscal year 2006, we funded exploration to@gf#500,000 in return for a 2% NSR royalty. We dlawe an option to fund up to an
additional $600,000. The Company elected to exettis option in April 2006. If we fund the entadditional amount, we will earn a 51%
joint venture interest in the Kettukuusikko projesmid we will release our 2.0% NSR royalty. In évent that Royal Gold does not fully fu
the $600,000 to earn the joint venture interestywoald retain our 2.0% NSR royalty. As of June 3007, we had funded $506,404 of the
additional $600,000 option.

Revett

Under the terms of the Revett purchase agreenfen€ompany has the right, but not the obligatiorgure any default by Revett under their
obligations pursuant to an existing mortgage payatg#cured by a promissory note, to Kennecott Men@ompany, a third party and prior
joint venture interest owner of the Troy mine.H&tCompany elects to exercise its right, it woldgénthe subsequent right to reimbursen
from Revett for any amounts disbursed in curinchsefaults. The principal and accrued interest utfteepromissory note owed to
Kennecott Montana Company as of June 30, 2007 appoximately $6.2 million with a maturity datefegbruary 2008.

Casmalia

On March 24, 2000, the United States Environméntatection Agency (“EPA”) notified Royal Gold and 8ther entities that they were
considered potentially responsible parties (“PRRs§er the Comprehensive Environmental Responsep€nsation, and Liability Act of
1980, as amended (“Superfund”), at the Casmali@itess Hazardous Waste Disposal Site (the “Site9dnta Barbara County, California.
EPA's allegation that Royal Gold was a PRP wasdasethe disposal of allegedly hazardous petroleypioration wastes at the Site by
Royal Gold’s predecessor, Royal Resources, Incingl1983 and 1984.

After extensive negotiations, on September 23, 2B@¥al Gold, along with 35 members of the PRP griaugeted by EPA, entered into a
Partial Consent Decree with the United States obAca intending to settle their liability for thenlled States of America’s past and future
clean-up costs incurred at the
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Site. Based on the minimal volume of allegedly hdaas waste that Royal Resources, Inc. disposatitbe Site, our share of the

$25.3 million settlement amount was $107,858, whiehdeposited into the escrow account that the g&p set up for that purpose in
January 2002. The funds were paid to the UnitettStaf America on May 9, 2003. The United StateAmgrica may only pursue Royal
Gold and the other PRPs for additional clean-upscfshe United States of America total clean-opts at the Site significantly exceed the
expected cost of approximately $272 million. Wedngd our potential liability with the United StateSAmerica to be a remote possibility.

At present, Royal Gold is considering entering iatde minimis settlement with the State of CalifarThis settlement offer must be accepted
on or before September 14, 2007, unless an exteisgpught and granted. Such settlement will tésid final conclusion regarding the
Company’s responsibility to address the Casmatia 18atter.

Contractual Obligations

Our long-term contractual obligations as of JuneZB07, are as follows:

Payments Due by Peric

Less thar More that
Contractual Obligation Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Note payabl«?) $19,810,00 $ 870,00( $1,740,00! $17,200,00 $ —
Operating lease® 1,084,15 180,69: 581,68 321,78( —
Long-term retirement obligatio 98,17: 26,40( 52,80( 18,97: —
Total $20,992,33 $1,077,09: $2,374,48. $17,540,75 $ —

@M Amounts represent principal ($15,750,000) aniineded interest payments ($4,060,000) assumingarp extinguishment. See Note 6
for further detail.

(@ We lease office space under a lease agreementhekjgres October 31, 201

Employment Agreements

We have one-year employment agreements with soroaradfficers which, under certain circumstanceguire total minimum future
compensation, at June 30, 2007, of $526,500. Thestef each of these agreements automatically éxdanually, for one additional year,
unless terminated by Royal Gold or the officer,cading to the terms of the agreements.

Revolving Credit Facility Commitment Fees

We have a line of credit from HSBC that may be usegicquire producing royalties and for generapooate purposes. As discussed in Note
5, during our third quarter, we increased our autrrevolving credit facility from $30 million to $8million. During fiscal years 2007, 2006
and 2005, we paid commitment fees of $229,236, F®rand $76,042, respectively, to HSBC for thehaxg credit facility. As of June 30,
2007, no funds are outstanding under the revoleiedit facility.
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14. RELATED PARTY

Crescent Valley Partners, L.P. (“CVP”") was formedadimited partnership in April 1992. It owns 3% net value royalty on production of
minerals from a portion of the Pipeline Mining Cdmp Denver Mining Finance Company, our wholly-owrseibsidiary, is the general
partner and holds a 2.0% interest in CVP. In addjtRoyal Gold holds a 29.6% limited partner ins¢ia the partnership, while our Execut
Chairman, the Chairman of our Audit Committee amd dbther members of our board of directors holéiggregate 41.69% limited partner
interest. The general partner performs administeatervices for CVP in receiving and processingtlyalty payments received from the
operator including the disbursement of royalty paepis and record keeping for in-kind distributiongtte limited partners, including our
directors and Executive Chairman.

CVP receives its royalty from the Cortez Joint \tgatin-kind. The Company, as well as certain olineited partners, sell their pro-rata
shares of such gold immediately and receive digtidins in cash, while CVP holds gold for certaihetlimited partners. Such gold
inventories, which totaled 27,465 ounces of goldfatune 30, 2007, are held by a third party refine Utah for the account of the limited
partners of CVP. The inventories are carried abhisal cost and are classified laventory — restrictedn the consolidated balance sheets.
The carrying value of the gold in inventory was $l,562 as of June 30, 2007, while the fair valuguch ounces was $17,865,983 as of
June 30, 2007. None of the gold currently heldhirentory as of June 30, 2007, is attributed to R@®gd, as the gold allocated to Royal G
is typically sold within five days of receipt.

15. STAFF ACCOUNTING BULLETIN NO. 108

In September 2006, the SEC issued SAB 108. The @oynelected early application of SAB 108 duringliisd quarter of fiscal year 2007,
with effect from July 1, 2006. Prior to SAB 108eth have been two widely-recognized methods fontifyang the effects of financial
statement misstatements: the “roll-over” method thed‘iron curtain” method. The roll-over methodfses primarily on the impact of a
misstatement on the income statement — includiegehersing effect of prior year misstatements titswse can lead to the accumulation of
misstatements in the balance sheet. The iron-oumaithod, on the other hand, focuses primarilyhenefffect of correcting the period-end
balance sheet with less emphasis on the reverffieggeof prior year misstatements on the incorateghent. Prior to our application of the
guidance in SAB 108, we used the roll-over mettadjfiantifying financial statement misstatements.

SAB 108 permits existing public companies to itiigiapply its provisions by either (i) restatinggnrfinancial statements as if the “dual
approach” had always been applied, or (ii) recaydive cumulative effect of initially applying theal approach” as adjustments to the
carrying value of assets and liabilities with afsefting adjustment to the opening balance of methiearnings. The Company has elected to
record the effects of applying SAB 108 as an adjesit to the carrying value of assets and liabdljtowever, due to the nature of such
adjustments (described below), no offsetting adjesit was necessary to the Company’s beginningeoyélar retained earnings.

Using its pre-SAB 108 methodology for assessingstatements, the Company has determined that thet eff such error on any previously
issued financial statement was not material.

Consolidation of CVP

CVP was formed as a limited partnership in Aprill@092. It owns a 1.25% net value royalty on proiuncof minerals from a portion of the
Pipeline Mining Complex. Denver Mining Finance
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Company, our wholly-owned subsidiary, is the geheastner and holds a 2% interest in the partnprdhiaddition, we hold a 29.6% limited
partner interest in the partnership, while our Exie Chairman, the Chairman of our Audit Commitéeel two other members of our board
of directors hold an aggregate 41.69% limited parinterest.

Historically, the Company recorded its proportioimaérest (31.6%) in CVP’s assets, liabilities,evues and expenses pursuant to Emerging
Issues Task Force 00-tivestor Balance Sheet and Income Statement uhdétquity Method for Investments in Certain Parshéps and
Other Ventures.

In connection with the preparation of its finanattements for the quarter ended March 31, 20@7Cbmpany determined that due to the
legal structure of CVP and certain related fact@\éP should have been fully consolidated, effecideember 31, 2003, pursuant to the
guidance of FASB Interpretation No. @nsolidation of Variable Interest Entitiggs revised, “FIN 46R”), rather than consolidateddd on
the Company’s proportional interest in CVP. On liyfoonsolidated basis, all of the assets, lialb#it revenues and expenses of CVP would
have been reflected in the Company’s consoliddteth€ial statements, including a minority interegtiivalent to the net assets of CVP
representing the ownership share of royalty intsriesmineral properties and inventory held foravth Fully consolidating CVP would not
have changed the Company’s proportionate shararafregs from CVP, nor would it have changed the gany’s consolidated earnings or
shareholders’ equity for any previous periods.

As indicated above, the Company determined thattieet of proportionately, rather than fully, cotidating CVP was not material to any
previously issued financial statements based oCtmapany’s pre-SAB 108 methodology. However, thealative effect of correcting the
error in the quarter ended March 31, 2007, wouldhlagerial to that quarter as well as to the eseahaesults of operations for fiscal 2007. As
such, the Company has elected to apply the trangitiovisions of SAB 108 by adjusting the openiagying value of the following assets
and liabilities for fiscal 2007:
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June 30
2006 Adjusted
Reportec SAB 108 July 1, 200€
Balance Adjustment Balance
Royalty interests in mineral properties, $ 84,589,56 $ 97,59¢ $ 84,687,16
Inventory— restricted (Note 13 $ — $9,373,88. $ 9,373,88
Total asset $172,259,8 $9,471,48 $181,731,30
Total liabilities $ 10,600,17 $ — $ 10,600,17
Minority interest in subsidiar $ — $9,471,48! $ 9,471,48
Total stockholder equity $161,659,64 $ — $161,659,64
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $172,259,82 $9,471,48! $181,731,30

As indicated above, the adoption of SAB 108 hadmuact on the Company'retained earnings. Accordingly, no adjustment mexessary t
record the cumulative effect on the opening balafaetained earnings at July 1, 2006.

The Company does not believe, based on its pre-B¥Bmethodology, that the effect of proportionatether than fully, consolidating CVP
was material in any of the periods since DecemePB03, the effective date of FIN 46R to the Conypdn reaching that determination, the
Company considered the following incremental adjgsits to our reported annual financial stateméatdiscal years 2005 and 2006.

Fiscal Yeal Fiscal Yeal
Ended June 3( Ended June 3(
2005 2006
Royalty revenut $ 2,550,24! $ 1,507,09!
Cost of operation $ 124,31! $ 59,27:
Depreciation, depletion and amortizati $ 53,93¢ $ 20,60¢
Income before income taxes and minority inte $2,371,99! $ 1,427,211
Minority interest in income of consolidated subariks $(2,371,99) $(1,427,21)
Net income $ — $ —

16. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On July 30, 2007, we entered into an Amended arstiaiRel Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “MergereAment”) with Battle Mountain
Battle Mountain and Royal Battle Mountain, Inc. @kder Sub”), a newly-formed and wholly-owned sulasidof Royal Gold. The Merger
Agreement amends and restates the Agreement anaPléerger dated as of April 17, 2007 by and amBogal Gold, Battle Mountain and
the Merger Sub pursuant to which Merger Sub wilhierged into Battle Mountain with Battle Mountaiumaving as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Royal Gold (the “Merger”).

Under the Merger Agreement, each outstanding shfaBattle Mountain common stock will be convertatbithe right to receive, at the
election of each Battle Mountain stockholder, aitfilea number of shares of Royal Gold common stodie determined at closing (“Stock
Election”) or (ii) approximately $0.55 in cash (“€laElection”), in each case assuming 91,563,506 stat Battle Mountain common stock
will be issued and outstanding immediately priothe effective time of the merger. The per sharesicteration, if a holder of Battle Mount:
common stock makes a Stock Election, will be basethe average price per share of Royal Gold comstmek as reported on the NASDAQ
Global Select Market for the five trading day pdrigp to and including the second business day giregdébut not including) the closing date
of the merger transaction. If the average prideeisw
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$29.00, the per share stock consideration will éteminined based on an aggregate of 1,634,410 shiaResyal Gold common stock and the
holders of shares of Battle Mountain common stookild receive 0.0179 shares of Royal Gold commocksiior each share of Battle
Mountain common stock. If the average price of R@@ld common stock is $30.18 or above, the pereshock consideration will be
determined based on an aggregate of 1,570,507ssbRoyal Gold common stock and the holders ofeshaf Battle Mountain common
stock would receive 0.0172 shares of Royal Goldroomstock for each share of Battle Mountain comistock. If the average price is abt
or equal to $29.00 but less than $30.18, then ¢nesipare consideration for each share of Battleridon common stock would be
proportionally adjusted based on the average pificdyal Gold common stock, using $47,397,901.2thasggregate purchase price. The
per share consideration if a holder of Battle Maimtommon stock makes a Cash Election will be dhasea maximum amount of
$50,359,928 as the aggregate purchase price.

The stock consideration and cash considerationipaya the Merger are subject to pro rata adjustrhased on the number of issued and
outstanding shares of Battle Mountain common stockediately prior to the effective time of the Mergand a potential reduction or
holdback of approximately 0.0006 shares of Roydtl@ommon stock on a per share basis, in the das&tock Election, or $0.017 on a per
share basis, in the case of a Cash Election, las#tk cost of settling certain Battle Mountaiightion.

Royal Gold, Battle Mountain and BMGX (Barbados) ganation (with Battle Mountain, the “Borrowers”)aBle Mountain’s wholly-owned
subsidiary, entered into the First Amendment toBhHdge Facility Agreement (the “First AmendmentThe First Amendment amends the
March 28, 2007, Bridge Facility Agreement by ancdbagRoyal Gold and the Borrowers whereby Royal Gagjceed to make available to the
Borrowers a bridge finance facility of up to $20lman. In April 2007, the maximum availability undéhe bridge finance facility was reduced
to $15 million. Outstanding principal, interest aaxpenses under the bridge facility may be condeateRoyal Gold’s option into Battle
Mountain common stock, at a conversion price pareshf $0.60 at any time during the term of théldpeifacility, provided that Royal Gold
notifies Battle Mountain of its election to convert or before April 4, 2008. The bridge facilityllwhature on June 6, 2008. Please see Ni
for further detail regarding the bridge financeiliac
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Fiscal Year 2007 Quarter Ende
September 3
December 3:
March 31
June 3(

Fiscal Year 2006 Quarter Ende
September 3
December 3:
March 31
June 3(

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basic Diluted

Royalty Operating Earnings Pe Earnings
Revenue: Income Net Income Share Per Shar

$ 9,928,64. $ 6,633,87. $ 4,960,13 $ 0.21 $ 0.21
12,855,28 7,835,98: 5,635,65: 0.24 0.24
11,208,55 5,690,71! 3,438,61! 0.14 0.14
14,364,34 8,345,69: 5,686,07! 0.2C 0.2C
$48,356,82 $28,506,26. $19,720,48 $ 0.7¢ $ 0.7¢
$ 6,827,61! $ 4,045,67 $ 3,057,43. $ 0.14 $ 0.14
7,575,30° 3,252,81! 2,907,29! 0.12 0.1z
5,760,75! 1,742,57 1,819,13 0.0¢ 0.0¢
8,216,46 4,370,77. 3,566,21I 0.1€ 0.1t
$28,380,14 $13,411,84 $11,350,08 $ 0.5C $ 0.4¢
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUTANTS ON ACC OUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, thenewo changes in or disagreements with our IndkperRegistered Public Accounting
Firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, over accountiryfmancial disclosure.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Conclusions Regarding Disclosure Controls and Prodeires

Our President and Chief Executive Officer and CRiefincial Officer evaluated the effectivenesshef Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) undeBdicarities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, asraf 30, 2007. Our President and
Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial ioffr, based on their evaluation of our disclosumretimls and procedures as of June 30,
2007, concluded that our disclosure controls andguures were effective for this purpose.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finaha@orting as defined in Rules 13&¢{f)
and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Adi9®4, as amended. Our internal control over firgeporting is designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynaficial reporting and the preparation of finansiatements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes

Management assessed the effectiveness of ourahiwntrol over financial reporting as of June 3007. In making this assessment,
management used the criteria set forth by the Ca@endof Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadwamm@ession (COSO) internal
Control-Integrated FrameworkBased on our assessment and those criteria, margad concluded that, as of June 30, 2007, oumnialte
control over financial reporting is effective.

Our management, including our President and Chiethtive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, daest expect that our disclosure contr
and procedures or our internal controls will prenadherror and all fraud. A control system, no teahow well conceived and operated, can
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assuraratdttb objectives of the control system are metthen, the design of a control system must
reflect the fact that there are resource consgantl the benefits of controls must be considezkadive to their costs. Because of the inherent
limitations in all control systems, no evaluatidrcontrols can provide absolute assurance thaballrol issues and instances of fraud, if any,
within the Company have been detected.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the Company’s independgistered public accounting firm audited theaficial statements included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, has also audited mamage's assessment of the effectiveness of the Coy'ganternal control over financial
reporting as of June 30, 2007, as stated in teeont, which is included herein.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

PricewaterhouseCoopers’ report is set forth in 18af this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is inagted by reference herein.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There was no change in our internal control oveairicial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f)emtthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended) during our fourth fiscal quarter tlzet tnaterially affected, or is reasonably likelyrtaterially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT

The information required by this item appears urilercaptions “Proposal No. 1 — Election of ClddBitectors and Section 16(a) Benefici
Ownership Reporting Compliance” included in the @amy’s Proxy Statement for its 2007 Annual Stocleod Meeting to be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 @digs June 30, 2007, and is incorporated by reterémthis Annual Report on

Form 10-K.

The Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethiitentthe meaning of Iltem 406 of Regulation S-K pidal by the SEC under the
Exchange Act that applies to our principal exeaut¥ficer and principal financial officer is avadila on the Company’s website at
www.royalgold.com and in print without change ty @tockholder who requests a copy. Requests faesghould be directed to Royal Gt
Inc., Attention Karen Gross, 1660 Wynkoop Streeifes1000, Denver, Colorado, 80202. The Comparmsniis$ to satisfy the disclosure
requirements of ltem 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding amendment to, or a waiver from, a provision of@mmpany’s Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics by posting such informationfen@ompany’s website.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item appears urilercaption “Compensation of Directors and Offi¢encluded in the Company’s Proxy
Statement for its 2007 Annual Stockholders Meetinge filed with the Securities and Exchange Corsiarswithin 120 days after June 30,
2007, and is incorporated by reference in this AhiReport on Form 10-K.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item appears urilercaption “Security Ownership of Certain Benefi©Owners and Managemeriticludec
in the Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2007 Anr8tackholders Meeting to be filed with the Sedastand Exchange Commission within
120 days after June 30, 2007, and is incorporagaéfierence in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

98




Table of Contents

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item appears & @ompanys Proxy Statement for its 2007 Annual Stockholdéegting to be filed with th
Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 @digs June 30, 2007, and is incorporated by reterémthis Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item appears urilercaption “Ratification of Appointment of Indegkent Certified Public Accountants”
included in the Company’s Proxy Statement for 882 Annual Stockholders Meeting to be filed witk ®ecurities and Exchange
Commission within 120 days after June 30, 2007 ,iamacorporated by reference in this Annual Reporform 10-K.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) The following is a list of documents filed as pafthis report and are included herewith (*) or édneen filed previously

(1) Financial Statements included in Iterr
. Consolidated Balance She
. Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compsalemcome
. Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity
. Consolidated Statements of Cash F
. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem
(2) Financial Statement schedules: All Schesiale omitted because the information called fooisapplicable, is not required, or
because the required information is set forth enfthancial statements or notes ther
(3) Exhibits:
Exhibit
Number Description
2.1 Certificate of Ownership and Merger of High Dedédrger Sub Inc. into High Desert Mineral Resourées, (filed as Exhibit 2.1
to the Compar’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00:-13357) on December 23, 2002 and incorporated heseieference
2.2 Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Medtigazd July 30, 2007, among Battle Mountain Goldl&gtion Corp., Roy:
Gold, Inc. and Royal Battle Mountain, Inc. (filesl Bxhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report om#8-K (File No. 001-
13357) on August 2, 2007 and incorporated hereirefgrence
3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation (filed as Bxt3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Forid 8n September 21, 2005
and incorporated herein by referen
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws (filed as Exhibit @9.the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Filz N01-13357) on
November 14, 2005 and incorporated herein by rete}
3.3 Certificate of Designations (filed as Exhibit 2@40 the Company’s Registration Statement on Fof308 December 27, 1996

and incorporated herein by referen
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Exhibit

Number Description

4.1 Shareholders’ Rights Agreement (filed as Exhitit . the Company’s Form 8-A (File No. 000-56647)Ieptember 12, 1997
and incorporated herein by referen

10.1** Equity Incentive Plan (filed as part of the Comparproxy statement for its 1996 Annual Meeting tdckholders on
November 25, 1996 (File No. 0-56647) and incorporated herein by referer

10.2 Exploration and Development Option Agreement betwlacer Dome United States, Inc. and Royal Gaidl, dated effective
July 1, 1998 (filed as Exhibit 10(v) to the Companfnnual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-1336n)September 28, 1998
and incorporated herein by referen

10.3 Royalty Agreement between Royal Gold, Inc. andGbetez Joint Venture dated April 1, 1999 (filedpast of Item 5 of the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00-13357) on April 12, 1999 and incorporated hereimdfgrence

10.4 Firm offer to purchase royalty interest of “ldahoo@p” between Royal Gold, Inc. and Idaho Group datdy 22, 1999 (filed as
Attachment A to the Company’s Current Report omi-8¢K (File No. 001-13357) on September 2, 1999iandrporated herein
by reference

10.5%* Amendment to Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Appgnito the Company’s proxy statement (File No. @B357) on October 1!
1999 and incorporated herein by referer

10.6 Assignment and Assumption Agreement, dated Decem2002 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’si@at Report on
Form &K (File No. 00:-13357) on December 23, 2002 and incorporated hegeieference

10.7 Production Payment Agreement between Genesis hacRayal Gold, Inc. dated October 13, 2004 (filsceahibit 10.1(a) to the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00--13357) on October 18, 2004 and incorporated héreireference

10.8 Royalty Deed between Genesis Inc. and Royal Gold,dated October 13, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.1¢lthe Company’s
Current Report on Formr-K (File No. 00:-13357) on October 18, 2004 and incorporated hdxgireference

10.9 Agreement between Genesis Inc. and Royal Gold dated October 13, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.1¢chhte Company’s Current
Report on Form-K (File No. 00-13357) on October 18, 2004 and incorporated héreieference

10.10**  Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (filedEashibit 10.01 to the Company’s Current Report omi8-K (File No. 001-

13357) on February 25, 2005 and incorporated héreeference
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.11**  Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (filasl Exhibit 10.02 to the Company’s Current ReporEorm 8-K (File
No. 002-13357) on February 25, 2005 and incorporated hérneneference

10.12**  Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (filed as Extil§i.03 to the Company’s Current Report on Form @i#te No. 001-13357)
on February 25, 2005 and incorporated herein reete’

10.13**  Form of Performance Share Agreement. (filed as liikhD.6 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on FAOnQ (File No. 001-
13357) on May 9, 2006 and incorporated herein Breace)

10.14**  Agreement dated February 18, 2005, by and betwegalR5old, Inc. and Stefan Wenger (filed as Exhlifit05 to the Company’
Current Report on Forrmr-K (File No. 00:-13357) on February 25, 2005 and incorporated hérgieference

10.15**  Royal Gold, Inc. 2004 Omnibus Long-Term IncentiarA(filed as Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s CurrBeiport on Form 8-K
(File No. 00:-13357) on September 21, 2005 and incorporatedrhbyeieference

10.16**  Form of Employment Contract (together with Schediil€ertain Executive Officers Parties Theretdp(fias Exhibit 99.3 to the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00:-13357) on September 22, 2005 and incorporatedrhbyeieference

10.17 Royalty Assignment and Agreement, effective as eé&nber 26, 2002, between High Desert Mineral Ressulnc. and High
Desert Gold Corporation (filed as Exhibit 99.4 e Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File N@113357) on
September 22, 2005 and incorporated herein byenede)

10.18 Royalty Assignment, Confirmation, Amendment, angt®ement of Royalty, and Agreement, dated as eEhber 30, 1995,
among Barrick Bullfrog Inc., Barrick Goldstrike Més Inc. and Royal Hal Co. (filed as Exhibit 99.5le Company’s Current
Report on Form-K (File No. 00:-13357) on September 22, 2005 and incorporatedrhbyeieference

10.19 Amendment to Royalty Assignment, Confirmation, Amerent, and Restatement of Royalty, and Agreeméettire as of
October 1, 2004, among Barrick Bullfrog Inc., BekriGoldstrike Mines Inc. and Royal Hal Co. (filesl Bxhibit 99.6 to the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00--13357) on September 22, 2005 and incorporatedrhbyeieference

10.20 Proceeds Agreement with HSBC Bank USA (filed asiEixi10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on For @ile No. 001-

13357) on December 20, 2005 and incorporated hegeirference
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.21 Purchase Agreement between Kennecott Minerals Coyngad Royal Gold, Inc., dated December 22, 20it&d(fs Exhibit 10.1
to the Compar’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00:-13357) on December 29, 2005 and incorporated heseieference

10.22 Amended and Restated Funding Agreement datedReshofiary 22, 2006, between Société des Mines darkapalso known as
Somita, SA, and Royal Gold, Inc. (filed as Exhitit1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-#e(No. 001-13357) on
March 7, 2006 and incorporated herein by refere

10.23 Conveyance of Tail Royalty and Grant of Milling Fegted as of February 22, 2006, between Sociét®aes de Taparko, also
known as Somita, SA, and Royal Gold, Inc. (filedexhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report onnk&-K (File No. 001-
13357) on March 7, 2006 and incorporated hereirebgrence

10.24 Conveyance of Production Payment dated as of FebR2a 2006, between Société des Mines de Tapafko known as Somita,
SA, and Royal Gold, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.3th® Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File B@1-13357) on March 7,
2006 and incorporated herein by referer

10.25 Guaranty and Agreement in Support of Somita Fundiggeement dated as of February 22, 2006, from Riyler Gold Mine Ltd
to and for the benefit of Royal Gold Inc. (filed Eshibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Reportrarm 10-Q (File No. 001-
13357) on May 9, 2006 and incorporated herein Isreace)

10.26 Pledge Agreement dated as of February 22, 200&gleet High River Gold Mines (International) Ltd. gHiRiver Gold Mines
(West Africa) Ltd. and Royal Gold, Inc. (filed asltbit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report omrrd.0-Q (File No. 001-
13357) on May 9, 2006 and incorporated herein lsreace)

10.27 Guarantee Agreement dated as of February 22, 2§08igh River Gold Mines Ltd. in favor of Royal Ghlinc. (filed as

Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrz 10-Q (File No. 001-13357) on May 9, 2006 arabiporated herein by
reference’
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.28

10.29

10.30**

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

Pledge of Securities dated as of February 22, 2006ligh River Gold Mines Ltd. in favor of Royal (8¢ Inc. (filed as
Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amr 10-Q (File No. 001-13357) on May 9, 2006 armbiporated herein by
reference

Contribution Agreement in Support of Somita Fundkgyeement dated as of February 22, 2006, from Higler Gold Mine Ltd.
to and for the benefit of Royal Gold Inc. (filed Eshibit 10.5 to the Company’s Quarterly Reportramm 10-Q (File No. 001-
13357) on May 9, 2006 and incorporated herein Breace)

Form of Indemnification Agreement with Directorsda@fficers (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Compangsrrent Report on
Form ¢-K (File No. 00:-13357) on November 13, 2006 and incorporated héreneference

Purchase and Sale Agreement for Pefiasquito and Rtlyalties among Minera Kennecott S.A. DE C.V.nKecott Exploration
Company and Royal Gold, Inc., dated December 286 Zfiled as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quaxtétkport on Form 10-Q
(File No. 00:-13357) on February 9, 2007 and incorporated hdrgieference

Shares for Debt Agreement between Kennecott Exjidar&ompany and Royal Gold, Inc., dated DecemBePR06 (filed as
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrx 10-Q (File No. 001-13357) on February 9, 200d imcorporated herein
by reference

Contract for Assignment of Rights Granted, by Ma&ennecott, S.A. de C.V. Represented in this Agesd by Mr. Dave F.
Simpson, and Minera Pefiasquito, S.A. de C.V., Remted in this Agreement by Attorney, Jose Marilia@#o Tamayo (filed as
Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrx 10-Q (File No. 001-13357) on February 9, 200d imcorporated herein
by reference

Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreement amoyaj Rold, Inc., High Desert Mineral Resources, kned HSBC Bank
USA, National Association, dated January 5, 200&dfas Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Quarterly &&pn Form 10-Q (File
No. 002-13357) on February 9, 2007 and incorporated hdrgieference

Supplemental Mortgage, Deed of Trust, Security Agrent, Pledge and Financing Statement between bigkrt Mineral

Resources, Inc. and HSBC USA Bank, National Assimziadated January 5, 2007 (filed as Exhibit 10.the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form -Q (File No. 00-13357) on February 9, 2007 and incorporated héreirference
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.36 Amended and Restated Mortgage, Deed of Trust, Bg@greement, Pledge and Financing Statement baviroyal Gold and
HSBC USA Bank, National Association, dated Jan&r007 (filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Qerdy Report on
Form 1(-Q (File No. 00-13357) on February 9, 2007 and incorporated hdxeieference

10.37 Second Amended and Restated Promissory Note befd@gad Gold, High Desert Mineral Resources, Ind Bi$BC USA Bank,
National Association, dated January 5, 2007 (fdedexhibit 10.8 to the Compé's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-
13357) on February 9, 2007 and incorporated hdxgirference

10.38 Assignment of Rights Agreement among Mario lvanritdedez Alvarez, Royal Gold Chile Limitada and Rdgald Inc., dated
January 16, 2007 (filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Canys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 0@BB87) on February 9,
2007 and incorporated herein by referer

10.39 Term Loan Agreement between Royal Gold Chile Liodtand HSBC Bank USA, National Association, datedfaMarch 1, 200
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s QuarterlgpgRrt on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-13357) on May@)2and incorporated
herein by reference

10.40 Guaranty between Royal Gold, Inc. and HSBC Bank [U$#tional Association, dated as of March 1, 200&d as Exhibit 10.2 t
the Compan’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q (File No. 00-13357) on May 4, 2007 and incorporated herein Bsreace)

10.41 Option and Support Agreement by and between Rogél,@nc. and Mark D. Kucher dated as of March@)2 (filed as
Exhibit 99.1 to the Compa’s Schedule 13D on March 15, 2007 and incorporategim by reference

10.42 Option and Support Agreement by and between Rogéd,Gnc. and IAMGOLD Corporation dated as of Ma&2007 (filed as
Exhibit 99.2 to the Compa’s Schedule 13D on March 15, 2007 and incorporageei by reference

10.43 Bridge Finance Facility Agreement among Battle MaimGold Exploration Corp. and BMGX (Barbados) @aration as Royal
Gold, Inc. dated March 28, 2007 (filed as Exhil§it®to the Compang’Schedule 13D/A (Amendment No. 2) on April 2, 200id
incorporated herein by referenc

10.44 First Amendment to the Bridge Facility Agreemeratet! July 30, 2007, by and among Battle Mountaild&aploration Corp.,

BMGX (Barbados) Corporation and Royal Gold, IncdediaJuly 30, 2007 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Qamy’s Current Report
on Form &K on August 2, 2007 and incorporated herein byrezfee)
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.45 Secured Promissory Note by Battle Mountain Goldl&xgiion Corp. and BMGX (Barbados) Corporation twyRl Gold, Inc.
dated March 28, 2007 (filed as Exhibit 99.2 to @@mpany’s Schedule 13D/A (Amendment No. 2) on Apri2007 and
incorporated herein by referenc

10.46 Voting Limitation Agreement by and between Royald;énc. and Battle Mountain Gold Exploration Codated as of March 28,
2007 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Cutri@eport on Form 8-K (FileNo. 001-13357) on Mar€h 3007 and
incorporated herein by referenc

10.47 Form of Irrevocable Proxy (filed as Exhibit 10.1tkee Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File B@1-13357) on August 2,
2007 and incorporated herein by referer

14.1 Amended Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (fiteder Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Current ReporEorm 8-K (File
No. 002-13357) on November 13, 2006 and incorporated héreieference

21.1* Royal Gold and Its Subsidiari

23.1* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

31.1* Certification of President and Chief Executive ©éfi required by Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 200z

31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer required ISection 302 of the Sarbai-Oxley Act of 200z

32.1* Written Statement of the President and Chief Exteeudfficer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 200z

32.2* Written Statement of the Chief Financial Officerguant to Section 906 of the SarbeOxley Act of 2002

* Filed herewith

**  |dentifies each management contract or compensplt&nor arrangemer
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 16f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the tegig has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatyp authorized.
ROYAL GOLD, INC.

Date: August 22, 200 By: /s/ Tony Jense

Tony Jensel
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Date: August 22, 200 By: /s/ Tony Jense

Tony Jensel
President and Chief Executive Offic

Date: August 22, 200 By: /s/ Stefan L. Weng:

Stefan L. Wenge
Chief Financial Officel

Date: August 22, 200 By: /s/ Stanley Demps¢

Stanley Dempse
Executive Chairma

Date: August 22, 200 By: /s/ S. Oden Howell, J

S. Oden Howell, Ji
Director

Date: August 22, 200 By: /s/ John W. Got

John W. Gott
Director

Date: August 22, 200 By: /s/ Merritt E. Marcus

Merritt E. Marcus
Director

Date: August 22, 200 By: /s/ M. Craig Haast

M. Craig Haast
Director

Date: August 22, 200 By: /s/ James W. Stucke

James W. Stucke
Director

Date: August 22, 200 By: /s/ Donald J. Wortl

Donald J. Wortt
Director
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Exhibit Index

Exhibit

Number Description

2.1 Certificate of Ownership and Merger of High Dedédrger Sub Inc. into High Desert Mineral Resourées, (filed as Exhibit 2.1
to the Compar’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00-13357) on December 23, 2002 and incorporated hesemaference

2.2 Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Medtigezd July 30, 2007, among Battle Mountain Goldl&gtion Corp., Roy:
Gold, Inc. and Royal Battle Mountain, Inc. (filesl Bxhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report om#k8-K (File No. 001-
13357) on August 2, 2007 and incorporated hereirefgrence

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation (filed as Bxt3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Forid 8n September 21, 2005
and incorporated herein by referen

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws (filed as Exhibit @9.the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Filz N01-13357) on
November 14, 2005 and incorporated herein by rete}

3.3 Certificate of Designations (filed as Exhibit 2@.40 the Company’s Registration Statement on Fof3n08 December 27, 1996
and incorporated herein by referen

4.1 Shareholders’ Rights Agreement (filed as Exhihit . the Company’s Form 8-A (File No. 066647) on September 12, 1997 .

incorporated herein by referenc
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.1** Equity Incentive Plan (filed as part of the Compamproxy statement for its 1996 Annual Meeting tdckholders on
November 25, 1996 (File No. 0-56647) and incorporated herein by referer

10.2 Exploration and Development Option Agreement beiwkacer Dome United States, Inc. and Royal Gaid, dated effective
July 1, 1998 (filed as Exhibit 10(v) to the Companfnnual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-1336n) September 28, 1998
and incorporated herein by referen

10.3 Royalty Agreement between Royal Gold, Inc. andGbetez Joint Venture dated April 1, 1999 (filedpast of Item 5 of the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00-13357) on April 12, 1999 and incorporated hereimdfgrence

10.4 Firm offer to purchase royalty interest of “IdahooGp” between Royal Gold, Inc. and Idaho Group datdy 22, 1999 (filed as
Attachment A to the Company’s Current Report omk8rK (File No. 001-13357) on September 2, 1999iandrporated herein
by reference

10.5** Amendment to Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Appienalto the Company’s proxy statement (File No. €B357) on October 1!
1999 and incorporated herein by referer

10.6 Assignment and Assumption Agreement, dated Deceld002 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’si@uat Report on
Form &K (File No. 00:-13357) on December 23, 2002 and incorporated heseieference

10.7 Production Payment Agreement between Genesis hiadcRayal Gold, Inc. dated October 13, 2004 (filsceahibit 10.1(a) to the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00:-13357) on October 18, 2004 and incorporated hdneieference

10.8 Royalty Deed between Genesis Inc. and Royal Gold,dated October 13, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.1¢lthe Company’s
Current Report on Formr-K (File No. 00:-13357) on October 18, 2004 and incorporated hdrgieference

10.9 Agreement between Genesis Inc. and Royal Gold dated October 13, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.1¢chhie Company’s Current
Report on Form-K (File No. 00:-13357) on October 18, 2004 and incorporated hdngieference

10.10**  Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (filedEashibit 10.01 to the Company’s Current Report omi8-K (File No. 001-
13357) on February 25, 2005 and incorporated hérneeference

10.11**  Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (filasl Exhibit 10.02 to the Company’s Current ReporForm 8-K (File

No. 002-13357) on February 25, 2005 and incorporated hérneneference
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.12**  Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (filed as Extil.03 to the Company’s Current Report on Form @ite No. 001-13357)
on February 25, 2005 and incorporated herein reete’

10.13**  Form of Performance Share Agreement. (filed asliixhD.6 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on FAOnQ (File No. 001-
13357) on May 9, 2006 and incorporated herein Isreace)

10.14**  Agreement dated February 18, 2005, by and betwegalR5old, Inc. and Stefan Wenger (filed as Exhiifit05 to the Company’
Current Report on Formr-K (File No. 00:-13357) on February 25, 2005 and incorporated héreieference

10.15**  Royal Gold, Inc. 2004 Omnibus Long-Term IncentiarA(filed as Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s CurrBeiport on Form 8-K
(File No. 00:-13357) on September 21, 2005 and incorporatedrhbyeieference

10.16**  Form of Employment Contract (together with Schedifl€ertain Executive Officers Parties Theretdg(fias Exhibit 99.3 to the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00--13357) on September 22, 2005 and incorporatedrhbyeieference

10.17 Royalty Assignment and Agreement, effective as eé&nber 26, 2002, between High Desert Mineral Ressulnc. and High
Desert Gold Corporation (filed as Exhibit 99.4he Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File N#1-13357) on
September 22, 2005 and incorporated herein byaede)

10.18 Royalty Assignment, Confirmation, Amendment, andgt®&eEment of Royalty, and Agreement, dated as okhber 30, 1995,
among Barrick Bullfrog Inc., Barrick Goldstrike Mis Inc. and Royal Hal Co. (filed as Exhibit 99.3He Company’s Current
Report on Form-K (File No. 00--13357) on September 22, 2005 and incorporatedrhbyeieference

10.19 Amendment to Royalty Assignment, Confirmation, Amerent, and Restatement of Royalty, and Agreeméettie as of
October 1, 2004, among Barrick Bullfrog Inc., BekriGoldstrike Mines Inc. and Royal Hal Co. (filesl EBxhibit 99.6 to the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00:-13357) on September 22, 2005 and incorporatedrhbyeieference

10.20 Proceeds Agreement with HSBC Bank USA (filed asiBiki10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Fori @ile No. 001-
13357) on December 20, 2005 and incorporated hbsersference

10.21 Purchase Agreement between Kennecott Minerals Coyngad Royal Gold, Inc., dated December 22, 20i0&d(Bs Exhibit 10.1

to the Compar’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 00-13357) on December 29, 2005 and incorporated heseirference
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.22 Amended and Restated Funding Agreement datedRsbotiary 22, 2006, between Société des Mines darkapalso known as
Somita, SA, and Royal Gold, Inc. (filed as Exhitit1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-#e(No. 001-13357) on
March 7, 2006 and incorporated herein by refere

10.23 Conveyance of Tail Royalty and Grant of Milling Feéeted as of February 22, 2006, between Sociét®ldes de Taparko, also
known as Somita, SA, and Royal Gold, Inc. (filedexbibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report onnk®&-K (File No. 001-
13357) on March 7, 2006 and incorporated hereirebgrence

10.24 Conveyance of Production Payment dated as of FebR2a 2006, between Société des Mines de Tapafko known as Somita,
SA, and Royal Gold, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.3tlh® Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File B@1-13357) on March 7,
2006 and incorporated herein by referer

10.25 Guaranty and Agreement in Support of Somita Funédiggeement dated as of February 22, 2006, from IRiyler Gold Mine Ltd
to and for the benefit of Royal Gold Inc. (filedEshibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Reportramm 10-Q (File No. 001-
13357) on May 9, 2006 and incorporated herein lsreace)

10.26 Pledge Agreement dated as of February 22, 200&¢eleet High River Gold Mines (International) Ltd. gHiRiver Gold Mines
(West Africa) Ltd. and Royal Gold, Inc. (filed agltibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report omrd 0-Q (File No. 001-
13357) on May 9, 2006 and incorporated herein sreace)

10.27 Guarantee Agreement dated as of February 22, 2908igh River Gold Mines Ltd. in favor of Royal Ghlinc. (filed as
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrt 10-Q (File No. 001-13357) on May 9, 2006 armbiporated herein by
reference’

10.28 Pledge of Securities dated as of February 22, 2006ligh River Gold Mines Ltd. in favor of Royal @o Inc. (filed as

Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrz 10-Q (File No. 001-13357) on May 9, 2006 arabiporated herein by
reference’
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10.29

10.30**

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

Contribution Agreement in Support of Somita Fundigyeement dated as of February 22, 2006, from Hiyler Gold Mine Ltd.
to and for the benefit of Royal Gold Inc. (filedEshibit 10.5 to the Company’s Quarterly Reportramm 10-Q (File No. 001-
13357) on May 9, 2006 and incorporated herein sreace)

Form of Indemnification Agreement with Directorsda@fficers (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Compangsrrent Report on
Form &K (File No. 00:-13357) on November 13, 2006 and incorporated héreieference

Purchase and Sale Agreement for Pefiasquito and Rtyalties among Minera Kennecott S.A. DE C.V.nKecott Exploration
Company and Royal Gold, Inc., dated December 286 Zfiled as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quastékport on Form 10-Q
(File No. 00:-13357) on February 9, 2007 and incorporated hdrgireference

Shares for Debt Agreement between Kennecott Exjidar&ompany and Royal Gold, Inc., dated DecemBePR06 (filed as
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrx 10-Q (File No. 001-13357) on February 9, 200d imcorporated herein
by reference

Contract for Assignment of Rights Granted, by Ma&ennecott, S.A. de C.V. Represented in this Agesd by Mr. Dave F.
Simpson, and Minera Pefasquito, S.A. de C.V., Remited in this Agreement by Attorney, Jose MarilaB#o Tamayo (filed as
Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrx 10-Q (File No. 001-13357) on February 9, 200d imcorporated herein
by reference

Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreement amoya Bold, Inc., High Desert Mineral Resources, kied HSBC Bank
USA, National Association, dated January 5, 200@dfas Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Quarterly &¢pn Form 10-Q (File
No. 002-13357) on February 9, 2007 and incorporated hdxgieference

Supplemental Mortgage, Deed of Trust, Security &grent, Pledge and Financing Statement betweenBgkrt Mineral
Resources, Inc. and HSBC USA Bank, National Assimziadated January 5, 2007 (filed as Exhibit 10.the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form -Q (File No. 00-13357) on February 9, 2007 and incorporated hdrgieference

Amended and Restated Mortgage, Deed of Trust, 8g@greement, Pledge and Financing Statement batviRoyal Gold and
HSBC USA Bank, National Association, dated Jan®rg007 (filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s @Qerdy Report on
Form 1(-Q (File No. 00-13357) on February 9, 2007 and incorporated hdxeireference

Second Amended and Restated Promissory Note befk@gd Gold, High Desert Mineral Resources, Ind Bi$BC USA Bank,

National Association, dated January 5, 2007 (fdedExhibit 10.8 to the Compe’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-
13357) on February 9, 2007 and incorporated hdrgirference
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10.38 Assignment of Rights Agreement among Mario lvanrtdedez Alvarez, Royal Gold Chile Limitada and Rdgald Inc., dated
January 16, 2007 (filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Canys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 0@BB87) on February 9,
2007 and incorporated herein by referer

10.39 Term Loan Agreement between Royal Gold Chile Liddtand HSBC Bank USA, National Association, datedfaMarch 1, 200
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s QuarterlgpgRrt on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-13357) on May@)2and incorporated
herein by reference

10.40 Guaranty between Royal Gold, Inc. and HSBC Bank [U$#tional Association, dated as of March 1, 200&d as Exhibit 10.2 t
the Compan’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q (File No. 00-13357) on May 4, 2007 and incorporated herein Bsreace)

10.41 Option and Support Agreement by and between Rogéd,@nc. and Mark D. Kucher dated as of March@2 (filed as
Exhibit 99.1 to the Compa’s Schedule 13D on March 15, 2007 and incorporategim by reference

10.42 Option and Support Agreement by and between Rogél,dnc. and IAMGOLD Corporation dated as of Magg007 (filed as
Exhibit 99.2 to the Compa’s Schedule 13D on March 15, 2007 and incorporageein by reference

10.43 Bridge Finance Facility Agreement among Battle MwaimGold Exploration Corp. and BMGX (Barbados) @aration as Royal
Gold, Inc. dated March 28, 2007 (filed as ExhiléitOto the Companyg’Schedule 13D/A (Amendment No. 2) on April 2, 2G0¢
incorporated herein by referenc

10.44 First Amendment to the Bridge Facility Agreemerattet! July 30, 2007, by and among Battle Mountaild Gaploration Corp.,
BMGX (Barbados) Corporation and Royal Gold, IncdediaJuly 30, 2007 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Qamy’s Current Report
on Form &K on August 2, 2007 and incorporated herein byrezfee)

10.45 Secured Promissory Note by Battle Mountain Goldl&sgiion Corp. and BMGX (Barbados) Corporation tmyRl Gold, Inc.
dated March 28, 2007 (filed as Exhibit 99.2 to @@npany’s Schedule 13D/A (Amendment No. 2) on Apri2007 and
incorporated herein by referenc

10.46 Voting Limitation Agreement by and between Royald;énc. and Battle Mountain Gold Exploration Codated as of March 28,
2007 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Cutrieaport on Form 8-K (File No. 001-13357) on MaBth 2007 and
incorporated herein by referenc

10.47 Form of Irrevocable Proxy (filed as Exhibit 10.1tkee Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File B@1-13357) on August 2,
2007 and incorporated herein by referer

141 Amended Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (fiteder Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Current ReporEorm 8-K (File

No. 002-13357) on November 13, 2006 and incorporated hérgieference
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21.1* Royal Gold and Its Subsidiari

23.1* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

31.1* Certification of President and Chief Executive ©dfi required by Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 200z

31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer required ISection 302 of the Sarbai-Oxley Act of 200z

32.1* Written Statement of the President and Chief Exteeudfficer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 200z

32.2* Written Statement of the Chief Financial Officerguant to Section 906 of the SarbeOxley Act of 2002

* Filed herewith

**  |dentifies each management contract or compenspl&nor arrangemer
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EXHIBIT 21.1
Royal Gold, Inc. and Its Subsidiaries

Denver Mining Finance Comparty
Royal Trading Compantp)

Royal Gold Chile Limitad&®)
Calgom Mining, Inc®) 4)

Mono County Mining Compant})
Royal Camp Bird, Inc®)

Royal Crescent Valley, In€b
Royal Kanaka Creek Corporati¢i
Environmental Strategies, Iné)
Greek American Exploration Lt¢®)
Sofia Minerals Ltd(®)

Royal Gold Pty, Ltd.

RG Russia, Indb)

High Desert Mineral Resources, 1.

@) Owned 100% by Royal Gold, In

@  Owned 100% by Denver Mining Finance Comp.
3  Owned 50% by Royal Gold, In

@ Owns a 100% interest in the Goldstripe Proj

®)  Owned 25% by Royal Gold, In






EXHIBIT 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N8-BB1490), Form S-4 (No. 333-
111590) and on Form S-8 (No. 333-122877) of RoyatGinc. of our report dated August 16, 2007, tietato the consolidated financial
statements, management’s assessment of the edfieetis of internal control over financial reportargl the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting, which appears in thismdr0-K.

/s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LI
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Denver, Colorado

August 21, 2007







EXHIBIT 31.1
I, Tony Jensen, certify that:
(1) I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Royal Gold, Inc.

(2) Based on my knowledge, this annual report doesomtiain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this annual rep

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsosimet financial information included in this anhtgport fairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe period presented in this annual
report;

(4) The registrant’s other certifying officer and | assponsible for establishing and maintaining disaie controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-a5(f), for the registrant and hay

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and phaes or caused such disclosure controls and puoegsdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrifie period in which this annual report is beingpared

(b) Designed such internal control over finahogporting, or caused such internal control diemcial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regitsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntbds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by timial report based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any chaingée registrant’s internal control over finanai@porting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regits fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistran’'s internal control over financial reporting; &

(5) The registrant’s other certifying officer and | Meadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafionieynal controls over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and materiadéaknesses in the design or operation of intern@tals over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refptahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdtves management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant’s
internal controls over financial reportir
August 22, 2007

/sITony Jense

Tony Jensel
President and Chief Executive Offic







EXHIBIT 31.2
I, Stefan Wenger, certify that:
(1) I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Royal Gold, Inc.

(2) Based on my knowledge, this annual report doesomtiain any untrue statement of a material factomoits to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this annual rep

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsosimet financial information included in this anhteport fairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe period presented in this annual
report;

(4) The registrant’s other certifying officer and | assponsible for establishing and maintaining disaie controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-a5(f), for the registrant and hay

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and phaes or caused such disclosure controls and puoegsdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrifie period in which this annual report is beingpared

(b) Designed such internal control over finahogporting, or caused such internal control diemcial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ding the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regitsadisclosure controls and procedures and presentecbnclusions about the effectiver
of the disclosure controls and procedures, aseoéttd of the period covered by this annual repased on such evaluation; a

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any chainge registrant’s internal controls over finareigporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regits fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistran's internal control over financial reporting; &

(5) The registrant’s other certifying officer and | Meadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafionieynal controls over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and materiadéaknesses in the design or operation of interngtals over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refprahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdtves management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant’s
internal controls over financial reportir
August 22, 2007

/sIStefan Wenge

Stefan Wenger
Chief Financial Officel







EXHIBIT 32.1

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fKRoyal Gold, Inc. (the “Company”), for the yeardimg June 30, 2007, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dat@h@he “Report”), |, Tony Jensen, President anée€CExecutive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section01 3% adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasb@nley Act of 2002 that, to my
knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand result of operations of the
Company

August 22, 2007

/sITony Jense

Tony Jensen
President and Chief Executive Offic







EXHIBIT 32.2

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fKRoyal Gold, Inc. (the “Company”), for the yeardimg June 30, 2007, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date@h@he “Report”), |, Stefan Wenger, Chief Finaricficer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedipnt$o Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act @22hat, to my knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand result of operations of the
Company

August 22, 2007

/s/Stefan Wenge¢

Stefan Wenger
Chief Financial Officel




